
Democratic Services Section
Chief Executive’s Department
Belfast City Council
City Hall
Belfast 
BT1 5GS

6th February 2018

MEETING OF PLANNING COMMITTEE

Dear Alderman/Councillor,

The above-named Committee will meet in the Banqueting Hall - City Hall on Tuesday, 
13th February, 2018 at 5.00 pm, for the transaction of the business noted below.

You are requested to attend.

Yours faithfully,

SUZANNE WYLIE

Chief Executive

AGENDA:

1. Routine Matters  

(a) Apologies  

(b) Minutes  (Pages 1 - 12)

(c) Declarations of Interest  

2. Planning Appeals Notified  (Pages 13 - 16)

3. Planning Decisions Issued  (Pages 17 - 42)

4. Departmental Performance Update (Report to Follow)  

5. Miscellaneous Items  

(a) Purpose Built Managed Student Accommodation Update (Report to Follow)  



- 2 -
6. Planning Applications  

(a) LA04/2017/1489/F - Proposed ground excavations from a 'Borrow Pit' to 
provide 30,000m3 of clean natural clay soils capping material for use within 
remediation capping layers and associated Remedial Strategy for the 
approved Mixed Use Residential and Commercial Development (granted 
permission under Ref Z/2013/1434/F) on lands at former Visteon Factory, 
Blacks Road  (Pages 43 - 56)

(b) LA04/2016/2018/F - Seven storey residential development comprising 46 
apartments with associated basement level car parking with 25 parking 
spaces, amenity space, associated site works and alterations to the junction 
of Hamill Street and College Square North. Lands adjacent to 14 College 
square North and South of 62-76 Hamill Street.  (Pages 57 - 70)

(c) LA04/2017/2361/F - Reconfiguration of interior to provide 16 bar / restaurant 
units, health club, arena hospitality suite, climbing wall, refurbishment of 
Pavilion interior, new foyer, access deck bridge, new front façade &  building 
access strategy  at the Odyssey Pavilion, 2 Queens Quay.  (Pages 71 - 82)

(d) LA04/2017/2268/F - Demolition of existing building Oxford and Gloucester 
House for 11 storey mixed use building, basement car parking, ground floor 
coffee/restaurant, upper floors office accommodation & all associated site 
and access works on lands at 43-63 Chichester Street 29-31 Gloucester 
Street and Seymour Lane  (Pages 83 - 108)

(e) LA04/2017/1394/F supported accommodation for older people comprising 32 
apartments in total on land East of Harberton Park to the south of 25 
Harberton Park  (Pages 109 - 124)

(f) LA04/2017/1505/F - 5 residential apartments at 1-3 Eia Street  (Pages 125 - 
140)

(g) LA04/2015/1345/F - Housing development on land at Portmore Hill adjacent 
to Thorburn Park and Thorburn Road and accessed via Antrim Road  (Pages 
141 - 160)

(h) LA04/2016/1360/F - Filling station, shop and 2 retail units on lands opposite 
junction of Stewartstown Road and Suffolk Road  (Pages 161 - 170)

(i) LA04/2017/1778/F - Minor works including drainage, lighting, a maintenance 
path and mounted golf targets at Colin Park, 115 Blacks Road  (Pages 171 - 
180)

(j) LA04/2017/2618/F -  Extension to mezzanine floor Dunelm  Unit 8 Shane 
Retail Park  Boucher Road  (Pages 181 - 192)



F520

Planning Committee
Tuesday, 16th January, 2018

MEETING OF PLANNING COMMITTEE

Members present:  Councillor Lyons (Chairperson); 
 Alderman McGimpsey;
 Councillors Armitage, Carson, Dorrian,
 Garrett, Hussey, Hutchinson, Johnston, 
 Magee, McAteer and Mullan.

In attendance:   Mr. J. Walsh, City Solicitor; 
 Mr. K. Sutherland, Development Planning and Policy   
  Manager; 
 Ms. N. Largey, Divisional Solicitor; 
 Mr. S. McCrory, Democratic Services Manager; and
 Ms. E. McGoldrick, Democratic Services Officer.

Apologies

Apologies were reported on behalf of Councillors Bunting and McDonough-Brown.

Minutes

The minutes of the meeting of 12th December were taken as read and signed as 
correct.  It was reported that those minutes had been adopted by the Council at its meeting 
on 3rd January, subject to the omission of those matters in respect of which the Council 
had delegated its powers to the Committee.

Declarations of Interest

No declarations of interest were reported.  

Committee Site Visits

Pursuant to its decision of 12th December, it was noted that the Committee had 
undertaken a site visit on 9th January in respect of planning application 
LA04/2017/0046/F and 0044/DCA - 22 apartments with associated landscaping, access, 
car parking, construction of a new gable wall and all associated demolitions and site 
works at 140 and 142 Malone Avenue and the rear of 18 Windsor Avenue. 

Planning Appeals Notified

The Committee noted the receipt of correspondence in respect of a number of 
planning appeals which had been submitted to the Planning Appeals Commission, 
together with the outcomes of a range of hearings which had been considered by the 
Commission.



Planning Committee,
Tuesday, 16th January, 2018

F521

Planning Decisions Notified

The Committee noted a list of decisions which had been taken under delegated 
authority by the Director of Planning and Place, together with all other planning decisions 
which had been issued by the Planning Department between 2nd December, 2017 and 
2nd January, 2018.

Departmental Performance Update 

The Development Planning and Policy Manager tabled a report in relation to the 
departmental planning performance. He highlighted that the figures outlined were 
internally sourced and not official statistics from the Department for Infrastructure, and 
therefore, might be subject to change once the official statistics were subsequently 
released. 

He provided a breakdown of the monthly performance up to 31 December, 2017 
as follows: 

Planning Applications
 131 applications had been validated in December, 2017; 
 223 applications had been validated in November, 2017; and
 1865 applications had been validated since 1st April, 2017.

Planning Decisions
 124 decisions had been issued in December, 2017;
 201 decisions had been issued in November, 2017;
 97% approval rate; and
 95% decisions had been issued under delegated authority.

No. of applications in system by length of time
 880 live applications were in the system at end of December, 2017; 

and
 7 legacy applications were outstanding.

The Development Planning and Policy Manager highlighted that there were 29 live 
major planning applications, eight of which had been approved by Committee but were 
awaiting the execution of Section 76 agreements. He advised that eleven applications 
were currently within the 30-week target for processing applications and would be brought 
to the Committee for consideration in the future.   

He pointed out that, in relation to Local Applications, the latest available figures 
from the Department for Infrastructure, up to November, 2017, indicated that the average 
processing time was 15.6 weeks, with 48% of applications being processed within the 
15 week target.
 

He informed the Committee that, up to 31st December, 2017, the latest figures 
available from Department for Infrastructure showed that 67% of enforcement cases had 
been concluded within the target of 39 weeks, 3% below the statutory target, but this 
represented a 2% improvement on November’s performance. 



Planning Committee,
Tuesday, 16th January, 2018

F522

He advised that performance would continue to be closely monitored and future 
reports would contain more detailed information in relation to factors affecting 
performance and continuous improvement measures. 

Noted.

Request for Pre Determination Hearing for LA04/2017/2126/F - Lands bound by 
North Street Royal Avenue Rosemary Street and building south of Lower Garfield 
Street 

The Development Planning and Policy Manager advised that a request had been 
received from Save CQ for the Committee to hold a discretionary pre determination 
hearing in accordance with Section 30(4) of the Planning Act (NI) 2011, in response to 
what they considered to be the controversial nature of the proposal, the sensitivity of this 
site (located within one Conservation area and adjacent to another) and the impact on 
the setting of a number of listed buildings. 

He highlighted that an additional Committee meeting would be required should 
the Committee agree to hold a pre-determination hearing.

During discussion, one Member advised that he believed there were exceptional 
circumstances on the grounds that the application site was situated in the City Centre and 
incorporated a number of large buildings. He suggested that as the development included 
historic and listed buildings, and proposed demolition, the impact of the development 
would have wide public interest. 

The Committee agreed to hold a pre-determination hearing and to defer formal 
consideration of the application until after the hearing had taken place. It agreed to receive 
representations from the objector and the applicant, limiting both deputations to ten 
minutes speaking time. 

Miscellaneous Items

Restricted Item

The Information contained in the following report is restricted in
accordance with Part 1 of Schedule 6 of the Local Government Act (Northern
Ireland) 2014

Resolved – That the Committee agrees to exclude the members of the
Press and public from the Committee meeting during discussion of this
item as, due to the nature of the item, there would be a disclosure of
exempt information as described in Section 42 (4) and Schedule 6 of the
Local Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014.



Planning Committee,
Tuesday, 16th January, 2018

F523

Revenue Estimates and District Rate 2018/19  

(Mr. R. Cregan, Director of Finance and Resources, attended in connection with this item.)

The Committee considered a report, which had been prepared by the Director of 
Finance and Resources, in relation to the establishment of the District Rate and the 
compilation of the Estimates of Revenue Expenditure for the year 2018/2019.

The Director outlined that the decision should not be subject to call-in as it would 
cause an unreasonable delay which would be prejudicial to the Council and the public’s 
interest in striking the district rate by the legislative deadline of 15th February, 2018.

He outlined to the Members that the main financial pressures facing the Council 
in 2018/2019 were uncontrollable costs but that the impact of those costs had been 
reduced by the increase in the rate base and efficiency savings.

He explained the cash limit for the Planning Committee for 2018/2019, as 
recommended by the Strategic Policy and Resources Committee, at its meeting on 
5th January, and outlined the next steps in the rate setting process leading to the setting 
of the district rate by Council at its meeting in February, 2018.

After discussion, the Committee:

1. agreed a cash limit for the Planning Committee for 2018/19 of 
£1,551,099 and the individual service cash limits detailed in table 
3 of the report; and

2. noted the next steps in the rate setting process.

Listed Buildings 

The Committee was advised that correspondence had been received from the 
Northern Ireland Environment Agency (NIEA) seeking the Council’s views in respect of 
proposals which had been formulated for the listing of a number of buildings in Belfast. 

The Committee was reminded that Article 80 (3) of the Planning Act (NI) 2011 
required the Agency to consult with the Council before placing any building on the 
statutory list of buildings of special architectural or historic interest.

It was reported that the second survey of all of Northern Ireland's building stock 
was currently underway, to update and improve on the first list of buildings of special 
architectural or historic interest which began in 1974 and was due to be completed in 
2016.

During discussion, one member highlighted his disappointment in relation to the 
confirmed listing of 30 Malone Park. He reminded the Committee that it had agreed to 
reject the listing of this building at its meeting in September. 



Planning Committee,
Tuesday, 16th January, 2018

F524

After discussion, the Committee agreed with the Agency’s proposals to list the 
following buildings: 

 1 College Park East, Belfast, BT7 1PS;
 2 College Park East, Belfast, BT7 1PS;
 3 College Park East, Belfast, BT7 1PS;
 4 College Park East, Belfast, BT7 1PS;
 5 College Park East, Belfast, BT7 1PS;
 6 College Park East, Belfast, BT7 1PS;
 8 Notting Hill, Belfast, BT9 5NS;
 Church of Jesus Christ of Latter Day Saints, 28 – 32 Annadale 

Avenue, Belfast, BT7 3JJ;
 Mechanical and Aerospace engineering, Ashby building, 

Stranmillis Road, Belfast, BT9 5AH; and
 Central Building adjacent to Stranmillis House, Stranmillis College, 

Belfast, BT9 5DY. 

Retention and Disposal Schedule 

The Committee was advised that Councils had been working together with the 
Department for Infrastructure (DfI) and the Public Records Office (PRONI) to agree a 
consistent approach to the retention and disposal of all planning records. 

The Development Planning and Policy Manager advised that DfI required the 
agreement of each local authority as part of a standardised approach for all planning 
records.

He informed the Committee that the Council’s Draft Retention and Disposal 
Schedule was outlined in Appendix 1 of the report (copy available here). He highlighted 
the following key changes from the Council’s previous Retention and Disposal Schedule:

 The schedule had been updated to take account all types of 
planning records including electronic records and new types of 
planning records, for example Planning Performance Agreements, 
Section 76 agreements, Tree Preservation Orders and Discharge 
of Conditions.  The Planning Registers would be retained 
permanently and Planning Applications would be retained for 
6 years (after date of the last paper on the file);

 The time period for the retention of enforcement files was proposed 
as 1 year after closure. This retention period had been selected to 
ensure consistency with other legal requirements including the 
rehabilitation of Offenders Act and the Data Protection Act which 
stated that information should not be held any longer than was 
absolutely necessary; and

https://minutes3.belfastcity.gov.uk/documents/s69635/Appendix%201%20Draft%20Council%20Retention%20and%20Disposal%20Schedule.pdf


Planning Committee,
Tuesday, 16th January, 2018

F525

 For Development Planning, it was proposed to reduce the 
timescale from 10 to 6 years after file closure in relation to the 
retention of background records associated with all aspects of the 
preparation and publication of local development plans, from plan 
initiation through to plan adoption stages. It was considered that 
this time period linked appropriately with the legal requirement 
(Regulation 26 - The Planning (Local Development Plan) 
Regulations (NI) 2015) that a council must carry out a review of its 
local development plan every five years and no later than five years 
from the date that the local policies plan had been first adopted or 
approved.

He highlighted that, if agreed, the Retention and Disposal Schedule would be 
presented to PRONI for endorsement before it could be implemented by the Council, 
however, this was subject to the Northern Ireland Assembly being restored as it must be 
laid before the Assembly for 10 working days before it could become operational. 
He advised that, as the schedule would also be applied to electronic records, policy 
processes would also have to be agreed with DfI on the disposal and retention of 
electronic records held on the planning portal, for which they were responsible.

The Committee agreed the Retention and Disposal Schedule as set out in 
Appendix 1 of the report. 

Withdrawn Items

The Committee noted that the following items had been withdrawn from the 
agenda: 

 LA04/2016/0564/F - Additional waste types, and the installation of 
a metal shredder and associated conveyor belt systems at Avenue 
Recycling, 1 Advantage Way, Ballygomartin Road; 

 LA04/2016/0563/F - Variation of conditions 3 and 7 of planning 
permission Z/2005/2312/F to allow for external unloading, transfer 
and storage of waste and increase to opening hours, additional 2 
hours per day at Avenue Recycling, 1 Advantage Way; and

 LA04/2016/2018/F - 7 storey residential development comprising 
46 apartments with associated basement level car parking with 25 
parking spaces, amenity space, associated site works and 
alterations to the junction of Hamill Street and College Square 
North on lands adjacent to 14 College square North and South of 
62-76 Hamill Street.  



Planning Committee,
Tuesday, 16th January, 2018

F526

Planning Applications

THE COMMITTEE DEALT WITH THE FOLLOWING ITEMS IN PURSUANCE OF THE 
POWERS DELEGATED TO IT BY THE COUNCIL UNDER STANDING ORDER 37(e)

Reconsidered Item – LA04/2017/0046/F and 0044/DCA 22 apartments with
associated landscaping, access, car parking, construction of new gable wall
and all associated demolitions and site works at 140 and 142 Malone Avenue
and the rear of 18 Windsor Avenue 

(Alderman McGimpsey and Councillors Carson and Dorrian took no part in the 
discussion or decision-making of the application since they had not been in attendance 
at the meeting on 12th December when it had originally been considered).

The Chairperson informed the Committee that a second request to speak had 
been received on behalf of Mr. C. Doyle, an objector, citing exceptional circumstances, 
as outlined in the Late Items reports pack. He reminded the Committee that the objectors 
had already made a presentation at the Committee Meeting on 12th December. 
The Committee agreed not to receive the deputation. 

The Committee was reminded that, at its meeting on 12th December, given the 
issues which had been raised regarding the Malone Conservation Area, the height of the 
proposal and impact on local residents, it had agreed to defer consideration of the 
application to enable a site visit to be undertaken to allow the Committee to acquaint itself 
with the location and the proposal at first hand. 

The case officer provided an overview of the addendum report and highlighted 
that a further two letters of objection had been received in relation to inadequate 
infrastructure and townscape character of the area. 

In response to the issues raised by the objector in the exceptional circumstances 
request, the case officer explained that planning permission under Z/2007/2006/F had 
been granted for a replacement church and permission remained extant. She also 
confirmed that the planning history of the site had been fully considered. 

After discussion, the Committee granted approval to the application, subject to the 
imposing of the conditions set out in the case officer’s report and delegated power to the 
Director of Planning and Place for the final wording of the conditions.

 (Councillors Carson and Dorrian returned to the Committee table at this point.)



Planning Committee,
Tuesday, 16th January, 2018

F527

LA04/2016/2099/F - Residential development consisting of 12 apartments
and 36 houses (total 48 units) with associated vehicular / pedestrian
accesses, car parking, landscaping and site works at former site of St. Marks
Primary School, Gardenmore Road, Twinbrook, Dunmurry

The Case Officer outlined the aforementioned application.

She highlighted that, in terms of infrastructure, whilst there is an outstanding final 
consultation response from Transport NI, the consultee had raised no issues of principle 
and it was considered that any technical matters could be appropriately addressed by 
conditions. 

The Committee granted approval to the application, subject to the imposing of the 
conditions set out in the case officer’s report and delegated power to the Director of 
Planning and Place for the final wording of the conditions.

(Alderman McGimpsey returned to the Committee table at this point.)

LA04/2017/0919/F - Sports Dome with internal lighting, machine room and
3M security fence at Colin Park, 115 Blacks Road 

It was noted that the application, in accordance with the Scheme of Delegation, 
had been presented to the Committee since the Council had an interest in the application.

During discussion, Members raised questions in relation to the consultation which 
had taken place and the impact the development would have on the residents of the area.

The Committee received representation from Ms. U. Somerville and Mr. C. O’Neill, 
representing the applicant. In answer to Members’ questions, they explained that visual 
impact analysis had taken place and a range of organisations had been consulted in 
relation to the proposal, such as Suffolk Football Club and the Suffolk Community Forum. 
Mr. O’Neill also suggested that further public consultation had taken place on the previous 
application for the site and they would be happy to continue to engage with the 
community. 

During points of clarification, the case officer confirmed that the facility would be 
managed as part of the wider development of the site.      

The Committee granted approval to the application, subject to the imposing of the 
conditions set out in the case officer’s report and delegated power to the Director of 
Planning and Place for the final wording of the conditions.

LA04/2017/2306/F - Purpose built managed student accommodation
comprising up to 430 beds with internal and external communal area at 26 - 44
Little Patrick Street 

The case officer explained that the principle of purpose built student 
accommodation was considered acceptable at this location and the site had extant 



Planning Committee,
Tuesday, 16th January, 2018

F528

planning permission for an eleven storey purpose built student accommodation building, 
comprising of 354 beds under LA04/2015/0716/F.

He explained that the proposal was for the re-development of a vacant site with 
the erection of a 12 Storey building (35-36m) for managed student accommodation, 
comprising 430 beds with internal and external communal areas and other ancillary 
accommodation including a reception/management suite, plants and storage areas and 
cycle provision.

During discussion, Members raised concerns in relation to overdevelopment of 
the site, over clustering and supply of student managed accommodation, lack of amenity 
space and open space, lack of car parking and the design of the development. 

The Committee received representation from Ms. E. Walker, representing the 
applicant. In response to Members’ concerns, she outlined a range of support for the 
proposal which included: 

 the principle for student managed accommodation had already 
been established;

 since the previous planning approval, the site had been sold on to 
a different developer who had reconsidered the design 
configuration due to the demand for more cluster bedrooms;

 the key differences from the previous proposal were the mix of 
studio apartments and cluster bedrooms, a small increase in the 
number of bedrooms, and more amenity space;

 the proposed room sizes were a minimum of 13sqm and compliant 
with space standards;

 a Section 76 agreement had been discussed with the Planning 
Service;

 the applicant had engaged with the community; and
 there had been no statutory objections.

During points of clarification, Ms. Walker explained the basis for the demand for 
cluster bedrooms and the reduction in ceiling heights. She indicated that the design 
included social space on the ground level and open space. She stated that consultation 
had been undertaken as part of the PAD process. 

The Development Planning and Policy Manager advised that the need for Student 
Managed Accommodation in this area was indicative and comparable to other cities, but 
he would endeavour to bring back actual statistics to demonstrate the cumulative impact 
of the proposals in the area. 

The recommendation to approve the application was put to the Committee when 
six Members voted in favour and six against. There being a parity of votes, the 
Chairperson exercised his second and casting vote for the proposal and it was declared 
carried.

Accordingly, the Committee approved the application and, in accordance with 
Section 76 of the Planning Act (Northern Ireland) 2015, delegated power to the Director 



Planning Committee,
Tuesday, 16th January, 2018

F529

of Planning and Place, in conjunction with the City Solicitor, to enter into discussions with 
the applicant to explore the scope of any planning agreements which might be realised at 
the site.

(The meeting was adjourned for 10 minutes.)

LA04/2017/0510/RM - Residential development of 23 detached and 104
semi-detached dwellings and 3 town houses (total 130), access and road
infrastructure, landscaping and public open space to include an equipped
children's play area on lands at Castlehill south of Woodcroft Heights and
east of Glenview Avenue and Castlegrange Belfast 

The case officer outlined the application for the residential development. 

Proposal

Moved by Councillor Armitage and
Seconded by Councillor Mullan,

That the Committee, given the issues which had been raised regarding 
road safety, agrees to defer consideration of the application to permit a site 
visit to be undertaken to allow the Committee to acquaint itself with the 
location and the proposal at first hand. 

On a vote by show of hands four Members voted for the proposal and five against 
and it was declared lost.

The recommendation to approve the application was then put to the Committee 
and the Committee granted approval to the application, subject to the imposing of the 
conditions set out in the case officer’s report and delegated power to the Director of 
Planning and Place for the final wording of the conditions.

LA04/2017/1470/F - Single storey rear extension, 2nd storey rear extension.
elevation changes and replacement dormer window to rear at 118 Stranmillis
Road 

It was noted that the application, in accordance with the Scheme of Delegation, 
had been presented to the Committee since the applicant was a member of Council.

During discussion, one Member questioned the failure to apply guidance 
standards in relation to overshadowing and dominance as outlined in the case officer’s 
report under paragraph 6.7 and 6.8. The case officer advised that, in relation to the angle 
test referred to in the report, guidance stated that this was not a rigid standard that must 
be met in every case; rather it was an assessment tool that would be used in conjunction 
with other relevant factors. She confirmed that an assessment had been made on the 
cumulative impact of the proposal on the neighbouring properties.   

The Committee granted approval to the application, subject to the imposing of the 
conditions set out within the case officer’s report.



Planning Committee,
Tuesday, 16th January, 2018

F530

LA04/2017/1762/F - Change of use from first and second floor offices to 2
flats including 2.5 storey rear extension, replacement single storey bays and
elevation changes at 1 Rugby Avenue 

The case officer outlined the application and informed the Committee that, after 
the agenda had been published, a late objection had been received, which had been 
tabled for consideration. It outlined the following points of objection:

 The South Belfast Holyland area was over saturated with Houses 
of Multiple Occupancy and flats; 

 The proposed flats to be built were extremely small and therefore 
not in a range of sizes and tenures as recommended in planning 
policy;

 The proposal would not contribute to sustainable residential 
development; 

 It was contrary to the Council’s Preferred Options Paper in relation 
to ‘creating more balanced sustainable communities’ and 
‘maximising the use of existing infrastructure and services’;  

 There was a major car parking problem in the area;
 To build more flats would contribute to overcrowding; 
 The proposal was contradictory to the development of Purpose 

Built Student Accommodation (PBSA) in the city centre; and 
 the need to de-intensify the numbers of HMO and flats in the area 

to enable the emergence of a more integrated and safe community 
in keeping with government and public policy. 

The case officer outlined the response of the Planning Department to the 
aforementioned issues raised. 

It was noted that the application, in accordance with the Scheme of Delegation, 
had been presented to the Committee since the applicant was related to a member of 
Council.

During discussion, Members raised concerns in relation to the lack of car parking 
and the need to deal with applications consistently in this regard. The Committee also 
raised issues in relation to amenity space, Houses of Multiple Occupation policy and the 
consultation response from Transport NI. 

After discussion, the recommendation to approve the application was put to the 
Committee when nine Members voted in favour and two against and it was declared 
carried.

Accordingly, the Committee granted approval to the application, subject to the 
imposing of the conditions set out within the case officer’s report.



Planning Committee,
Tuesday, 16th January, 2018

F531

LA04/2017/0902/F - Change of use from retail/tanning salon to exhibition and
interpretive centre, 2nd floor rear extension, side extension. 2 storey side
extension with terrace, elevation changes including new entrance at 374 -376
Falls Road. 

It was noted that the application, in accordance with the Scheme of Delegation, 
had been presented to the Committee since the Council had an interest in the application.

The Committee granted approval to the application, subject to the imposing of the 
conditions set out within the case officer’s report.

LA04/2017/2145/F - Retention of HMO at 35 Woodcot Avenue 

The case officer outlined the retrospective application for the retention of a 
change of use from a single dwelling to a House in Multiple Occupation (HMO). 

The Committee granted approval to the application, subject to the imposing of 
the conditions set out within the case officer’s report.

The Committee also noted that a workshop in relation to Planning Enforcement 
would be scheduled in the imminent future.   

Chairperson



1.

PLANNING COMMITTEE – 13 FEBRUARY 2017 

APPEALS NOTIFIED

COUNCIL:  BELFAST

ITEM NO 1 PAC REF:  2017/A0210

PLANNING REF: LA04/2017/0969/A

APPLICANT: Mr Martin Heatley

LOCATION: Land at junction opposite 2-18 Ormeau Road, Belfast

PROPOSAL: 1 No 96 sheet advertising hoarding

PROCEDURE:

ITEM NO 2 PAC REF:  2017/A0218

PLANNING REF: LA04/2016/0654/F

APPLICANT: Malone Ridge Ltd

LOCATION: Site 14 Malone Ridge, Upper Malone Road, Belfast

PROPOSAL: Construction of single detached dwelling with associated 
landscaping and car parking

PROCEDURE:

ITEM NO 3 PAC REF:  2017/A0219

PLANNING REF: LA04/2016/0519/F

APPLICANT: Peter Boyle

LOCATION: Ormiston House, 51A Hawthornden Road, Belfast

PROPOSAL: New perimeter wall to replace original corrugated metal 
fencing.  New access to site immediately adjacent to original 
historic Pirrie Lane, with landscaping etc.  New entrance gates 
to main house (part retrospective) (amended plans)

PROCEDURE:



2.

APPEAL DECISIONS NOTIFIED

ITEM NO 1 PAC REF: 2017/A0068

PLANNING REF: LA04/2016/2143/A

RESULT OF APPEAL: Dismissed

APPLICANT: Mr Norman Roddy

LOCATION: Vacant ground opposite 155 Andersonstown Road, Belfast

PROPOSAL: 1 No 96 sheet and 1 No 48 sheet free standing display panel

ITEM NO 2 PAC REF: 2017/A0124

PLANNING REF: LA04/2017/1718/A

RESULT OF APPEAL: Dismissed

APPLICANT: Clear Channel NI Ltd

LOCATION: Vacant ground at junction of Kingsway and Upper Dunmurry Lane, Dunmurry

PROPOSAL: Remove 2 existing standard 48 sheet display panels and replace with one 
freestanding 48 sheet back illuminated light box

ITEM NO 3 PAC REF: 2017/A0059

PLANNING REF: LA04/2017/0978/F

RESULT OF APPEAL: Allowed

APPLICANT: Cathryn Harris

LOCATION: 29 Cranmore Park, Belfast

PROPOSAL: 2 storey rear extension to dwelling to provide kitchen/dining room on ground 
floor and first floor bedroom with ensuite



3.

APPEAL DECISIONS NOTIFIED
(CONTINUED)

ITEM NO 4 PAC REF: 2017/A0024

PLANNING REF: LA04/2016/2110/F

RESULT OF APPEAL: Allowed

APPLICANT: Mr Steven Culshaw

LOCATION: 79 Fruithill Park, Belfast

PROPOSAL: 2 storey side and rear extension – Single storey front porch extension

ITEM NO 5 PAC REF: 2017/A0134

PLANNING REF: LA04/2017/1441/F

RESULT OF APPEAL: Withdrawn

APPLICANT: Premier Car Park Management Ltd

LOCATION: Lands at 43-47 Chichester Street and 29-31 Gloucester Street, Belfast, BT1 
4LS

PROPOSAL: Retrospective application for car park (temporary) (amended address)

ITEM NO 6 PAC REF: 2017/A0127

PLANNING REF: LA04/2017/1375/F

RESULT OF APPEAL: FINDING – Correct Fee Paid and valid appeal 

APPLICANT: Car Parking Services Ltd and Slaney Developments

LOCATION: Land bounded by Library Street, Stephen Street and Kent Street, Belfast, 
BT1 2JJ

PROPOSAL: Demolition of existing warehouse and construction of 8 storey residential 
development comprising 93 apartments with basement parking below and 
associated landscaping



4.

APPEAL DECISIONS NOTIFIED
(CONTINUED)

ITEM NO 7 PAC REF: 2017/A0127

PLANNING REF: LA04/2017/1375/F

RESULT OF APPEAL: FINDING – Correct Fee Paid and valid appeal 

APPLICANT: Car Parking Services Ltd and Slaney Developments

LOCATION: Land bounded by Library Street, Stephen Street and Kent Street, Belfast, 
BT1 2JJ

PROPOSAL: Demolition of existing warehouse and construction of 8 storey residential 
development comprising 93 apartments with basement parking below and 
associated landscaping

ITEM NO 8 PAC REF: 2017/A0131

PLANNING REF: LA04/2017/1018/F

RESULT OF APPEAL: Allowed 

APPLICANT: Mr B McAvoy

LOCATION: 96 Mount Merrion Park, Belfast

PROPOSAL: 2 storey front extension



Decisions Issued between 3 January and 5 February 2018 - No. 183
Reference Number Location Proposal Decision

LA04/2015/0810/F 11 Ireton Street Belfast BT7 1LH Change of use from dwelling to 3 apartments 

including a 3 storey extension

Permission Granted

LA04/2015/0873/F 37-39 Beechmount Avenue Belfast 

BT12 7NA

Demolition of existing garage and 

construction of 5No. apartments.

Permission Refused

LA04/2015/0961/F 430 Antrim Road Skegoneill Belfast 

BT15 5GB

Proposed demolition of existing building and 

erection of 10no apartments and associated 

site works (renewal of z/2008/0893/f)

Permission Refused

LA04/2016/0549/F Lands at Benview Avenue and Benview 

Parade to the South of Buttermilk 

Loney Ballysillan Belfast

Proposed erection of 70 No. semi-detached 

and townhouse dwellings with associated 

site works, roads, car parking and 

landscaping/open space provision (amended 

plans and information)

Permission Granted

LA04/2016/0639/F 100 Eglantine Avenue Belfast BT9 

6EU

Demolition of store and erection of 2 storey 

rear garage (Amended Plans)

Permission Granted

LA04/2016/0988/F 80-84 Glen Road Ballymurphy 

Andersonstown Belfast BT11 8HB

Variation of condition 2 (Z/2013/0938/F) 

which refers to vegetation and planting and 

erection of boundary fencing (Amended 

Plans)

Permission Granted

LA04/2016/1159/F 197 - 199 Castlereagh Road Belfast 

BT5 5FH

Demolition of building and redevelopment of 

site to provide 11 No. 2 bedroom apartments

Permission Refused



Reference Number Location Proposal Decision

LA04/2016/1646/F Properties situated at 68-72 Eglantine 

Avenue Belfast

Change of use from residential to hotel, 

amalgamation with adjacent hotel, part 

demolition of internal walls to no's 68, 70 and 

72, and rear return of no. 68, three storey 

rear extension to No's 68, 70 and 72 to 

provide 27 additional bedrooms, elevation 

changes, part demolition of existing front 

boundary wall, and erection of front wall, 

ramp, steps and terrace (amended plans and 

description)

Permission Granted

LA04/2016/1648/DCA 68-72 Eglantine Avenue Belfast Retention of existing front facade, part 

demolition of internal walls to 68, 70 and 72, 

and rear return of 68, and existing front  

boundary walls of 68, 70 and 72, to 

accomodate change of use. Part demolition 

of the front wall of 54-66 to facilitate new 

steps and a ramped access

Consent Granted

LA04/2016/1701/DCA 61 Eglantine Avenue Belfast BT9 

6EW

Demolition of 3 storey rear return and 

demolition of internal walls to main building 

(retaining front facade, rear wall, side walls 

and roof) (Amended Plans)

Consent Granted

LA04/2016/1722/F 61 Eglantine Avenue Belfast BT9 

6EW

Proposed alterations and extension to 

change property from five apartments into 

five serviced apartments. To include the 

demolition of the existing rear return and 

additional internal walls. (Amended Plans)

Permission Granted



Reference Number Location Proposal Decision

LA04/2016/2360/F Hillview Retail Park Crumlin Road 

Belfast

Development to include the subdivision of 

existing retail unit 1 into 2 no. new retail units 

(with provision of new 1st floor mezzanine 

level at new unit 1B for storage); re-cladding 

works to existing units 2-5; demolition and 

reconfiguration of the front façade treatment 

to the elevations of new units 1A and 1B; 

new rear single storey extension into the 

service yard of unit 1B to facilitate servicing 

and deliveries; new dock leveller at the rear 

of proposed unit 1B; 1 no. new drive-thru 

restaurant unit; 1 no. new drive-thru 

café/restaurant pod; 1 no. stand alone 

restaurant unit; 1 no. new car sales 

premises; reconfiguration of existing car 

parking areas and all associated works

Permission Granted

LA04/2016/2440/A 21-25 Boucher Road Belfast BT12 

6QU

Digital Sign- Double sided bill board Consent Refused

LA04/2016/2531/F Lands at 163 Ormeau Road Belfast 

BT7 1SP

Residential development of 47 dwelling units 

comprising 7 townhouses and 40 

apartments, landscaping, car parking and all 

associated site works including the part 

demolition, retention and change of use of 

no. 163 Ormeau Road from offices to 2No. 

apartments.(Amedned Plans)

Permission Granted

LA04/2016/2695/DCA 11-17 Donegal Street Belfast Demolition of 4 1/2 storey rear return. Upper 

level extended to facilitate plant

Consent Granted



Reference Number Location Proposal Decision

LA04/2017/0043/F Parklands Knocknagoney  Dale 

Knocknagoney Belfast

Demolition of existing building and 

construction of residential development 

consisting of 104 apartments (18no 1 bed, 

83no. 2 bed and 3no. 3 bed) with associated 

fitness suite, car parking and landscaping

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/0085/DCA 100 Eglantine Avenue Belfast BT9 

6EU

 Demolition of existing ground floor return Consent Granted

LA04/2017/0097/DC Lands south of 25 Harberton Park 

Belfast

Discharge of condition 3 of planning 

application Z/2012/0645/RM

Approval

LA04/2017/0260/F 47 Knockvale Park Knock Belfast 5 

6HJ.

2 storey rear extension and attic conversion 

with associated works.

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/0291/O 81 Percy Street Belfast BT13 2HT Replace existing temporary wooden framed 

structures with 3 storey creche and nursery 

with after schools

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/0334/F 32-36 University Road Belfast Shop front modifications and flat roof 

renewal. Internal alterations and 

refurbishment works.

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/0378/F Vacant site formerly nos 130 132 134 

Stranmillis Road and nos 1 and 3 

Ridgeway Street Stranmillis Belfast BT9 

5DT

9no 2 bedroom apartments, 2 parking 

spaces and on site parking (Amended 

Scheme)

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/0465/F Lands accessed via 578 Antrim Road 

(West Side) between Innisfayle and 

Waterloo Parks Belfast. Chapel of 

Resurrection (C of I) to centre of site.

Residential development-25 units comprising 

3 townhouses, 6 No. detached. 16 No. semi 

detached dwellings. As well as the 

completion of restoration works to the 

external fabric of the Chapel of the 

Resurrection (amended plans and 

description)

Permission Granted



Reference Number Location Proposal Decision

LA04/2017/0510/RM Lands at Castlehill south of Woodcroft 

Heights and east of Glenview Avenue 

and Castlegrange Belfast BT5 7GU

Residential development comprising 23 

detached and 104 semi detached dwellings 

and 3 town houses (total 130), access and 

road infrastructure, landscaping and public 

open space to include an equipped 

children's play area.

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/0738/F Shunter's Accommodation York Road 

Maintenance Depot North Derby 

Street Belfast BT15 3HN

Single storey side extension & refurbishment Permission Granted

LA04/2017/0798/A Oxford Street Outside Waterfront Hall 

BT1 9UA

To incorporate a six sheet digital unit into 

Belfast Rapid Transport bus stop shelter.

Consent Granted

LA04/2017/0869/F 178 Upper Newtownards Road 

Belfast BT4 3ES

Retrospective change of use of ground floor 

of dwelling to linguistic training services and 

provision of front ramp to facilitate disabled 

access.

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/0896/F Boucher Square Boucher Crescent 

Belfast BT12 6HU

Erection of restaurant café unit Permission Granted

LA04/2017/0902/F 374-376 Falls Road Co. Antrim BT12 

6DG.

Change of use from retail/tanning salon to 

exhibition and interpretive centre. 2nd floor 

rear extension. One storey side extension. 2 

storey side extension with terrace. Elevation 

changes including new entrance.

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/0919/F Colin Park 115 Blacks Road Belfast 

BT10 0NF

Construction of Sports Dome with internal 

lighting, machine room and 3M security 

fence (Additional Information)

Permission Granted



Reference Number Location Proposal Decision

LA04/2017/0940/F 76 Marlborough Park North Belfast 

BT9 6SJ

Proposed attic conversion with rear dormer 

extension and rooflight window to front. 

Alterations to roof over rear first floor 

bedroom

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/0954/DCA 2 Maryville Park Malone Belfast 

BT9 6LN

Demolition of part side and rear walls Consent Granted

LA04/2017/0956/F 13 Windsor Park Belfast BT9 6FQ Single storey side and rear extension. First 

floor side extension. Elevation changes 

including new dormer windows. Associated 

works.

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/0958/F 2 Maryville Park Malone Belfast 

BT9 6LN

Single storey side and rear extension with 

ramped access

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/1000/F 10 Lancedean Road Belfast BT6 

9QP

Basement rear extension with roof top patio 

and 2 storey rear extension

Permission Refused

LA04/2017/1062/F 71 Belmont Church Road Belfast BT4 

3FG

2 storey rear extension and new driveway 

access to existing semi detached dwelling 

(Retrospective)

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/1106/DCA 13 Windsor Park Belfast BT9 6FQ Demolition of existing garage, conservatory 

and parts of the walls.

Consent Granted

LA04/2017/1163/A 18 Donegall Square North Belfast 

BT1 5GB

1 no illuminated projecting sign Consent Granted



Reference Number Location Proposal Decision

LA04/2017/1324/A Unit 2 Tollgate House 39 Bradbury 

Place Belfast BT7 1RR

Shop sign and projecting signage Consent Granted

LA04/2017/1343/F 16 Squires Hill Crescent Belfast 

BT14 8RE

2 Storey side extension and single storey 

rear extension. Front ramped access

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/1367/F Land 20m south west of no.62 Boucher 

Road

Change of use to car/van rental facility with 

removal of existing depot building and 

erection of new modular office building with 

adjacent forecourt canopy and rear car wash 

area, boundary paladin fencing and existing 

access upgraded.

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/1397/HSC Belfast Oil Terminal  Airport Road 

West Belfast BT3 9EA

Application for hazardous substance consent Consent Granted

LA04/2017/1426/F Tollgate House Unit 2 39 Bradbury 

Place Belfast BT7 1RR

Change of use from ground floor office to 

café/restaurant.

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/1523/NMC 28-30 Great Patrick Street Belfast 

BT1 2LT

Non Material Change to Z/2014/1657/F 

comprising amendment to materials on gable 

elevation

Consent Refused

LA04/2017/1525/F Former Clinic lands between 2 and 4 

Gilnahirk Rise Belfast

Demolition of existing building on site and 

erection of 3 No. detached dwellings.

Permission Granted



Reference Number Location Proposal Decision

LA04/2017/1530/A Boucher Road O/S Olympia Leisure 

Centre Belfast BT12 6HR

1 end panel display screen sign consisting of 

internal sign and external static poster sign. 

(Adshel Bus Shelter)

Consent Granted

LA04/2017/1547/A Adjacent to Lidl Shore Road Belfast 

BT15 3QA

1 end panel display screen sign consisting of 

internal sign and external static poster sign 

(Adshel Bus Shelter)

Consent Granted

LA04/2017/1548/A O/S 13 Cregagh Road Belfast BT6 

8PX

Conversion of existing six sheet display unit 

incorporated into an existing Adshel Bus 

Shelter to a six sheet digital display screen.

Consent Granted

LA04/2017/1553/DCA 76 Marlborough Park North Belfast 

BT9 6SJ

Demolition of roof of rear return. Demolition 

of first floor roof adjacent to party wall.

Consent Granted

LA04/2017/1556/F 158 Ballysillan Road Belfast BT14 

7QR

Change of use from commercial to coffee 

shop and office

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/1605/NMC 2 Shanlieve Park Belfast BT14 8JE Non Material Change to LA04/2017/0123/F Consent Refused

LA04/2017/1670/DC Land south of Franklin Street East of 

Brunswick Street and West of 

McClintock Street Belfast BT2 7GX

Discharge of condition Nos. 3 and 6 of 

Planning Permission ref. LA04/2015/0418/F

Approval

LA04/2017/1684/F 159-161 Broadway Belfast BT12 6HY Change of use from 2 flats to children and 

families learning zone and amalgamation 

with adjacent childcare facility. Elevation 

changes.

Permission Granted



Reference Number Location Proposal Decision

LA04/2017/1686/F 48 The Green Dunmurry BT17 1QA Erection of 2 dwellings Permission Granted

LA04/2017/1696/F 29 Wynchurch Road Rosetta 

Belfast BT6 0JH

Single storey rear extension. 2No. Garden 

sheds to rear.

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/1706/LDE Units 1-4 Duncrue Pass Duncrue 

Road Belfast BT3 9BS

Waste oil tank for temporary storage of 

waste oil

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/1720/A Saintfield Road Opposite  Homebase 

at Forestside Belfast

Conversion of existing six sheet display unit 

incorporated into an existing Adshel Bus 

Shelter to a six sheet digital screen.

Consent Granted

LA04/2017/1743/A Middlepath Street approx. 15m east 

of Station Street car park Belfast

Convert existing standard 96 sheet display 

panel with overhead external strip lighting to 

a 96 sheet internally illuminated light box 

display unit.

Consent Granted

LA04/2017/1753/DC Victoria Wharf Titanic Quarter 

Queens Road Queens Island 

Belfast BT3 9DT

Discharge of condition 8 of 

LA04/2016/2430/F

Approval

LA04/2017/1757/F 34 Wandsworth Road Belfast BT4 

3LT

2 storey side and rear extension. Alteration 

to window openings to existing house.

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/1759/A 74(b) Andersonstown Road Belfast 

BT11 9AN

Fascia sign Consent Granted



Reference Number Location Proposal Decision

LA04/2017/1762/F 1 Rugby Avenue Belfast BT7 1RD Change of use from first and second floor 

offices to 2 No. flats including 3 storey rear 

extension, replacement single storey bays 

and elevation changes (amended scheme)

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/1814/F 497499 + 501 Crumlin Road Belfast 

BT14 7GA

Erection of four storey building with ground 

floor retail and offices (Use Class A2 / B1(A)) 

and community facilities (Use Class D1) on 

the floors above (Amended Description).

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/1857/F Located on the pavement outside TK 

Max Castle Place Belfast BT1 1GA

1No. Smart Hub Kiosk with double sided 

digital screen.

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/1858/F Located on the pavement outside 

House Of Fraser 111-115 Victoria 

Street Belfast BT1 4JW

1No. Smart Hub Kiosk with double sided 

digital screen.

Permission Refused

LA04/2017/1859/F 5 Arthur Street Belfast BT1 5PY  1No. Smart Hub Kiosk with double sided 

digital screen.

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/1865/A Located on the pavement outside 

House of Fraser 111-115 Victoria 

Street Belfast BT1 4JW

Double sided digital display panel on a 

smarthub kiosk

Consent Refused

LA04/2017/1871/A 5 Arthur Street Belfast BT1 5PY Double sided digital display panel on a 

smarthub kiosk

Consent Granted



Reference Number Location Proposal Decision

LA04/2017/1872/A Located on the pavement outside TK 

Max castle Place Belfast BT1 1GA

Double sided digital display panel on a 

smarthub kiosk

Consent Granted

LA04/2017/1885/F Apartments 702 704 705 1 Ulster 

Street Belfast BT1 3ES

Reconfiguration to create 2 new apartments Permission Granted

LA04/2017/1921/DCA 32-36 University Road Belfast Internal stairs, walls, fixtures, fittings & 

sundry items to form shell retail unit. Minor 

sections of ground floor façade to 

accommodate new external door and 

shopfront glazing ( to be consistent with 

adjacent premises).

Consent Granted

LA04/2017/1932/A 32-34 Ann Street Belfast BT1 4EG Projecting Sign Consent Refused

LA04/2017/1937/F Pirrie House Pirrie Road Belfast Variation of conditions 11 and 13 of 

Z/2014/1422/F which refer to tree survey

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/1942/F 103 South Parade Belfast BT7 2GN Single storey rear extension, replacement of 

front single dormer with pair of dormers. 2 

no. rear windows.

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/1953/F 28 St Jude's Avenue Belfast BT7 

2GZ

Demolition of rear and external walls. Single 

storey rear extension. Revision of rear door 

and window. Erection of rear balustrade, 

stairs and side wall.

Permission Granted



Reference Number Location Proposal Decision

LA04/2017/1992/F 82 Malone Road & 1a Beechlands 

Belfast BT9 5HP & BT9 5HU.

Ground floor side and rear extensions. First 

floor rear extension. Roofspace conversion 

with rear dormer. Elevation changes. 

Erection of wall and gate.

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2028/F 8 Cabinhill Gardens Belfast BT5 7AP 2 storey rear extension Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2039/DC Site at Sydenham Road Bounded by 

Cuming Road and Hamilton Road 

Belfast BT3 9DU

Discharge of conditions 6 LA04/2016/0089/F Refusal

LA04/2017/2044/DC Site at Sydenham Road Bounded By 

Cumming Road and Hamilton Road 

Belfast BT3 9DU

Discharge of condition 9 LA04/2016/0089/F Refusal

LA04/2017/2049/F Lands at Belfast Boat Club Hay 

Island 12 Lockview Road Belfast 

BT9 5FJ

Erection of temporary (3 years) portacabin 

and associated works.

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2052/NMC 1 Greenlea gardens Belfast BT5 7JD Non material change LA04/2016/1610/F Consent Refused

LA04/2017/2054/F 72 Sunningdale Park Belfast BT14 

6RX

Single storey side and rear extension with 

raised decking

Permission Granted



Reference Number Location Proposal Decision

LA04/2017/2057/F 1 Kensington Manor Belfast BT5 6PE Two storey side and rear extension with 

terrace

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2073/F 10 Brassey Street Belfast BT12 5DG Proposed roofspace conversion creating 

dormer to rear of property

Permission Refused

LA04/2017/2076/DCA 82 Malone Road and 1a Beechlands 

Belfast BT9 5HP

Demolition of walls, stairs, landing and part 

removal of rear extension and rear roof. 

Ground floor side and rear extensions. First 

floor rear extension. Roofspace conversion 

with rear dormer, erection of wall and gate, 

elevation changes

Consent Granted

LA04/2017/2083/DC Lands to the south of Wolfhill Avenue 

and Ligoniel Road Belfast

Discharge of conditions 12 and 14 of 

Z/2012/1279/F

Refusal

LA04/2017/2101/F Hazeldene Botanic TTW 41 Botanic 

Avenue Belfast BT7 1JG

Installation of an ATM and replacement of 

door

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2107/F 22 Marmont Drive Belfast BT4 2GT Single storey rear extension with new site 

door to garage.

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2108/F 34 Candahar Street Belfast BT7 3AR Change of use of single dwelling to 2 self-

contained flats  (retrospective) (amended 

description)

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2122/F 14 Edenvale Park Belfast BT17 0EJ 2 storey rear extension with patio and 

terrace.

Permission Granted



Reference Number Location Proposal Decision

LA04/2017/2135/F Corporation Square Belfast Installation of CCTV camera column with 

associated works

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2145/F 35 Woodcot Avenue Ballyhackamore 

Belfast BT5 5JB

Retrospective use of dwelling as HMO Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2157/F 40 The Green Dunmurry Belfast 

BT17 0QA

 Proposed single storey integral side 

garage/carport extension with utility room 

(and retention of patio area and garden wall)

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2169/F 72 Knockvale Park Belfast BT5 6HJ 2 storey side and rear extension with 

elevation changes.

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2174/F 17 Chichester Park North Belfast Single storey side/rear extension with 

ramped access.

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2175/F 33 Hopefield Avenue Belfast Partial demolition of rear wall and erection of 

single storey rear extension

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2177/F 92 Ballymurphy Road Ballymurphy 

Belfast BT12 7JN

Single storey rear extension and erection of 

side window

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2182/F 33 Marlborough Park Central Belfast 

BT9 6HN

Single storey rear extension (Retrospective) Permission Granted



Reference Number Location Proposal Decision

LA04/2017/2210/F 52 Upper Arthur Street Belfast BT1 

4GJ

Remove Condition 3 of Z/2014/1146/F 

regarding frying of food.

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2212/F Colby House Stranmillis Court 

Belfast BT9 5RR

Removal of current vacant building to 

facilitate the extension of the existing car 

park.

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2227/LBC Donegall Street Congregational 

Church 101-103 Donegall Street 

Belfast BT1 2FJ

Abutment to the original party wall of the 

Congregational Church, partial demolition of 

rear boundary wall. These proposals are due 

to the construction of the adjacent University 

of Ulster.

Consent Granted

LA04/2017/2235/F 126 Finaghy Road North Belfast 

BT10 0JD

Single storey rear extension Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2245/LDE 51 Ballyhanwood Road Dundonald 

Belfast BT5 7SW

Extension of site curtilage to the north and 

west.

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2254/F 96 Larkfield Road Belfast BT4 1QF Dormer window to rear roof (part of roof 

space conversion)

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2259/F 12 Mount Merrion Gardens 

Ballmaconaghy Belfast BT6 0FW

Demolition of part of rear walls, 2 storey side 

extension, 2 storey rear extension, attic 

conversion with rear dormer

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2261/F 35 Old Cavehill Road Belfast BT15 

5GT

2 storey rear extension and single storey 

side extension.

Permission Granted



Reference Number Location Proposal Decision

LA04/2017/2262/F 46 Glencregagh Road Belfast BT8 

6FZ

Single storey front, side and rear extension 

to include car port, store and first floor 

balcony. Elevation changes

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2263/DC 38-42 Bank Street Belfast Discharge of conditions 3  

LA04/2015/0920/F.

Refusal

LA04/2017/2275/F Unit 2  Lynden Court 18 Cregagh 

Road Belfast BT6 9EP

Change of use from retail unit with 

associated storage to Café/coffee shop with 

associated storage. To include the provision 

of an extraction system.

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2290/F 24 Balmoral Avenue Belfast Erection of a wall with automated gates Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2293/F Musgrave Marketplace 1-15 Dargan 

Crescent Duncrue Road Belfast 

BT3 9HJ

Change of use of wholesale warehouse and 

cash and carry to general retail sales (class 

A1) comprising 116 sqm of floorspace.

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2311/F 14 Rosetta Drive Belfast BT7 3HL Proposed single storey rear extension, first 

floor rear extension and rear patio

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2312/F 52 Old Cavehill Road Belfast BT15 

5FH

Single storey side and rear extension Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2313/F 53 Summerhill Drive Belfast BT17 

0RE

Single storey rear extension Permission Granted



Reference Number Location Proposal Decision

LA04/2017/2315/F 21 Slievemoyne Park Belfast BT15 

5GZ

Single storey extension to rear Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2317/F 117a Stewartstown Park Belfast 

BT11 9GJ

Removal of garage door and replacement 

with brickwork

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2322/F 78 Circular Road Belfast BT4 2GD Partial demolition of 2 no. walls, single storey 

side extension and single storey side and 

rear extension with rear patio.

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2324/F 3 Glenview Gardens Belfast BT5 7LY Single storey side extension Permission Refused

LA04/2017/2355/F 29 Finaghy Road North Belfast BT11 

9EG

Single storey rear extension Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2364/F 38 Clareglen Ballysillan Belfast 

BT14 8LU

First floor side extension above existing 

garage.

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2365/F 72 Shandon Park Belfast BT5 6NZ 2 storey rear extension. Elevation changes Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2387/F 45 Eliza Street Close Belfast BT7 

2BS

Single storey side extension with ramped 

access

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2389/F 64 Willesden Park Belfast BT9 5GY First floor rear extension and widening of 

driveway.

Permission Granted



Reference Number Location Proposal Decision

LA04/2017/2395/F 24 Belmont Park Belfast BT4 3DU Demolition of rear conservatory to facilitate 

single storey replacement rear extension.

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2398/F 2 Shaw Street Belfast BT4 1PT Two storey rear extension. Relocation of rear 

yard door.

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2403/F The McClay Library 10 College Park 

Avenue Belfast BT7 1LP.

Queens University McClay Library expansion 

to incorporate David Bates building with 

courtyard infill and two storey extension to 

College Park Avenue elevation.

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2414/F 22 Glenmillan Park Belfast BT4 2JE 2 storey front, side and rear extension. Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2421/NMC 10 Eccles Street Belfast BT13 3GS Non material change to LA04/2017/1656/F Consent Granted

LA04/2017/2425/LDP 17 Stirling Avenue Belfast Single storey side extension with associated 

works

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2427/LDP 15 Glastonbury Avenue Belfast Erection of decorative pergola Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2433/F 56 Knockbreda Park Belfast BT6 0HF Ground floor single storey side and rear 

extension

Permission Granted



Reference Number Location Proposal Decision

LA04/2017/2436/F 5 Briarwood Park Belfast BT5 7HZ Two storey side extension with car parking 

provision at front

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2440/LBC Custom House Custom House 

Square Belfast BT1 3ET

Lightning conductor spike to be installed to 

chimney on the North West side of building 

to improve lightning protection.

Consent Granted

LA04/2017/2455/F 16 Oregon Gardens Belfast Single storey side extension Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2462/F 2A-48C (Evans Only) Carrigart Avenue 

Belfast BT11 9HU

Erection of new bin enclosures Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2480/A Unit 1E Ballygowan Road Belfast 

BT5 2LH

Façade signage- Concealed back lighter with 

raised individual letter signage on 20mm off 

stands underlined with a green LED strip 

light, all on metal board.

Consent Granted

LA04/2017/2483/DCA 17 Chichester Park North Belfast 

BT15

Single storey rear extension being proposed 

to dwelling. Portion of side gable wall needs 

demolished to accommodate door opening 

into same.

Consent Granted

LA04/2017/2484/DC 20 Piney Lane Malone Road Belfast 

BT9 5QS

Discharge of conditions 5 and 9 

Z/2014/1557/F

Approval

LA04/2017/2485/F 10 The Manor Blacks Road Belfast 

BT10 0PL

Single storey rear extension with ramped 

access. Elevation changes

Permission Granted



Reference Number Location Proposal Decision

LA04/2017/2487/A Ground Floor Lesley Buildings 1-5 

Wellington Place and 55-65 Fountain 

Street Belfast

3No. internally illuminated LED lettering 

fascia signs, 3 No. internally illuminated 

descriptor signs and 4No. internally 

illuminated wall-mounted projecting signs.

Consent Granted

LA04/2017/2493/F 54-60 Whitewell Road Belfast BT36 

7ES

Proposed alterations to boundary treatments 

of approved residential development under 

planning permission LA04/2016/1491/F

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2499/F 5 Ardnava Road Belfast BT12 6FF Roof space conversion with rear dormer Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2506/F 1 Mayfield Close Blacks Road 

Belfast BT10 0QS

Single storey side extension Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2509/F 237 Ravenhill Road Belfast 2 storey rear/side extension, single storey 

rear extension. New gate to rear parking 

area.

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2520/F Custom House Custom House 

Square Belfast BT1 3ET

Installation of lightning conductor spike Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2551/F 36 Mount Eagles Way Belfast BT17 

0WT

Proposed roofspace conversion creating 

dormer to the rear of the property.

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2556/A 411-419 Upper Newtownards Road 

Belfast

Shop signage with steel lettering back lit with 

LED lighting fixed to cladding panel and 

existing brickwork.

Consent Granted



Reference Number Location Proposal Decision

LA04/2017/2557/F 3 Fruithill Park Belfast BT11 8GD Erection of detached garage (Retrospective) Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2559/A 90 Sydenham Road Belfast BT3 9DJ 2 No. Illuminated vinyl graphics in PPC 

aluminium lightboxes.

Consent Granted

LA04/2017/2568/DC Site at Sydenham Road Bounded by 

Cuming Road and Hamilton Road 

Belfast BT3 9DU

Discharge of condition 08 LA04/2016/0089/F Refusal

LA04/2017/2571/RM Site Adjacent to 2 Coolnasilla Park 

East Balydownfine Belfast BT11 

8LA

Proposed 3 bedroom end terrace dwelling 

attached to 2 Coolnasilla Park East, new 

dwelling to have vehicular access to front 

with parking for 2 spaces.

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2580/A 47 Arthur Street Belfast BT1 4LB Shop sign Consent Granted

LA04/2017/2581/F 206 Tates Avenue Belfast Two storey rear extension. Erection of 

ground floor side window

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2593/DC 233-263 Shore Road Belfast BT15 

3PW

Discharge of condition 6 LA04/2015/0529/F Approval

LA04/2017/2604/F Second Floor 49 Donegall Place 

Belfast BT1 5EE

Change of use of 2nd floor from retail to 

office.

Permission Granted



Reference Number Location Proposal Decision

LA04/2017/2607/F 62 Sydney Street West Belfast BT13 

3GA

Single storey rear extension Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2608/LBC Block A/ School House Methodist 

College Belfast 1 Malone Road 

Belfast BT9 6BY

Erection of photovoltaic panels to roof of 

proposed rear extensions as outlined in 

Planning Reference: LA04/2017/0927/LBC & 

LA04/2017/0499/F

Consent Granted

LA04/2017/2616/NMC Cordia Lodge 67 Malone Road 

Belfast

Non Material Change to LA04/2017/0913/F Consent Granted

LA04/2017/2630/LDE Apartment 2 Merrion Hall 73 

Ulsterville Avenue Belfast BT9 7AT

House in Multiple Occupancy (HMO) Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2641/DCA 33 Marlborough Park Central Belfast 

BT9 6HN

Single storey extension to rear of dwelling 

which involved the partial demolition of a 

single storey rear return. (Retrospective).

Consent Granted

LA04/2017/2647/NMC Lands at the corner of Ormeau 

Embankment and  Ravenhill Road 

Adjacent to Park Parade Belfast

Non Material Change to Z/2010/0064/F Consent Granted

LA04/2017/2650/F 17 Knockbreda Drive Belfast BT6 

0HJ

Single storey rear extension with raised patio 

area.

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2666/DC Former St Bernadette's PS Site 

Glenanlina Road Belfast BT12 7JG

Discharge of condition 8 Z/2014/0781/F Approval



Reference Number Location Proposal Decision

LA04/2017/2669/CONTPO19 Adelaide Park Belfast BT9 6FX Reduction in height and spread. Consent Granted

LA04/2017/2673/F 83 Stockmans Lane Belfast BT9 7JD 2 storey rear extension. Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2693/F 64 Shandon Park Belfast BT5 6NY 2 storey side and rear extension. Elevation 

changes.

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2723/F 80 Knock Eden Park Belfast BT6 0JG Single storey side and rear extension Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2737/DC Peter Pan Complex 90-120 Springfield 

Road Adjoining Springfield Avenue 

Belfast

Discharge of condition 15 Z/2014/1665/F Approval

LA04/2017/2758/F Lagan Meadows 58 Knightsbridge 

Park Belfast BT9 5EH

Temporary approval for the provision of a 

modular unit to accommodate an office and 

meeting room and erection of fence.

Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2772/A City Quays 2 Clarendon Road 

Belfast BT1 3YD

Rooftop illuminated building sign on south 

east elevation.

Consent Granted



Reference Number Location Proposal Decision

LA04/2017/2777/DC 81-107 York Street Belfast Discharge of condition 9 relating to Piling 

Risk Assessments of LA04/2016/2385/F

Refusal

LA04/2017/2792/LDP 18 Ferguson Drive Belfast BT4 2AZ Single storey rear extension Permission Granted

LA04/2017/2795/DC 41-49 Queen Street 24-30 College 

Street and 29 Wellington Place Belfast

Discharge of clause 3 of the section 76 

agreement for LA04/2015/1252/F

Refusal

LA04/2017/2803/CONTPO1 Sandown Park Belfast BT5 6JP Request to prune 3 trees Consent Granted

LA04/2017/2808/DC Block A Annadale Embankment 

Bounded By Annadale Crescent & 

Annadale Drive Belfast

Discharge of condition 13 Z/2006/0457/F Approval

LA04/2017/2809/DC 41-49 Queen Street 24-30 College 

Street and 29 Wellington Place 

Belfast

Discharge of condition 2 LA04/2017/1383/F Approval

LA04/2018/0042/CONTPO34 Eglantine Avenue Belfast BT9 

6DX

Reduce crown of cherry by 2-3 metres and 

maple by 1 metre.

Consent Granted

LA04/2018/0043/CONTPO49 Osborne Park Belfast BT9 6JP Reduce overhang on Laurel tree and crown 

by 2 metres on Oak tree.

Consent Granted



Reference Number Location Proposal Decision

LA04/2018/0044/CONTPOKingsleigh 31a&b Kings Road 

Belfast.

Crown reduce by 1-2m Consent Granted

LA04/2018/0045/CONTPO30-32 Eglantine Avenue Belfast BT9 

6DX

Remove tree Consent Granted

LA04/2018/0060/CONTPO7 Cyprus Avenue Belfast BT5 5NT Remove tree which is causing damage Consent Granted

LA04/2018/0063/NMC McDonalds Restaurant Connswater 

Link Belfast BT5 4AF

Non material change to LA04/2017/1990/F Consent Granted

LA04/2018/0078/CONTPO57A Knock Road Belfast BT5 6LB Removal of Oak and Sycamore trees. Consent Granted

LA04/2018/0082/DC Tasty Foods 6-7 Pembroke Loop 

Road Poleglass Springbank Industrial 

Estate Dunmurry BT17 0QL

Discharge of condition 1 LA04/2016/1375/F Approval





Development Management Report
Committee Application

Summary
Committee Meeting Date: 13 February 2018 
Application ID: LA04/2017/1489/F  
Proposal:
Proposed ground excavations from a 'Borrow Pit' (overall dimensions 
approximately  170-200m length, 22-50m width, 6m depth) to provide 
30,000m3 of clean natural clay soils capping material for use within 
remediation capping layers and associated Remedial Strategy for the 
approved Mixed Use Residential and Commercial Development 
(granted permission under Ref Z/2013/1434/F). Ground excavations to 
be undertaken in a phased and progressive approach from south to 
north to limit the size of the exposed excavated area at any one time 
with resulting 'Borrow Pit' void backfilled with existing made ground 
material comprising of sandy gravelly clay with angular gravel (hard-
core) and also including sporadic asbestos cement fragments 
(typically less than 5cm in size and equating to approximately 0.015% 
of the made ground mass) from within the development site and 
covered with a remediation capping layer in line with remedial 
strategy.

Location:
Lands at Former Visteon 
Factory,
Blacks Road,
Belfast.  

Referral Route: Variation to Remediation Strategy related to Major Application
Recommendation: Approval
Applicant Name and Address:
Radius Housing
3 Redburn Square
Holywood
BT18 9HZ

Agent Name and Address:
TSA Planning
29 Linenhall Street
Belfast
BT2 8AB

Executive Summary: Full application seeking planning permission for ground excavations from 
a 'Borrow Pit' (overall dimensions approximately 170-200m length, 22-50m width, 6m depth) to 
provide clean soils for use within remediation capping layers and associated Remedial Strategy 
for the approved Mixed Use Residential and Commercial Development (granted permission under 
Ref Z/2013/1434/F). Ground excavations to be undertaken in a phased and progressive manner.

The key issues in the assessment of the proposed development include:
- The acceptability of a borrow pit at this location
- Contamination and Environmental Impact
- Impact on Road Network
- Impact on Protected Sites
- Impact on Amenity
- Flooding

The site is located within the development limits of the Belfast Metropolitan Area. 

The proposed borrow pit will provide clean material to be used in a capping layer as part of a 
wider remediation strategy to help facilitate the redevelopment of the former Ford Visteon site, in 
accordance with previous approval for a mixed use scheme (Z/2013/1434/F – Approved January 
2016). As part of this remediation process the contaminated soils present on the site will be 



Application ID: LA04/2017/1489/F

Page 2 of 14

removed in a controlled manner with a small percentage placed within the pit.

The proposal has been assessed against the following Policies – Strategic Planning Policy for 
Northern Ireland, Planning Policy Statement 2 – ‘Natural Heritage’, Planning Policy Statement 3 -  
Access Movement and Parking and Planning Policy Statement 11 – ‘Planning and Waste 
Management’.

NIEA Natural Heritage, Health and Safety Executive for Northern Ireland, Rivers Agency, DETI 
Geological Survey and Shared Environmental Services have offered no objections to the 
proposal. 

DFI Roads has no objections to the proposal given the reduction in the number of two-way 
construction vehicle journeys and have recommended approval subject to conditions. 

Environmental Health and NIEA have no objections subject to a number of planning conditions to 
ensure appropriate implementation of works and on-going monitoring.

Having had regard to the development plan, relevant planning policies, and other material 
considerations, it is determined that the proposal should be approved subject to the conditions 
detailed below.

There has been no representations received from members of the public.

Meetings have been held with two elected members.

Recommendation 
Approve subject to conditions set out in the case officer report. 

Committee is requested to delegate the consideration of the final wording of the conditions to the 
Senior Planning and Place officer.



Application ID: LA04/2017/1489/F

Page 3 of 14

Case Officer Report
Site Location Plan



Application ID: LA04/2017/1489/F

Page 4 of 14

1.0
1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

Description of Proposed Development
Ground will be excavated from a 'Borrow Pit' (overall dimensions approximately 170-
200m length, 22-50m width, 6m depth) to provide 30,000m3 of clean natural clay soils 
capping material for use within remediation capping layers and associated Remedial 
Strategy for the approved Mixed Use Residential and Commercial Development (granted 
permission under Ref Z/2013/1434/F).

Made ground (including contaminated soils) will be removed from the borrow pit in 
phases, temporarily stockpiled on the site, and covered to prevent any asbestos release 
to the air. Following removal of the made ground, the natural soils will be excavated 
(within the extent of the red line) and temporarily stockpiled for reuse within capping 
layers and general fill. Following the excavation of clean subsoils any made ground 
(minus all visual asbestos fragments) shall be deposited in the pit. A capping layer of 
clean soil shall be placed on the fill material as soon as reasonably possible. This phased 
and progressive approach is diagrammatically illustrated on the cross section above.

Further to the placement of made ground into the borrow pit a capping layer, formed by 
site won materials, of at least 1.5m will cover the made ground which will include a 
puncture resistant warning marker membrane. The upper surface of the capping layer will 
comprise of 200mm of subsoil and 200mm of topsoil. The side of the borrow pit will be 
sloped at an angle of approximately 45 degrees.

Excavation and infilling will occur in phases from south to north i.e. the area of the borrow 
pit will not be excavated or infilled in its entirety.

The excavation/ infilling will occur as follows:
- Made ground excavated from borrow pit and stock-piled within application site (as 

indicated by red line on site location map above)
- Clean soils stockpiled on ‘approved residential’ part of site
- Stockpiled made ground placed into void
- Capping layer added to borrow pit

2.0
2.1

2.2

2.3

Description of Site
Substantial brownfield site. Crushed concrete from the demolition of the Former Ford 
Visteon factory is present on the surface of the site, and has been laid in 300-400mm 
deep haul-roads, across the former footprint of the building.

The proposed borrow pit is located in the eastern part of the site. The south-eastern 
corner of the former Ford Visteon factory was previously located on the application site, 
as shown on the site location map above. The building has now been demolished and the 
site cleared. The site is relatively flat throughout with the footprint of the original building 
and the area of hard standing which provided the car park still evident. There are two 
established access roads leading to the wider site, one from Finaghy Road North to the 
east, running parallel to the eastern boundary of the proposed borrow pit, and one from 
Blacks Road to the west, running parallel and adjacent to the Mayfield development.

The site is located within the development limits of Belfast as designated in both the 
Belfast Urban Area Plan and the proposed Draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan. The site 
is zoned as existing employment/ industry (BT11/29) in the draft area plan and south of 
zoning BT102/19 (Ladybrook SLNCI).

Planning Assessment of Policy and other Material Considerations
3.0

3.1

Planning History

Z/2008/0803/RM - Proposed mixed use residential (210 No. residential units) and class 



Application ID: LA04/2017/1489/F

Page 5 of 14

3.2

3.3

B business park development (3,345 sq m) (approved 17th September 2009). 

Z/2006/2339/O - Proposed mixed use residential and business park development 
(approved 28th August 2007)

Z/2013/1434/F - Demolition of existing buildings and proposed comprehensive mixed-
use development comprising 244no social and private/affordable residential units (with 
access from Black's Road), with associated public open space/linear park. Non-
residential element to include community centre and class B business units (class 
B1b/B1c/B2 uses) with associated parking and access from Finaghy Road North. 
(approved 8th January 2016)

4.0 Policy Framework
4.1 Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2015 
4.2 Strategic Planning Policy Statement for Northern Ireland

Planning Policy Statement 2 – Natural Heritage
Planning Policy Statement 3 - Access, Movement and Parking
Planning Policy Statement 11 – Planning and Waste Management
Planning Policy Statement 15 - (Revised) Planning and Flood Risk 

5.0 Statutory Consultees
DFI Roads – No objection subject to conditions
Rivers Agency – No objection
DFC Historic Monuments Unit – No objection
DAERA NIEA Waste Management Unit – No objection subject to conditions
Health and Safety Executive for Northern Ireland – No Comment
DETI Geological Survey – No objection 
DoF CPD Structural Engineering – No objection
NI Water – No objection
Shared Environmental Services – No objection

6.0 Non-Statutory Consultees
Environmental Health BCC – No objection subject to conditions

7.0 Representations – None received
8.0 Other Material Considerations

 Former Visteon Factory Site, Belfast. Feasibility Report: Borrow Pit Investigation 
and Assessment. September 2016. Fold Housing Association. Former Visteon 
Factory, Blacks Road, Belfast;

 Updated Generic and Detailed Quantitative Risk Assessment, Detailed Remedial 
Strategy October 2016;

 Former Visteon Factory, Blacks Road, Belfast. Updated Remedial Strategy 
A082867. March 2017 with a Remedial Implementation Plan supplied by 
Fortitude Environmental; and 

 Correspondence dated 8th November 2017. WYG. Clarification to Environmental 
Health Queries raised at meeting held at Belfast
City Council on 26/10/17.

9.0
9.1

9.2

Assessment
The key issues in the assessment of the proposed development include:

- The acceptability of a borrow pit at this location
- Contamination and Environmental Impact
- Impact on Road Network
- Impact on Protected Sites
- Impact on Amenity 
- Flooding

The acceptability of a borrow pit at this location
Following the recent Court of Appeal decision on BMAP, the extant development plan is 



Application ID: LA04/2017/1489/F

Page 6 of 14

9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

9.7

9.8

9.9

now the BUAP. However, given the stage at which the Draft BMAP had reached pre-
adoption through a period of independent examination, the policies within the Draft 
BMAP still carry weight and are a material consideration in the determination of planning 
applications. The weight to be afforded is a matter of judgement for the decision maker.

The site is located within the development limits of Belfast as designated in both the 
Belfast Urban Area Plan and draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan (dBMAP). The site is 
zoned as existing employment/ industry (BT11/29) in dBMAP.

It is useful to start by outlining the reason why a borrow pit has been proposed at this 
location. A mixed use scheme was previously approved on the site in January 2016, 
subsequently a remediation strategy has been proposed to ensure the site is made 
suitable for the approved end use. As part of the overall remediation strategy this 
proposed borrow pit has emerged as a sustainable solution to providing a capping layer 
for the site and also providing a pit within which made ground from the surface of the 
site can be deposited. Clean soils shall be excavated to be used to provide a capping 
layer and as general fill for the site and contaminated made ground which currently 
exists on the site shall in turn be deposited into the resulting void. This will, in theory, 
provide a layer of uncontaminated material on the surface of the site which will sever 
any pollutant linkages, and prevent contact between human receptors and contaminated 
soil. 

The rationale for choosing the location of the borrow pit was based on evidence of trial 
investigations. The area was considered to be low risk in terms of potential on site 
contamination sources as determined by the previous land contamination investigations 
and risk assessments and a lower receptor sensitivity in terms of the overall Visteon 
redevelopment site. 

There are no physical structures or means of retention proposed to facilitate the creation 
of the borrow pit. Borrow pit excavation and infilling will be phased, the entire area of the 
borrow pit will not be excavated/ infilled in its entirety. This phased approach will reduce 
the scale of the soil mounds on the site at any one time and thus minimise any potential 
visual impact while also helping maintain overall ground stability within and adjacent to 
the borrow pit.

Contamination and Environmental Impact 
It is important to note that potential environmental impacts exist across the entire site at 
present (the site subject of the most recent mixed use planning approval). In terms of 
the proposed borrow pit, the works will ultimately play a part in the delivery of the wider 
remediation strategy which was conditioned as part of the latest approval on the site 
(Z/2013/1434/F). 

Of the made ground being placed in the borrow pit, a small percentage will contain 
asbestos. However only made ground with contaminant concentrations less than the 
remedial criteria for a residential capping layer will be placed in the borrow pit. 
Verification will take place prior to any soil movements to ensure this. This will also 
ensure there will be no significant risks to end site users, surrounding residents and 
environmental receptors.

To minimise disruption in the deeper groundwater levels close to the Sherwood 
Sandstone aquifer a minimum depth of 5m of glacial till will remain between the base of 
the borrow pit and the top of the aquifer. This will prevent downward water movements 
and the risk of contamination of the aquifer. The contractor will be responsible for 
ensuring the stability of the borrow pit and preventing deterioration of the materials and 
cross contamination during excavation and infill. Any contaminated made ground that 



Application ID: LA04/2017/1489/F

Page 7 of 14

9.10

9.11

9.12

9.13

9.14

9.15

9.16

9.18

9.19

will be placed into the borrow pit will be subject to satisfactory verification, sampling and 
testing, as outlined above in 9.8.

All temporary stockpiles (of made ground) will be constructed and located to prevent 
cross contamination. Any temporary stockpiles containing asbestos will be covered to 
prevent the release of fibres and will be dampened down to in order to mitigate any risk 
of fibres becoming airborne. All visual asbestos fragments will be hand-picked as 
excavation works proceed and stored in marked bags in a secure area. All other made 
ground materials will be placed directly into the borrow pit and capped.

Environmental Health Service has reviewed the reports and documents submitted as 
part of the application and is content that all unacceptable risks to human health 
associated with the borrow pit development have been appropriately identified and 
characterised. Environmental Health is also content that the proposed mitigation 
measures, detailed within the various remediation strategies and supporting documents 
are appropriate to safeguard human health.     
 
Environmental Health Service have requested that should planning permission be 
granted the conditions detailed below at 11.2-11.4 are attached to any decision notice.

The priorities of DAERA’s Regulation Unit Land and Groundwater Team in assessing 
this proposal were to consider the potential for contamination to be present at the site 
that could impact on environmentally sensitive receptors including groundwater and 
surface water. They have requested that should planning permission be granted that 
conditions detailed below at 11.5 – 11.9 are attached to any decision notice.  

White Young Green’s (WYG) clarifications to NIEA’s advice to Planning dated 7th August 
2017 was provided for comment, in support of the application. Each of these points will 
be addressed below (9.13-9.20 inclusive):

NIEA has noted the details of the location and quantities of Asbestos Containing 
Materials (ACM) to be deposited within the Borrow Pit. Investigations identified asbestos 
across the site area predominantly associated with the area under the floor slab of the 
former factory. The predominant occurrence of visible asbestos was identified across 
the floor slab becoming detectable only as fibres towards the periphery of the slab.

WYG have confirmed that made ground with free product from the highly contaminated 
areas will be removed off site and that only made ground with no free product that also 
meets the agreed remediation criteria in the WYG, Updated Remedial Strategy, 
Reference A082867 dated March 2017 will be deposited in the Borrow Pit.

NIEA have requested that any planning decision, should approval be forthcoming, is 
conditioned to provide a hydrogeological risk assessment to demonstrate no future risks to 
the water receptors from the infill within the Borrow Pit. This assessment will need to be 
supported by site groundwater and surface water monitoring that interfaces with the 
wider site monitoring programme under Application Z/2013/1434/F. A condition is 
recommended below at 11.8 to ensure the collection of this data.

With regard to a Work Plan for the management of site won ACMs NIEA has requested 
that any planning decision is conditioned to provide a Working Plan and timetable for the 
Borrow Pit that clearly presents the management of site-won ACMs in alignment with 
Industry Guidance published by CLAIRE (2016) entitled “Control of Asbestos Regulations 
2012 – Interpretation for Managing and Working with asbestos in Soil and Construction and 
Demolition Materials”.



Application ID: LA04/2017/1489/F

Page 8 of 14

9.20

9.21

9.22

9.23

9.24

9.25

9.26

9.27

The Plan would include details of the work and the actions to control risk and prevent
harm along with the following details:

- nature and expected duration of the work
- number of persons involved
- address and location of where work is to carried out
- method for hand picking asbestos
- stockpile management
- methods use to prevent, control and reduce exposure to asbestos
- air monitoring
- arrangement for disposal of asbestos waste
- type of equipment including personal protective equipment
- proposed borrow pit must be supported by a suitable monitoring programme to

ensure the infill is restricted to homogenous materials with less than 0.1% of
asbestos

- A timetable to support NIEA’s site inspection programme.

Clarifications are noted of the timeline for groundwater remediation (under 
Z/2013/1434/F) and its interface with the management of the proposed Borrow Pit, 
including groundwater remediation on the western boundary of the proposed Borrow Pit. 
Groundwater remediation will be undertaken prior to any works in the areas affected by 
free-phase contamination. This includes any works associated with the proposed borrow 
pit. These works shall be verified prior to any excavations works. Water quality 
monitoring will take place prior to and during the deposition of made ground within the 
borrow pit.

As the proposed development works will be undertaken in a phased manner, similarly 
verification reports will be provided in phases. This will feed into the capping and 
monitoring across the wider site.

Groundwater monitoring boreholes will be installed around the perimeter of the borrow 
pit and will extend at least 1m below the base. Monthly sampling will occur during 
excavation and infilling phases.

In terms of the borrow pit construction a membrane will be placed on top of the fill 
material. This will act as a high visibility marker, to provide a warning that fill material is 
present below.

It is worth noting that any future development in the vicinity of the Borrow Pit under 
application Z/2013/1434/F will need to be supported by a Piling Risk Assessment.  
Given the significant infilling within the borrow pit area, this piling risk assessment will 
need to be further updated prior to development of the borrow pit itself. It is important to 
note that future piling in the Borrow Pit area may create pathways into the deep aquifer 
or allow ground gases or other contaminants to migrate. Piling risk assessments should 
be undertaken in accordance with the methodology contained within the Environment 
Agency document on “Piling and Penetrative Ground Improvement Methods on Land 
Affected by Contamination: Guidance on Pollution Prevention”. 

It is important to note that the site is currently contaminated and the proposed works 
form part of the wider remediation strategy to ‘clean’ the site and make it suitable for the 
approved end-uses. 

Impact On Protected Sites
The potential impact of this proposal on Special Protection Areas, Special Areas of 
Conservation and Ramsar sites has been assessed in accordance with the 



Application ID: LA04/2017/1489/F

Page 9 of 14

9.28

9.29

9.30

9.31

9.32

9.33

requirements of Regulation 43 (1) of the Conservation (Natural Habitats, etc.) 
Regulations (Northern Ireland) 1995 (as amended). The proposal would not be likely to 
have a significant effect on the features of any European site.

Impact on Road Network
A response to DFI Roads issues, submitted by RPS, has confirmed that the proposed 
development will ultimately reduce the number of two-way construction vehicle trips by 
an estimated 3,750. This is obviously a more sustainable solution than exporting the 
soil/ made ground from the site and importing clean soils onto the site.
DFI Roads have recommended that the conditions detailed below at 11.10 and 11.11 
are attached to any decision should the proposal be approved.

Impact on Amenity
The proposed borrow pit is located on the eastern boundary of the site and arguably as 
far from any residential property as reasonably possible within the former Ford Visteon 
site (as approved for mixed use development).

No objections have been raised by Environmental Health Service with regard to noise or 
air quality. The area of the proposed borrow pit is located approximately 50m from the 
closest residential property to the east (located to the other side of the motorway which 
in itself is a significant source of noise), and approximately 150m from the closest 
dwelling to the west in Mayfield Square. Given these separation distance and existing 
background noise levels the proposal is not likely to have any major impact on the 
nearest residential receptors, in terms of noise/ general disturbance.

The substantial reduction in the number of vehicle trips to and from the site will also 
significantly reduce the levels of noise and disturbance experienced by nearby 
residential properties.

As stated above the excavation and infilling will be phased, with the temporary 
stockpiles of made ground covered and dampened down to prevent the release of 
asbestos fibres.

Flooding
There are no watercourses which are designated under the terms of the Drainage 
(Northern Ireland) Order 1973 within this site. The Flood Hazard Map (NI) indicates that 
the development does not lie within the 1 in 100 year fluvial or 1 in 200 year coastal 
flood plain. 

10.0
10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

Summary of Recommendation:    Approval
Having regard to the policy context and other material considerations above, the 
proposal is considered acceptable and planning permission is recommended subject to 
conditions for the following reasons.

The proposed Borrow Pit forms part of a wider remediation strategy which will ultimately 
make the site suitable for the previously approved mixed use development. It is also 
represents a sustainable approach to sourcing clean soil for the capping layer. 
Contamination which exists on the surface of the site at present will be removed from 
the site in a controlled manner with the small remainder buried in the proposed pit. 

It has been confirmed that all made ground with free product from the highly 
contaminated areas will be removed off site and that only made ground with no free 
product that meets specific agreed remediation criteria will be deposited in the Borrow 
Pit.

The proposed works avoid exporting the existing made ground and importing fresh soil 



Application ID: LA04/2017/1489/F

Page 10 of 14

10.5

onto the site. This approach will dramatically reduce the amount of construction traffic 
moving to and from the site. 

Extensive verification and continual monitoring is proposed and will be conditioned to 
demonstrate that all works are completed to agreed specifications.

11.0
11.1

11.2

11.3

11.4

11.5

11.6

Conditions
As required by Section 61 of the Planning Act (Northern Ireland) 2011, the development 
hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 5 years from the date of this 
permission.

Reason: Time Limit

The Borrow Pit shall be constructed according to the designs set out in the reports 
entitled Former Visteon Factory Site, Belfast. Feasibility Report: Borrow Pit Investigation 
and Assessment. (September 2016) and Former Visteon Factory, Blacks Road, Belfast. 
Updated Remedial Strategy. A082867 (March2017) with a Remedial Implementation 
Plan supplied by Fortitude Environmental. Should the remediation methods be changed 
or modified, the Council must be informed in writing in advance for approval.
  
Reason: protection of human health. 

Upon completion of the proposed Borrow Pit and prior to commencement of the 
proposed commercial development at the location of the borrow pit, a verification report, 
demonstrating that the borrow pit has been successfully completed in accordance with 
the provisions of the following reports: Former Visteon Factory Site, Belfast. Feasibility 
Report: Borrow Pit Investigation and Assessment. September 2016, and Former Visteon 
Factory, Blacks Road, Belfast. Updated Remedial Strategy A082867 (March 2017) with 
a Remedial Implementation Plan supplied by Fortitude Environmental, shall be 
submitted to the Belfast Planning Service for approval.

Reason: protection of human health. 

The construction of the borrow pit must be verified with photographs, as built 
topographical survey evidence, scaled cross section diagrams, laboratory analytical 
reports, materials management reports and any other records relevant to the 
verification.

Reason: protection of human health. 

The development hereby permitted shall not be initiated until a Borrow Pit working plan 
and supporting timetable of works has been agreed with the Planning Authority. This 
Work Plan must be prepared by a suitably competent person and submitted to the 
Planning Authority for its agreement before any site work with Asbestos Containing 
Materials is carried out. The Plan should include details of the work and the actions to 
control all risks and manage all materials including waste materials for disposal. The 
Borrow Pit infill materials shall contain no more than 0.1% asbestos containing 
materials.

Reason: Protection of environmental receptors to ensure the site is suitable for use.

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the remediation
measures relevant to the Borrow Pit as described in the WYG Remediation
Strategy (A082867) dated March 2017, have been implemented to the satisfaction of the 
Planning Authority. The Planning Authority must be given 2 weeks written notification 
prior to the commencement of remediation work.



Application ID: LA04/2017/1489/F

Page 11 of 14

11.7

11.8

11.9

11.10

11.11

Reason: Protection of environmental receptors to ensure the site is suitable for use.

After completing the remediation works under Conditions 5 and 6 and prior to any 
development of the Borrow Pit area, a verification report will be submitted in writing and 
agreed with Planning Authority. This report should be completed by
competent persons in accordance with the Model Procedures for the Management
of Land Contamination (CLR11) and the Industry Guidance published by CLAIRE
2016. The verification report should present all the remediation and monitoring
works undertaken and demonstrate the effectiveness of the works in managing all
the risks and achieving the agreed remedial objectives as presented in WYG
Remediation Strategy (A082867) dated March 2017.

Reason: Protection of environmental receptors to ensure the site is suitable for use.

On completion of the Borrow Pit and prior to any further development of this area, a 
hydrogeological risk assessment will be presented in writing and agreed with the 
Planning Authority. This risk assessment should present a site specific
hydrogeological risk assessment that fully considers the nature of the Borrow Pit infill, 
the environmental receptors and new site groundwater and surface water monitoring 
data.

Reason: Protection of environmental receptors to ensure the site is suitable for use.

Prior to commencement of the proposed development, the Planning Authority shall 
receive in writing for agreement a groundwater and surface water monitoring 
programme for the Borrow Pit area. This monitoring should be part of the wider site 
monitoring programme under Application Z/2013/1434/F. This programme shall detail 
the monitoring points, sampling and analytical programme, monitoring frequency and 
programme pre, during and post development. This monitoring programme will complete 
when there are demonstrable no impacts to water receptors.

Reason: Protection of environmental receptors to ensure the site is suitable for use.

The development hereby permitted shall not become operational until effective vehicle 
wheel washing facilities have been installed and brought into operation for the lifetime of 
the development hereby approved.

Reason: To prevent the carry-over of mud or debris onto the public road in the interests 
of road safety and convenience.

The development hereby permitted shall not become operational until a Service
Management Plan has been submitted to, and approved, by the Department.

Reason: In the interests of road safety and the convenience of road users.

Informatives
Belfast City Council should consult with the Northern Ireland Environment Agency on 
any future new developments proposed within the boundary of the former Ford Visteon 
site. Any new development at, or in the vicinity of, the Burrow Pit will need to be 
supported by a piling risk assessment. Piling risk assessments should be undertaken in 
accordance with the methodology contained within the Environment Agency document 
on “Piling and Penetrative Ground Improvement Methods on Land Affected by 
Contamination: Guidance on Pollution Prevention” available at 
http://publications.environmentagency.gov.uk/PDF/SCHO0501BITTE-E.pdf.



Application ID: LA04/2017/1489/F

Page 12 of 14

Certain types of work with asbestos in soils and construction and demolition (C&D) 
materials can only be done by those who have been issued with a licence by HSENI. 
This is work which meets the definition of 'licensed work with asbestos' in Regulation 
2(1) of the Control of Asbestos Regulations (Northern Ireland) (2012) (the Regulations). 
These Regulations can be viewed at: http://www.coralenvironmental.com/wp-
content/uploads/The-Control-of-Asbestos-Regulations-NI-2012.pdf.

The Regulations and the accompanying Approved Code of Practice and guidance (The
Control of Asbestos Regulations 2012: Managing and working with asbestos (L143)) 
apply to all work with asbestos, including managing the risks related to exposure to 
asbestos from work with asbestos contaminated soil or C&D materials in addition to 
CL:AIRE's Industry
Guidance entitled: Control of Asbestos Regulations 2012, Interpretation for managing 
and working with asbestos in soils and C&D materials 2016 that can be viewed at:
https://www.claire.co.uk/projects-and-initiatives/asbestos-in-soil.

All works associated with asbestos contaminated land must be carried out by competent 
persons so that the site reports can be relied upon and works completed in compliance 
with the Regulations and in a manner likely to be minimise consequential risks.

Prior to disposing waste materials to a suitable facility, waste classification needs to be 
completed of the materials either in-situ or of excavated materials in accordance with 
the EWC codes. Details of this classification can be found in Waste Management Paper 
No 3 at:
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/427077/LI
T_10121.pdf.

Should the materials be classified as Hazardous waste then this material will need to be 
consigned off site as hazardous waste. NIEA should receive the waste consignment 
notices 72 hours in advance of any movements off site and waste materials moved off 
site only by a registered carrier (i.e. ROC permitted).

Also, if the material is hazardous, it should be WAC tested to determine a suitable 
landfill for disposal. Note there are no landfills in Northern Ireland licensed to take non- 
asbestos hazardous wastes, so this material would need to be disposed at a suitable 
site in England or Scotland.

The approval does not empower anyone to build or erect any structure, wall or fence or 
encroach in any other manner on a public roadway (including a footway and verge) or 
on any other land owned or managed by the Department for Infrastructure for which 
separate permissions and arrangements are required.

Precautions shall be taken to prevent the deposit of mud and other debris on the 
adjacent road by vehicles travelling to and from the construction site. Any mud, refuse, 
etc. deposited on the road as a result of the development, must be removed 
immediately by the operator/contractor.

All construction plant and materials shall be stored off the adopted road.

It is the responsibility of the Developer to ensure that water does not flow from the site 
onto the public road (including verge or footway) and that existing road side drainage is 
preserved and does not allow water from the road to enter the site.

https://www.claire.co.uk/projects-and-initiatives/asbestos-in-soil


Application ID: LA04/2017/1489/F

Page 13 of 14

12.0 Notification to Department (if relevant)
N/A

13.0 Representation from elected member
Two meetings and status updates with Cllr T. Atwood and Cllr B. Heading 

Neighbour Notification Checked Yes



Application ID: LA04/2017/1489/F

Page 14 of 14

ANNEX

Date Valid 30th June 2017

Date First Advertised 14th July 2017

Date Last Advertised 14th July 2017

Neighbour Notification - Yes

Date of Last Neighbour Notification 7th July 2017

Date of EIA Determination 4th October 2017

ES Requested No

Drawing Numbers and Title
01 Site Location
03 Site Plan
04 Location of Borrow Pit
05 Location of Borrow Pit in relation to approved development
06 – 15 Borrow Pit Cross Sections
16 Indicative excavation/ fill sequence
17 Section showing Excavation/ progression
Notification to Department (if relevant)

Date of Notification to Department:  
Response of Department:



Committee Application

Development Management Report 
Application ID: LA04/2016/2018/F Date of Committee: 13 February 2018
Proposal: 
Seven storey residential development 
comprising 46 apartments with associated 
basement level car parking with 25 parking 
spaces, amenity space, associated site works 
and alterations to the junction of Hamill Street 
and College Square North. 

Location:
Lands adjacent to  14 College square North  
and South of   62-76 Hamill Street  Belfast

Referral Route: Committee – receipt of representation contrary to opinion

Recommendation: Refusal

Applicant Name and Address:
Silver City Limited
46 Hill Street
 Belfast
 BT1 2LB

Agent Name and Address:
Turley
Hamilton House 
03 Joy Street
 Belfast
 BT2 8LE

Executive Summary:

Permission is sought for a block of 46 apartments, including basement parking, amenity space, 
associated site works and alterations to the junction of Hamill Street and College Square North.

The application site comprises a car park and is located at a road junction with frontage to 
College Square North to the front of the site, College Place North to the rear, and a minor access 
road adjacent to the north-western site boundary. The eastern site boundary is demarcated by 
the gable wall of an adjacent office building, which is 6 storeys in height. The site boundaries 
comprise metal palisade fencing to all remaining boundaries approximately 2m in height.

The key issues in the assessment of the proposal are as follows:

- The principle of the proposal at this location;
- Impact on amenity / character of the Conservation area;
- Design and layout of the proposed accommodation;
- Impact on transport and other infrastructure;
- Drainage and flooding.

Two representations have been received, one letter of objection and one letter of support. 

The principle of development including the proposed use is considered acceptable subject to 
appropriate detail considerations / compliance with relevant policy considerations.

The urban design officer and Conservation Officer advise that the height and scale of the 
proposal is excessive and dominant, breaching the established and overriding building height of 
the portion of the street within the Conservation Area. Accordingly. The proposal would therefore 
read as visually incongruous within the townscape of the locality. The massing of the building is 



Application ID: LA04/2016/2018/F

Page 2 of 13

contextually inappropriate and out of character with the townscape. Accordingly, the proposal is 
considered contrary to PPS6 and would adversely impact on the Conservation Area.

The proposal is 7 storeys in height and located approximately 7.5m (at closest) from the rear 
boundaries of 6 residential properties at 64-74 Hamill Street to the north-west of the site. 3 
residential properties are located on the road the rear of the site (north) at College Place North. 
The building (rear elevation) is sited 11.5m approximately from the frontage of 13 College Place 
North, approximately 2.8m more than the rear elevation of the adjacent office building. The close 
proximity and scale of the proposal will result in overlooking, dominance, and overshadowing of 
existing properties due to the aspect of the site. Inadequate amenity space arrangements are 
proposed for prospective residents as part of the development. The proposal fails to satisfy 
PPS7 requirements.

Transport NI was consulted and indicated that satisfactory access, parking and servicing 
arrangements have not been demonstrated to ensure compliance with PPS3.

Rivers Agency advises adequate drainage and mitigation of flood risk measures have not been 
demonstrated and accordingly the proposal fails to satisfy FLD3 of PPS15.

Having regard to the policy context, planning history, and other material considerations above, 
the proposal is considered unacceptable and refusal of planning permission is recommended for 
the reasons set out in the report below. Delegation of final reasons to Director of Planning & 
Place is requested.



Application ID: LA04/2016/2018/F

Page 3 of 13

Site Visit  Report 

Site Location Plan: 

Ground Floor:

Contextual Elevation:



Application ID: LA04/2016/2018/F

Page 4 of 13

Elevations / Sections:

Date of Site Visit: 20th October 2016
1.0 Characteristics of the Site and Area

The application site comprises a car park and is located at a road junction with frontage to 
College Square North to the front of the site, College Place North to the rear, and a minor 
access road adjacent to the north-western site boundary. The eastern site boundary is 
demarcated by the gable wall of an adjacent office building, which is 6 storeys in height. The site 
boundaries comprise metal palisade fencing to all remaining boundaries approximately 2m in 
height.

2.0 Description of Proposal



Application ID: LA04/2016/2018/F

Page 5 of 13

Permission is sought for a block of 46 apartments, including basement parking, amenity space, 
associated site works and alterations to the junction of Hamill Street and College Square North.

Planning Assessment of Policy and Other Material Considerations

3.0  Site History

No relevant history on the application site;

Adjacent to the site:

Z/2004/2729/F - Six storey office building for Youth Resource Facility. PERMISSION GRANTED 
28.06.2005. Lands adjacent to 12 College Square North/College Place North, Town Parks, 
Belfast

Z/2005/2127/F - Amendments to approved youth resource facility (Z/2004/2729/F) including 
fenestration on side/rear elevations. PERMISSION GRANTED 25.11.2005. Lands adjacent to 
12 College Square North/College Place North, Town Parks, Belfast,

4.0  Policy Framework

4.1  draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2015
4.2  Belfast Urban Area Plan (BUAP)
4.3  Strategic Planning Policy Statement (SPPS)
4.4  Planning Policy Statement 3 (PPS3) - Access, Movement and Parking
4.5  Planning Policy Statement 13 (PPS13) - Transportation and Land Use
4.6  Planning Policy Statement 7 (PPS7) – Residential Development
4.7  Planning Policy Statement 12 (PPS12) – Housing in Settlements
4.8  Planning Policy Statement 15 (PPS15) - Planning and Flood Risk
4.9  Planning Policy Statement 6 (PPS6) – Planning Archaeology and the Built Environment
4.10 Planning Policy Statement 8 (PPS8) – Open Space, Sport and Recreation;
4.11 Belfast City Centre Conservation Area Booklet

4.11 Supplementary Planning Guidance including ‘Creating Places’, Development Control 
Advice Note 8 Housing in Existing Urban Areas, and Parking Standards.

4.12  The SPPS sets out five core planning principles of the planning system, including 
improving health and well-being, supporting sustainable economic growth, creating and 
enhancing shared space, and supporting good design and place making. The SPPS states at 
paragraph 1.13 (page 7) that a number of policy statements, including PPS3, PPS6, PPS7, 
PPS12, PPS13, and PPS15 remain applicable under ‘transitional arrangements’.

4.13 Paragraphs 4.11 and 4.12 require the safeguarding of residential and work environs and 
the protection of amenity. Paragraphs 4.13-8 highlight the importance of creating shared space, 
whilst paragraph 4.23-7 stress the importance of good design. Paragraphs 4.18-22 details that 
sustainable economic growth will be supported. 

4.14 Policy BH12 of PPS6 lists seven criteria with which proposals for new development within a 
conservation area must comply. Residential policy is set out in PPS7 QD1, and states that 
planning permission will be granted for new residential development only where it is 
demonstrated that it will create a quality and sustainable residential environment. It indicates 
that housing will not be permitted in established residential areas where it would result in 
unacceptable damage to local character, environmental quality or residential amenity of these 
areas. The policy sets out nine criteria which all residential development proposals are expected 



Application ID: LA04/2016/2018/F

Page 6 of 13

to meet.

4.15 College Square North is discussed within the City Centre Conservation Area Document at 
page 48, with further discussion at page 53. Page 54 refers to guidelines for new development. 
Of note is in relation to new development which states:

The general principle is that new development should seek to complement the existing in terms 
of materials, scale, form, proportion, massing and elevational treatment, and should recognise 
the townscape setting into which it is being inserted.

4.16 The preamble to PPS7 advises that it applies to all residential applications with the 
exception of single houses in the countryside. Policy QD1 states that planning permission will be 
granted for new residential development only where it is demonstrated that it will create a quality 
and sustainable residential environment. It indicates that housing will not be permitted in 
established residential areas where it would result in unacceptable damage to local character, 
environmental quality or residential amenity of these areas. The policy sets out nine criteria 
which all residential development proposals are expected to meet. PPS12, DCAN 8 and 
Creating Places relate to housing developments and are also material considerations. PPS7 
addendum safeguarding character is also a material consideration and includes three policies 
LC1-3.

4.17 PPS8 is relates to open space and policy OS2 requires open space provision within new 
residential developments.

4.18 PPS3 and 13 are material considerations in regard to the parking, access, traffic and 
associated aspects of the proposal.

4.19 PPS15 relates to flooding and associated risks. The development site is located adjacent to 
College Square North, which is identified as an area of surface water flood risk on Rivers 
Agency Flood Risk Maps. FLD3 requires proposals to be accompanied by a Drainage 
Assessment where certain size thresholds of application are breached. In this case, the 
proposal exceeds the residential threshold of 10 or more dwelling units.

5.0  Statutory Consultee Responses

5.1  NI Water - No objection;
5.2  Rivers Agency – Further information required regarding surface water;
5.3  NIEA - Waste Management - No objection subject to conditions;
5.4  DFI - Transport NI – Refusal recommended;
5.5 Historic Environment Division – no objections.

6.0  Non - Statutory Consultee Responses

6.1  BCC Environmental Health - No objection subject to conditions;
6.2  Conservation Officer – refusal recommended;
6.3  Urban Design Officer – refusal recommended;

7.0 Representations
7.1 The application has been neighbour notified and advertised in the local press.  One 

objection has been received raising the following issues (summarised):

- Impact on neighbouring properties – dominance, overshadowing, and overlooking;
- Inappropriate height and scale;
- Disturbance from traffic;



Application ID: LA04/2016/2018/F

Page 7 of 13

- Impact character of the area;
- Cumulative impact with other development in the locality;

A letter of support has also been received.

8.0 Other Material Considerations
BCC City Centre and Investment Strategy

9.0 Assessment
9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

The main issues to be considered in this case are:
• The principle of the use at this location; 
• Impact on the character of the area; 
• Impact on residential amenity; 
• Traffic and parking;
• Flooding.

Article 6 (4) of the Planning (Northern Ireland) Act states that in making any determination 
under the said Act regard is to be had to the local development plan, and that the 
determination must be made in accordance with the plan unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise.

Principle of Development

BUAP is the current draft development plan for the area following a successful legal 
challenge to the adoption of the BMAP. The site is located within the development limits 
of Belfast and is identified as whiteland within both plans. Within draft BMAP, the site is 
within a larger zoning ref:CC053, identifying it as a development opportunity site. Key Site 
Requirements are listed under this zoning as, access arrangements to be agreed with 
TNI/Roads Service to identify necessary road infrastructure improvements, and a 
transport assessment may be required. It also falls within the City Centre Conservation 
Area. This designation was removed in the adopted BMAP that was successfully 
challenged in the courts.

The site is currently in use as a car park, and therefore constitutes a gap site within the 
conservation area. It is accepted therefore, that development of the site would contribute 
more positively than a vacant site. However, the details of any development must comply 
with PPS6 and not adversely impact on the Conservation Area. In addition, residential 
use within the city centre is encouraged within the dBMAP, and residential use is located 
in close proximity to the site. However, the details of any such scheme must accord with 
regional policy considerations set out in PPS7 and related supplementary guidance. The 
principle of development including the proposed use is considered acceptable.

Impact on Character of the Area and Design

Policy BH12 of PPS6 sets out 7 general criteria for proposals within Conservation Areas 
(CA). Section 104 (11) of the Planning (NI) Act 2011 requires that where any area is for 
the time being designated as a conservation area, special regard must be had to the 
desirability of:
(a) preserving the character or appearance of that area in cases where an opportunity for 
enhancing its character or appearance does not arise or
(b) enhancing the character or appearance of that area in cases where an opportunity to 
do so does arise. Section 104 (11) and the related policy direction of the SPPS take 
precedence over criterion (a) of PPS6 Policy BH12 New Development in a Conservation 
Area, which requires the development to preserve or enhance the character of the area. 



Application ID: LA04/2016/2018/F

Page 8 of 13

9.6

9.7

9.8

9.9

9.10

9.11

The remaining criteria of this policy however remain. (b) and (c) broadly seek development 
that is in sympathy with the characteristic built form, scale material and detailing of the 
area. This is also mirrored under QD1 criteria (a).  criteria (e) of BH12 which requires that 
important views within, into and out of the area are protected. Comments from the 
Conservation Officer and the Urban Design Officers are material considerations in the 
assessment of these issues.

Properties within the CA portion of College Square North are predominantly Georgian in 
age and style and four storeys in height, save for a recent office development immediately 
adjacent to the site. Buildings to the rear of the site within College Place North and Hamill 
Street/Killen Street immediately to the rear of the site (as annotated on BMAP City Centre 
map), are residential in terms of use and two storeys in height. Dwellings with frontage to 
Hamill Street back onto Killen Street and have two storey returns and typical yard areas.

The urban design officer and Conservation Officer advise that the height and scale of the 
proposal is excessive and dominant, breaching the established building height of the 
portion of the street within the Conservation Area. Accordingly, the proposal would read 
as visually incongruous within the townscape of the locality. The massing of the building 
is contextually inappropriate and out of character with the townscape, and the façade 
requires greater articulation in order to break up the massing of the College Square North 
elevation into smaller elevations.  It is also considered that the proposal would adversely 
affect the amenity of neighbouring residents. Accordingly, the proposal is considered 
contrary to the relevant policies.

Impact on Amenity

Criteria (d) of BH12 requires development that does not result in environmental problems, 
whilst criteria (h) of QD1 PPS7 requires the design and layout will not create conflict with 
adjacent land uses and there is no unacceptable adverse effect on existing or proposed 
properties. 

The proposal is 7 storeys in height and located approximately 7.5m (at closest) from the 
rear boundaries of 6 residential properties at 64-74 Hamill Street to the north-west of the 
site. 3 residential properties are located on the road the rear of the site (north) at College 
Place North. The building (rear elevation) is sited 11.5m approximately from the frontage 
of 13 College Place North, approximately 2.8m more than the rear elevation of the 
adjacent office building.

The close proximity and scale of the proposal will result in dominance, and  
overshadowing of existing properties due to the aspect of the site. Properties to the rear 
in College Square North have habitable rooms at the front of these dwellings with outlook 
to the public street. These properties are already compromised by the existing significant 
office building adjacent to the site in terms of overshadowing and dominance. The 
proposal will further reduce daylighting for a longer period. The proposal will result in 
overshadowing of the properties in Hamill Street. The impact will be exacerbated to 
ground floor rooms to the rear of these dwellings in particular, due to the narrow gaps of 
approximately 1.5m between the returns and resulting restricted area through which 
daylight can access.

In relation to overlooking, the privacy of rear of properties in Hamill Street will be adversely 
impacted from proposed window positions, at first and second floor level in particular, 
along the Hamill/Killen Street elevation. In addition, it is considered a perception of 
overlooking will also result from upper floors given the number of openings and close 
proximity. No adverse overlooking would result from windows on the front elevation due 
to separation distances and layout/aspect of adjacent properties.



Application ID: LA04/2016/2018/F

Page 9 of 13

9.12

9.13

9.14

9.15

In relation to amenity space provision, QD1 [c] PPS7 and OS2 of PPS8 require the level 
of provision of private space to be appropriate to the surrounding context, be useable, 
with further guidance on amenity space provided in Creating Places.  PPS 7 indicates 
that, where appropriate management arrangements are in place, private open space to 
serve apartment developments may be in the form of communal gardens. Guidance set 
out in Creating Places specifies that private communal open space will be acceptable in 
the form of landscaped areas, courtyards or roof gardens.  Creating Places quantifies the 
level of communal private open space that should be incorporated in new flat 
developments with a required provision in the range of 10 sq m to 30 sq m per apartment 
(paragraph 5.20). This paragraph goes on to state that inner urban/high density locations 
will tend towards the lower figure.

Inadequate amenity space arrangements are proposed as part of the development. A 
small balcony area  approximately 3.5sqm in area is proposed for one of the apartments 
at ground floor, with this provision repeated on floors 1-4. At floors 1-4, apartments 
adjacent to the junction of College Square North and Killen Street also include an outdoor 
balcony area approximately 5sqm in area. At fifth floor 4 apartments to the front of the 
building, have balcony areas varying in size but 0.8m deep, with no provision for 
apartments to the rear. At 6th Floor level, 3 apartments are proposed, each with balcony 
amenity areas. Accordingly, of the 46 apartment’s proposed, dedicated balcony space is 
provided for 14 apartments. A ‘grassed area’ is shown at ground floor to the rear of the 
building, which is elevated above College Place North and Killen Street. This area is 
105sqm and equates to 2.3sqm per unit. Excluding apartments with balcony space, this 
increases to 3.3sqm per unit. This falls well below minimum space requirements stipulated 
in Creating Places. No access is shown to this area from within the development, 
accordingly it cannot be considered as amenity space for prospective residents. This also 
would preclude adequate maintenance arrangements. In any event, this area would be 
significantly overshadowed and dominated by the proposed building and existing adjacent 
office building and fail to create quality amenity space arrangements for the development. 

The proposal includes an internal light well arrangement for apartments located to the 
rear of the development to provide natural light to internal rooms. On balance, this is 
considered acceptable, as it would constitute a secondary light source as main rooms 
also have direct external windows.

Access, Parking and Transport: 

The proposal includes provision of 25 parking spaces and bicycle parking within a 
basement/lower ground floor. The proposal also seeks reconfiguration of the public road 
access layout to Killen Street and Hamill Street to facilitate direct vehicular access to the 
site from College Square North. 

Further information was received 15th January including revised drawings relating to the 
site layout and car access tracking details.

In relation to traffic, access, servicing arrangement and parking issues, Transport NI was 
consulted and indicated that satisfactory access, parking and servicing arrangements 
have not been demonstrated. A parking survey has not been provided demonstrating on 
street parking availability in the locality, and the revised access to College Square North 
remains unacceptable.

Given the TNI response, the proposal fails to demonstrate that requirements in PPS3 and 
associated guidance have been adequately addressed.



Application ID: LA04/2016/2018/F

Page 10 of 13

Neighbour Notification Checked                                     Yes

Reasons for Refusal: (Delegation of final reasons for refusal to Director of Planning & Place 
Requested):

9.16

9.17

9.18

9.19

9.20

9.21

PPS15 – Drainage and Flooding

Policy FLD3 of PPS15 requires proposals in excess of 10 dwellings or site areas in excess 
of 1 hectare to be accompanied by a drainage assessment. College Square North 
adjacent to the site is identified as subject to possible surface water flooding on the 
DAERA Flood Maps online database. NIW in their consultation response advise no 
surface water sewer is available.

Rivers Agency in their last consultation response advised that they are ‘unable to make 
an accurate judgement call on the above site’s submitted Drainage details until evidence 
(Confirmation Letter from NI Water to discharge into storm outfall sewer) that the 
proposed storm water run-off from the site can be safely discharged (As per Annex D18 
bullet point 2 of PPS15).’

Further information in relation to this issue was received 15th January detailing NIW 
confirmation that storm water to discharge to a combined sewer. Rivers have been 
reconsulted, however advise that, the applicant should update their drainage assessment 
to show pre and post development run-off rates with a drainage layout drawing showing 
the proposed discharge point to the NI Water combined sewer.

Adequate opportunity to resolve this issue has been afforded to the agent, however the 
evidence has not been provided. Accordingly, adequate drainage and mitigation of flood 
risk measures have not been demonstrated and accordingly the proposal fails to satisfy 
FLD3 of PPS15.

Consultations:

Environmental Health has no objection subject to conditions and/or informatives, and the 
proposal will not result in an unacceptable impact in terms of noise, air quality, or related 
issues. NIEA have no objections in terms of contamination or drainage. NI Water has no 
objection in relation to sewerage and notes that no surface water sewer is available. 
Historic Environment Division have no objection regarding impact to Listed Buildings or 
Archaeology subject to conditions and/or informatives.

Representations:

Following the above assessment, it is considered that the proposal would adversely 
impact on amenity and local character and the objections on this basis are supported. 
However, it is not considered the degree of disturbance from traffic would be so significant 
to warrant refusal on this basis due to the number of parking spaces provided and no 
concerns from Environmental Health on this basis. The points raised in the letter of 
support are noted, however these do not outweigh the concerns of the proposal set out 
above.

10.0 Having regard to the policy context, planning history, and other material considerations 
above, the proposal is considered unacceptable and refusal of planning permission is 
recommended.



Application ID: LA04/2016/2018/F

Page 11 of 13

1. The proposal is contrary to Policy BH12 of Planning Policy Statement 6 Planning 
Archaeology, and the Built Heritage, and Policy QD1 of the Department's Planning Policy 
Statement 7 Quality Residential Environments in that the proposal would, if permitted, 
result in overdevelopment of the site due to its inappropriate layout, scale, form, massing 
and design causing harm to the character and appearance of the City Centre 
Conservation Area.

2. The proposal is contrary to Policy QD1 of the Department's Planning Policy Statement 7: 
"Quality Residential Environments" and Policy OS2 of Planning Policy Statement 8 “ 
Open Space, Sport and Recreation” in that it would, if permitted, result in 
overdevelopment of the site in that it would be harmful to the living conditions of existing 
residents through overlooking, dominance, and overshadowing resulting in a loss of 
residential amenity due to inappropriate scale, massing and design. The proposal also 
fails to provide adequate amenity space for prospective residents. The proposed 
development would therefore fail to create a quality residential environment.

3. The proposal is contrary to Planning Policy Statement 3: Access, movement and 
parking; Policy AMP2, Access to Public Roads, in that the applicant has not 
demonstrated an acceptable vehicular access for vehicles that will be attracted to the 
development.

4. The proposal is contrary to Planning Policy Statement 3: Access, movement and 
parking; Policy AMP7, Car Parking and Servicing Arrangements, in that the applicant 
has not demonstrated acceptable parking arrangements for vehicles that will be attracted 
to the development.

5. The proposal is contrary to Policy FLD 3 of the Department's Planning Policy Statement 
15: "Planning and Flood Risk" in that it has not been demonstrated that the proposal 
would provide satisfactory measures for the mitigation of flood risk and in particular 
drainage.



Application ID: LA04/2016/2018/F

Page 12 of 13

ANNEX

Date Valid 9th September 2016

Date First Advertised 30th September 2016

Date Last Advertised 1st September 2017

Details of Neighbour Notification (all addresses)
The Owner/Occupier, 11 College Place North,Town Parks,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 6BE,   
The Owner/Occupier, 13 College Place North,Town Parks,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 6BE,   
The Owner/Occupier, 14 College Square North,Town Parks,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 6AS,   
The Owner/Occupier, 62 Hamill Street,Town Parks,Belfast,Antrim,BT12 4AA,   
The Owner/Occupier, 64 Hamill Street,Town Parks,Belfast,Antrim,BT12 4AA,   
The Owner/Occupier, 66 Hamill Street,Town Parks,Belfast,Antrim,BT12 4AA,   
The Owner/Occupier, 68 Hamill Street,Town Parks,Belfast,Antrim,BT12 4AA,   
The Owner/Occupier, 7 College Place North,Town Parks,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 6BE,   
 P Latimer 7, Sandyholme Park, Newtownabbey, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT36 5BJ   
The Owner/Occupier, 70 Hamill Street,Town Parks,Belfast,Antrim,BT12 4AA,   
The Owner/Occupier, 72 Hamill Street,Town Parks,Belfast,Antrim,BT12 4AA,   
The Owner/Occupier, 74 Hamill Street,Town Parks,Belfast,Antrim,BT12 4AA,   
The Owner/Occupier, 76-78,Hamill Street,Town Parks,Belfast,Antrim,BT12 4AA,   
The Owner/Occupier, 9 College Place North,Town Parks,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 6BE,   
The Owner/Occupier, Apartment 1,College Place,55 Hamill Street,Town 
Parks,Belfast,Antrim,BT12 4AA,   
The Owner/Occupier, Apartment 10,College Place,55 Hamill Street,Town 
Parks,Belfast,Antrim,BT12 4AA,   
The Owner/Occupier, Apartment 11,College Place,55 Hamill Street,Town 
Parks,Belfast,Antrim,BT12 4AA,   
The Owner/Occupier, Apartment 12,College Place,55 Hamill Street,Town 
Parks,Belfast,Antrim,BT12 4AA,   
The Owner/Occupier, Apartment 13,College Place,55 Hamill Street,Town 
Parks,Belfast,Antrim,BT12 4AA,   
The Owner/Occupier, Apartment 14,College Place,55 Hamill Street,Town 
Parks,Belfast,Antrim,BT12 4AA,   
The Owner/Occupier, Apartment 15,College Place,55 Hamill Street,Town 
Parks,Belfast,Antrim,BT12 4AA,   
The Owner/Occupier, Apartment 16,College Place,55 Hamill Street,Town 
Parks,Belfast,Antrim,BT12 4AA,   
The Owner/Occupier, Apartment 17,College Place,55 Hamill Street,Town 
Parks,Belfast,Antrim,BT12 4AA,   
The Owner/Occupier, Apartment 2,College Place,55 Hamill Street,Town 
Parks,Belfast,Antrim,BT12 4AA,   
The Owner/Occupier, Apartment 3,College Place,55 Hamill Street,Town 
Parks,Belfast,Antrim,BT12 4AA,   
The Owner/Occupier, Apartment 4,College Place,55 Hamill Street,Town 
Parks,Belfast,Antrim,BT12 4AA,   
The Owner/Occupier, Apartment 5,College Place,55 Hamill Street,Town 
Parks,Belfast,Antrim,BT12 4AA,   
The Owner/Occupier, Apartment 6,College Place,55 Hamill Street,Town 
Parks,Belfast,Antrim,BT12 4AA,   
The Owner/Occupier, Apartment 7,College Place,55 Hamill Street,Town 
Parks,Belfast,Antrim,BT12 4AA,   
The Owner/Occupier, Apartment 8,College Place,55 Hamill Street,Town 



Application ID: LA04/2016/2018/F

Page 13 of 13

Parks,Belfast,Antrim,BT12 4AA,   
The Owner/Occupier, Apartment 9,College Place,55 Hamill Street,Town 
Parks,Belfast,Antrim,BT12 4AA,   

Date of Last Neighbour Notification 24th August 2017

Date of EIA Determination N/A

ES Requested No

Planning History

Ref ID: Z/1983/0777
Proposal: CONVERSION TO CAR PARK
Address: 14-19 COLLEGE SQUARE NORTH
Decision: 
Decision Date: 

Ref ID: Z/1996/2554
Proposal: Use of vacant site as surface car park
Address: 26-30 COLLEGE SQUARE NORTH 1-17 GALWAY STREET BELFAST
Decision: 
Decision Date: 

Ref ID: Z/2005/2127/F
Proposal: Amendments to approved youth resource facility (Z/2004/2729/F) including 
fenestration on side/rear elevations.
Address: Lands adjacent to 12 College Square North/College Place North, Town Parks, Belfast, 
BT12 4AS`
Decision: 
Decision Date: 25.11.2005

Ref ID: Z/2004/2729/F
Proposal: Six storey office building for Youth Resource Facility.
Address: Lands adjacent to 12 College Square North/College Place North, Town Parks, Belfast, 
Northern Ireland, BT12 4AS
Decision: 
Decision Date: 28.06.2005

Ref ID: Z/2004/0738/F
Proposal: Closing of entrance in Killen Street and proposed new entrance and pavement 
crossing in College Square North
Address: Surface car park on corner of College Square North/Killen Street, Belfast
Decision: 
Decision Date: 14.06.2004
Drawing Numbers:  01, 03b, 04b, 05b, 06b, 07b, 08b, 09b, 10b, 11b, 12, 13a

Notification to Department (if relevant)

Date of Notification to Department:  
Response of Department:





Development Management Officer Report
Committee Application

Summary
Committee Meeting Date: 13 Feb 2018 
Application ID: LA04/2017/2361/F  
Proposal:
Reconfiguration of interior to provide 16 
bar/restaurant units, health club, arena hospitality 
suite, climbing wall, refurbishment of Pavilion 
interior, new foyer, access deck bridge, new front 
façade &  building access strategy under separate 
planning permission refurbishment of reception & 
other ancillary works.

Location:
The Odyssey Pavilion  2 Queens Quay  Belfast  
BT3 9QQ 

Referral Route: Major Application

Recommendation: Approval
Applicant Name and Address:
Matagorda 2 (Isle Of Man)
c/o 1-CAP Group Ltd 
Bridge Chambers
 West Quay
 Ramsey
 Isle Of Man
 IM8 1DL

Agent Name and Address:
 Turley
Hamilton House 
3 Joy Street
 Belfast
 BT2 8LE

Representation from elected member None

Executive Summary: Full application seeking planning permission for the internal reconfiguration of 
the Odyssey Complex to provide 16No. bar / restaurant units, health club, arena hospitality suite, 
climbing wall, refurbishment of Pavilion interior, new foyer and access deck bridge.

The key issues in the assessment of the proposed development include:
- The acceptability of internal reconfiguration and changes of use
- Design of new façade 
- Impact on designated sites
- Traffic and Parking
- Contaminated Land
- Pre-application Community Consultation

The site is located within the development limits of the Belfast Metropolitan Area and within the City 
Centre boundary as defined in the draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan (dBMAP). The site is unzoned 
in dBMAP and falls within the Odyssey/Tullycarnet Park/Ormeau Park and Odyssey/Stormont Community 
Gateways in the version of dBMAP purported to be adopted. 

The proposal has been assessed against the following Policies – Strategic Planning Policy for 
Northern Ireland, Planning Policy Statement 2 – ‘Natural Heritage’, Planning Policy Statement 3 -  
Access Movement and Parking and Planning Policy Statement 4 – ‘Planning and Economic 
Development’.



Application ID: LA04/2017/2361/F

Page 2 of 11

DFI Roads has no objections to the proposal 

Environmental Health, Shared Environmental Services and NIEA have no objections subject to a 
number of planning conditions to ensure appropriate identification and remediation of unidentified 
contamination and the retention of a suitable buffer between service areas and the River Lagan. 

Having had regard to the extant development plan, the draft development plan, relevant planning 
policies, and other material considerations the proposed change of use and all additional elements 
both individually and cumulatively are considered acceptable in what is a city centre location.

There has been no representations received from members of the public.

Recommendation 
Approve subject to conditions set out below in the case officer report. 

Committee is requested to delegate the consideration of the final wording of the conditions to the 
Director of Planning and Place.



Application ID: LA04/2017/2361/F

Page 3 of 11

Case Officer Report
Site Location Plan

  
KEY
Ground Floor, First Floor and Second Floor Plans as proposed
Green – Bowling Alley
Blue – Health Club
Pink – Cinema
Orange – Climbing Wall



Application ID: LA04/2017/2361/F

Page 4 of 11

1.0
1.1

1.2

1.3

1.5

Description of Proposed Development
Reconfiguration of interior to provide 16No. bar / restaurant units, health club, arena 
hospitality suite, climbing wall, refurbishment of Pavilion interior, new foyer, access deck 
bridge, new front façade &  building access strategy under separate planning permission 
refurbishment of reception & other ancillary works. The general layout is shown on the floor 
plans above.

The main physical additions are the introduction of a Health Club and Climbing Wall. The 
main loss of bar/ restaurant space will be experienced at first floor level to make way for the 
new health club. The 2nd floor (cinema) remains virtually unchanged.

The overall net internal floorspace of the Pavilion will be increased by approximately 2,000 sq. 
metres. This will be across a number of uses, more notably a new bar with a floor area of 618 
sq. m, a new health club with a floor area of 1,463 sq. m and a climbing wall with a floor area 
of 267 sq.m. 

The number of car parking spaces will remain the same, no additional parking has been 
proposed.

2.0
2.1

2.2

Description of Site
Established mixed use entertainment complex with expansive car park area to other side of 
main road.

The site is located within the Development Limits of Belfast in the Belfast Urban Area Plan 
and the Draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2015, and within the city centre. 

Planning Assessment of Policy and other Material Considerations
3.0
3.1

Planning History
LA04/2017/0753/F - New main entrance to Odyssey Pavilion, extension/reconfiguration of 
adjoining ground and first floor units, alterations to southern elevation façade treatment, 
provision of external seating terraces and upgrade of public realm (approved 6th October 
2017).

4.0 Policy Framework
4.1 Belfast Urban Area Plan

Draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2015 
4.2 Strategic Planning Policy Statement for Northern Ireland

Planning Policy Statement 3 - Access, Movement and Parking
Planning Policy Statement 4 – Planning and Economic Development

5.0 Statutory Consultees
DFI Roads – No objections subject to conditions
WaterNI – No objections
DAERA – No objections subject to conditions
Shared Environmental Services – No objections subject to conditions

6.0 Non-Statutory Consultees
Environmental Health BCC – No objection subject to conditions

7.0 Representations
None received

8.0 Other Material Considerations
N/A

9.0 Assessment
The key issues in the assessment of the proposed development include:

- The acceptability of internal reconfiguration and change of use



Application ID: LA04/2017/2361/F

Page 5 of 11

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

9.7

9.8

- Design of new façade 
- Impact on designated sites
- Traffic and Parking
- Contaminated Land
- Pre-application Community Consultation

Principle of reconfiguration and change of use
Following the recent Court of Appeal decision on BMAP, the extant development plan is now 
the BUAP. However, given the stage at which the Draft BMAP had reached pre-adoption 
through a period of independent examination, the policies within the Draft BMAP still carry 
weight and are a material consideration in the determination of planning applications. The 
weight to be afforded is a matter of judgement for the decision maker.  

The site is located within the development limits of Belfast within the Belfast Urban Area Plan 
and Draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan.  The presumption is therefore in favour of 
development subject to the planning considerations detailed below. 

There is no significant additional floor area being created as a result of the proposal, simply a 
reconfiguration of the existing layout within the Odyssey complex. The proposal will help 
regenerate this established mixed use complex. All proposed uses are considered acceptable 
in principle in this city centre location.

Design of new Façade 
The changes to the external design, with the provision of the new entrance, including 
reconfiguration of adjoining ground and first floor units to the front of the building, were approved 
under the previous planning application for Phase 1 – LA04/2017/0753/F.

Impact on Designated Sites
The proposed development is just over 2km from designated sites of national, European and 
international importance:
- Inner and Outer Belfast Lough ASSI which is declared under the Environment Order
(Northern Ireland) 2002;
- Belfast Lough SPA and Belfast Lough Open Water SPA both of which are designated under 
the EC Birds Directive (79/409/EEC on the conservation of wild birds);
- Belfast Lough Ramsar Site which is designated under the Ramsar Convention; and
- East Coast Marine pSPA all of which are designated under the EC Birds Directive
(79/409/EEC on the conservation of wild birds);

The proposed development is over 2km from the nearest designated site, Inner Belfast
Lough ASSI and the nearest seal haul out site within Belfast Harbour. As the proposal is a 
refurbishment of an existing building, Marine and Fisheries Division are content that the 
proposal will not have any impact on marine features.

In addition to designated sites, marine mammals are afforded protection throughout their 
range through the following nature conservation legislation:
- The Conservation (Natural Habitats, etc.) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 1995 (as 
amended); and
- The Wildlife (Northern Ireland) Order 1985 (as amended).
This includes marine mammals such as cetaceans and seals, both of which are present within 
Belfast Lough, particularly seals. There are seal haul out sites within Belfast Lough. All 
plans/projects within or adjacent to the marine environment must therefore provide 
appropriate mitigation, if required. This would be applicable if significant noisy works were 
being carried out, such as piling.

Natural Environment Division has considered the impacts of the proposal on the designated 



Application ID: LA04/2017/2361/F

Page 6 of 11

9.9

9.10

9.11

9.12

9.13

9.14

9.15

9.16

9.17

sites and advises that due regard is given, by the competent authority, to the recommendation 
outlined when undertaking a Habitats Regulations Assessment on Belfast Lough 
SPA/Ramsar, Belfast Lough Open Water SPA and East Coast (NI) Marine Proposed SPA to 
ensure compliance with the requirements of the Habitats Directive and The Environment 
(Northern Ireland) Order 2002.

Shared Environmental Services have considered the planning application in light of the 
assessment requirements of Regulation 43 (1) of the Conservation (Natural Habitats, etc.) 
Regulations (Northern Ireland) 1995 (as amended) by Shared Environmental Service on 
behalf of Belfast City Council which is the competent authority responsible for authorising the 
project and any assessment of it required by the Regulations. 

Having considered the nature, scale, timing, duration and location of the project Shared 
Environmental Services have concluded that, provided the mitigation, as detailed below in 
11.2, is conditioned in any planning approval, the proposal will not have an adverse effect on 
site integrity of any European site.

Traffic and Parking 
No amendments are proposed to the existing car parking provision or access arrangements. 
The Transport Assessment Form has stated that given the only ‘new uses’ proposed (Health 
Club and Climbing Wall) are leisure uses they are off peak generators and will also benefit from 
shared trips with other existing uses within the Odyssey and Titanic Quarter. The Assessment 
goes on to state that car parking will be accommodated within the existing Odyssey car park.

The proposed development will be served by an established pedestrian, cycle, public transport 
and private vehicle network. DFI Roads have confirmed they have no objections to the proposal, 
no conditions have been suggested.

Contaminated Land
Environmental Health and DAERA Regulation Unit (RU) (Land and Groundwater Team) note 
that previous uses of the application site LA04/2017/2361/F and/or the adjacent site(s) may 
have caused the land to be affected by contamination.

A Preliminary Risk Assessment was submitted: ‘Matagorda 2, Odyssey Pavilion, Interior 
Reconfiguration, Preliminary Risk Assessment Report, Ref: IBR1037/Phase 2, prepared by 
RPS’. Dated 5/11/2017. This report concludes that although exceedances of relevant soil 
guideline values for contaminants of concern were noted in boreholes close to the proposed 
development, the nature of the development and construction methodology would result in no 
pathways being introduced. 

Environmental Health and NIEA Land and Groundwater Team have no objections to the
development provided conditions are placed on any Planning Decision Notice as 
recommended below at 11.3 – 11.5.

Odour
Environmental Health Service has considered the ventilation strategy submitted in support of 
this application – ‘Odyssey Pavilion Ventilation Strategy, Revision – A L1978004, prepared by 
Lehding Services Design’.  Dated 11/09/2017. 

 
The above strategy outlines the odour abatement requirements for existing food premises 
within the Odyssey Arena. It is understood that following the refurbishment, additional 
businesses and end uses shall be present within the building. Environmental Health Service 
have therefore requested that the condition detailed at 11.6 is attached to the decision notice 
should approval be forthcoming. 



Application ID: LA04/2017/2361/F

Page 7 of 11

9.18

9.19

9.20

9.21

9.22

9.23

Noise
Environmental Health have noted that additional plant and equipment shall be required for the 
new and existing end uses within the development. Environmental Health have requested the 
condition detailed at 11.7 is attached to the decision notice should approval be forthcoming.  
This will require the developer to demonstrate that the plant they eventually chose would not 
cause a problem at the nearest noise sensitive premises and no loss of amenity is 
experienced.

Pre-application Community Consultation
For applications that fall within the major category as prescribed in the Development 
Management Regulations, Section 27 of the Planning Act (NI) 2011 places a statutory duty on 
applicant for planning permission to consult the community in advance of submitting an 
application.  

Section 27 also requires that a prospective applicant, prior to submitting a major applications 
must give notice, known as a ‘Proposal of Application Notice’ (PAN) that an application for 
planning permission for the development is to be submitted.  A PAN (LA04/2017/1160/PAN) 
was submitted to the Council on 24th May 2017.  

Where pre-application community consultation has been required and a PAN has been 
submitted at least 12 weeks in advance of the application being submitted, the applicant must 
prepare a pre-application community consultation report to accompany the planning application.

A Pre Application Community Consultation Report (October 2017) has been submitted in 
support of this application.  The Report has confirmed the following:

- The Public Events took place in the Odyssey Pavilion on 21st June 2017.  This event 
was advertised in the Belfast Telegraph on 14th June 2017. Over 750 flyers were sent 
to addresses in the area.

- The PAN notice was circulated to elected representatives for the Titanic Electoral District 
Area and East Belfast on 22nd May 2017.

- Face to face meetings were also held with local stakeholders and neighbouring 
properties/ landowners.

- All respondents were supportive of the proposal.

It is considered that the Pre-Community Consultation Report submitted has demonstrated that 
the applicant has carried out their duty under Section 27 of the Planning Act (NI) 2011 to consult 
the community in advance of submitting an application.

10.0

10.1

10.2

10.3

Summary of Recommendation:    Approval

Having regard to the policy context and other material considerations above, the proposal is 
considered acceptable and planning permission should be approved for the following reasons.

The proposal is for the refurbishment of the ailing Odyssey Pavilion that will see a 
reconfiguration of the existing layout to improve legibility and upgrade the existing facilities 
whilst improving visitor access to all units and levels. 

The proposed changes/ alterations are very much in keeping with the character of this 



Application ID: LA04/2017/2361/F

Page 8 of 11

established complex and are appropriate to its city centre location.

11.0

11.1

11.2

11.3

11.4

11.5

11.6

Conditions
As required by Section 61 of the Planning Act (Northern Ireland) 2011, the development 
hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 5 years from the date of this 
permission.

Reason: Time Limit.

A suitable buffer of at least 10 metres must be maintained between the location of refuelling, 
storage of oil/fuel, concrete mixing and washing areas, storage of machinery/material/spoil 
etc. and the River Lagan / Belfast Lough and any storm drains located on site. 

Reason: To prevent the release of contaminants to the River Lagan / Belfast Lough thus 
protecting the site selection features and conservation objectives of European Sites. 

If during the development works, new contamination or risks are encountered which have not 
previously been identified, works should cease and the Planning Authority shall be notified 
immediately. This new contamination shall be fully investigated in accordance with the Model 
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination (CLR11). In the event of unacceptable risks 
being identified, a remediation strategy shall be agreed with the Planning
Authority in writing, and subsequently implemented and verified to its satisfaction.

Reason: Protection of environmental receptors to ensure the site is suitable for use.

After completing the remediation works under Condition 3; and prior to occupation of the development, 
a verification report needs to be submitted in writing and agreed with Planning Authority. This report 
should be completed by competent persons in accordance with the Model Procedures for the 
Management of Land Contamination (CLR11).
The verification report should present all the remediation and monitoring works undertaken and 
demonstrate the effectiveness of the works in managing all the risks and achieving the remedial 
objectives.

Reason: Protection of environmental receptors to ensure the site is suitable for use.

No development or piling work should commence on this site until a piling risk assessment has been 
submitted in writing and agreed with the Planning Authority. Piling risk assessments should be 
undertaken in accordance with the methodology contained within the Environment Agency document 
on
“Piling and Penetrative Ground Improvement Methods on Land Affected by
Contamination: Guidance on Pollution Prevention” available at
http://publications.environment-agency.gov.uk/PDF/SCHO0501BITT-E-E.pdf.

Reason: Protection of environmental receptors to ensure the site is suitable for use.

A proprietary odour abatement systems shall be installed to suppress and disperse odours 
created from cooking operations within the development. The outlets from any extract 
ventilation ducting shall terminate at a height not less than 1 metre above the eaves height of 
the main building and should be directed away from nearby premises. 

Reason: 

Prior to the operation of the proposed development, the applicant must submit, to the Council 



Application ID: LA04/2017/2361/F

Page 9 of 11

11.7
for approval, a noise Verification Report (VR). This Report should demonstrate that the rating 
level (dB LAr) of all combined proposed building plant services shall not exceed the 
background sound level (for both day time and night time) as measured at the nearest noise 
sensitive premises with all sound measurements made in accordance with BS4142:2014 - 
Methods for rating sound and assessing industrial and commercial sound.

Reason: In the interests of amenity.

Informatives:
The applicant is advised to ensure that all plant and equipment is so situated, operated and 
maintained as to prevent the transmission of noise, odour or dust to nearby properties.

The purpose of the Conditions 3 - 5 is to ensure that any site risk assessment and 
remediation work is undertaken to a standard that enables safe development and end-use of 
the site such that it would not be determined as contaminated land under the forthcoming 
Contaminated Land legislation i.e. Part 3 of the Waste and Contaminated Land Order (NI) 
1997. It remains the responsibility of the developer to undertake and demonstrate that the 
works have been effective in managing all risks.

The applicant should ensure that the management of all materials onto and off this site are 
suitably authorized through the Waste Management Regulations (NI) 2006 and/or the Water 
Order (NI) 1999.

RU recommend that the applicant consult with the Water Management Unit within the DAERA 
regarding any potential dewatering that may be required during the redevelopment works 
including the need for discharge consent. Discharged waters should meet appropriate 
discharge consent Conditions.

The applicant’s attention is drawn to Article 10 of the Wildlife (Northern Ireland) Order 1985
(as amended), under which it is an offence to intentionally or recklessly kill, injure or take any 
wild animal included in Schedule 5 to the Order. This includes the common seal (Phoca
vitulina), grey seal (Halichoerus grypus), basking shark (Cetorhinus maximum), angel shark
(Squatina squatina), common skate (Dipturus batis) short snouted seahorse (Hippocampus 
hippocampus), spiny seahorse (Hippocampus guttulatus), spiny lobster (Palinurus elaphus) 
and fan mussel (Atrina fragilis).

Article 11 of the Wildlife (Northern Ireland) Order 1985 (as amended) provides that a person 
shall not be guilty of an offence under Article 10 (killing or injuring a species listed in
Schedule 5 (as amended)) if the act was incidental to a lawful operation (i.e. activity permitted 
by a Marine Licence or Planning Permission) and could not reasonably be avoided. A 
separate marine Wildlife Licence is therefore not required for national marine protected 
species if a Marine Licence/Planning Permission has been granted, since adherence to the 
conditions of the Marine Licence should reduce the likelihood of harm to marine national 
protected species.

Under Article 10 it is an offence to intentionally or recklessly disturb; common seals, grey 
seals or basking sharks. It is also an offence under Article 10 to intentionally or recklessly 
damage or destroy, or obstruct access to, any structure or place which these animals 
(Schedule 5¹) use for shelter or protection; damage or destroy anything which conceals or 
protects any such structure; or disturb any such animal while it is occupying a structure or 
place which it uses for shelter or protection.

Under Article 13 it is an offence to sell or transport any Schedule 7 animal dead or alive at any 
time. Any person who knowingly causes or permits an act which is made unlawful under 
Article 10 or Article 13 shall also be guilty of an offence.



Application ID: LA04/2017/2361/F

Page 10 of 11

If there is evidence of Schedule 5 animals listed above at the site, all works must cease 
immediately and further advice must be sought from DAERA Marine and Fisheries Division, 
Klondyke Building, Cromac Avenue, Belfast BT7 2JA.
Under the Wildlife (Northern Ireland) Order 1985 (as amended) a licence may be required for 
any operations which might impact on protected species.

The applicant's attention is drawn to regulation 34 of The Conservation (Natural Habitats, etc.) 
Regulations (Northern Ireland) 1995 (as amended), which states that it is an offence to 
deliberately capture, injure or kill a wild animal of a European Protected Species included in
Schedule 2 to these Regulations. This includes all species of dolphins, porpoises and whales 
and the marine turtle species.
(1) It is also an offence to;
(a) deliberately disturb such an animal while it is occupying a structure or place which it uses 
for shelter or protection;
(b) deliberately disturb such an animal in such a way as to be likely to;
(i) affect the local distribution or abundance of the species to which it belongs;
(ii) impair its ability to survive, breed or reproduce, or rear or care for its young; or

(iii) impair its ability to hibernate or migrate;
(c) deliberately take or destroy the eggs of such an animal;
(d) deliberately obstruct access to a breeding site or resting place of such an animal; or
(e) damage or destroy a breeding site or resting place of such an animal.
(2) It is an offence for any person;
(a) to have in his possession or control,
(b) to transport,
(c) to sell or exchange, or
(d) to offer for sale or exchange, any live or dead animal which is taken from the wild and is of 
a species listed in Annex IV(a) to the Habitats Directive, or any part of, or anything derived 
from, such an animal.

If there is evidence of Schedule 2 animals listed above at the site, all works must cease 
immediately and further advice must be sought from DAERA Marine and Fisheries Division,
Klondyke Building, Cromac Avenue, Belfast, BT7 2JA.
Under this legislation a licence may be required for any operations which might impact on
European Protected Species.

DfI Roads would recommend that the site operators (OTC and Matagorda 2) maintain a 
program of continuous review and improvement of traffic management during large events 
through the existing monthly tenants meetings and at the Quarterly Traffic forum meetings. 

The approval does not empower anyone to build or erect any structure, wall or fence or 
encroach in any other manner on a public roadway (including a footway and verge) or on any 
other land owned or managed by the Department for Infrastructure for which separate 
permissions and arrangements are required. 

Notwithstanding the terms and conditions of the Department for Infrastructure’s approval set 
out above, you are required under Articles 71-83 inclusive of the Roads (NI) Order 1993 to be 
in possession of the Department for Infrastructure’s consent before any work is commenced 
which involves making or altering any opening to any boundary adjacent to the public road, 
verge, or footway or any part of said road, verge, or footway bounding the site. The consent is 
available on personal application to the DfI Roads Section Engineer whose address is Belfast 
South Section Office, 1a Airport Road, Belfast BT3 9DY (ph. 028 9025 4600 for advice or to 
arrange an appointment). A monetary deposit will be required to cover works on the public 
road. 
 



Application ID: LA04/2017/2361/F

Page 11 of 11

ANNEX

Date Valid 9th October 2017

Date First Advertised 3rd November 2017

Date Last Advertised 3rd November 2017

Details of Neighbour Notification 
Odyssey Trust Company, 2 Queens Quay

Date of Last Neighbour Notification 10th January 2018

Date of EIA Determination 5th November 2017

ES Requested No

Drawing Numbers and Title
01, 06, 07, 08, 09, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14
Notification to Department (if relevant)

Date of Notification to Department:  
Response of Department:

Precautions shall be taken to prevent the deposit of mud and other debris on the adjacent 
road by vehicles travelling to and from the construction site. Any mud, refuse, etc. deposited 
on the road as a result of the development, must be removed immediately by the 
operator/contractor. 

All construction plant and materials shall be stored off the adopted road. 

It is the responsibility of the Developer to ensure that water does not flow from the site onto 
the public road (including verge or footway) and that existing road side drainage is preserved 
and does not allow water from the road to enter the site. 

Pedestrian Crossing Points across the proposed entrances are to be provided in accordance 
with the DTER/Scottish Office publication ‘Guidance on the use of Tactile Paving’. 

Neighbour Notification Checked                                                                  Yes

Signature(s)





Development Management Officer Report
Committee Application

Summary
Committee Meeting Date:13th February 2018 
Application ID: LA04/2017/2268/F  
Proposal:
Demolition of existing building Oxford & 
Gloucester House and erection of 11 storey 
mixed use building, basement car parking, 
ground floor coffee/restaurant use including 
odour abatement, upper floors office 
accommodation & all associated site and 
access works.

Location:
Lands at  Nos. 43-63 Chichester Street  29-31 
Gloucester Street and  Seymour Lane  Belfast

Referral Route: Major application

Recommendation: Approval
Applicant Name and Address:
Wirefox
2 Downshire Road
Holywood
BT18 9LU

Agent Name and Address:
TSA Planning
29 Linenhall Street
 Belfast
 BT2 8AB

Executive Summary:
This application seeks full permission for the demolition of the existing building Oxford & 
Gloucester House and erection of 11 storey mixed use building, basement car parking, ground 
floor coffee/restaurant use including odour abatement, upper floors office accommodation & all 
associated site and access works.

The key issues in the assessment of the proposal are as follows:
- principle of use on the site
- Access, movement, parking and transportation, including road safety
- design and impact on the Area of Townscape Character (ATC),
- demolition of a building within the ATC
- flood risk
- other environmental matters

The site is located on lands at no’s 43-63 Chichester Street, 29-31 Gloucester Street and Seymour 
Lane, Belfast. The majority of the site displays an existing office building, Oxford and Gloucester 
House whereas the remainder of the site is currently in use as a car park (which extends to 
Gloucester Street to the rear). The site is situated within Belfast City Centre, Victoria Street Area 
of Townscape Character and Civic Centre Character Area.

The proposal has been assessed against and is considered to comply with the Strategic Planning 
Policy Statement for Northern Ireland (SPPS), Belfast Urban Area Plan 2001 (BUAP), Draft Belfast 
Metropolitan Area Plan 2015 (BMAP), Planning Policy Statement (PPS3), Addendum to PPS6, 
PPS15 and Development Control Advice Note (DCAN4).

Whilst all statutory consultees have raised no issues of principle, the BCC Urban Design Officer 
and BCC Conservation officer expressed concern with respect to the height and design of the 
proposal.  Given extant permission on part of the site for a residential building of the same number 



of storeys, although a lower height, it was considered the proposal is acceptable and will enhance 
the character of the ATC.

Accordingly, it is recommended that the proposal is approved subject to the conditions set out in 
the report and it is requested that committee delegate authority to finalise wording of conditions.



Case Officer Report
Site Location Plan



Characteristics of the Site and Area

1.0 Description of Proposed Development
Demolition of existing building Oxford & Gloucester House and erection of 11 storey mixed use 
building, basement car parking, ground floor coffee/restaurant use including odour abatement, 
upper floors office accommodation & all associated site and access works.

2.0 Description of Site
The site is located on lands at no’s 43-63 Chichester Street, 29-31 Gloucester Street and 
Seymour Lane, Belfast. The majority of the site displays an existing office building, Oxford and 
Gloucester House whereas the remainder of the site is currently in use as a car park (which 
extends to Gloucester Street to the rear).  The existing building is glass fronted and fronts 
directly onto Chichester Street opposite Victoria Square.  The site is situated within Belfast City 
Centre, Victoria Street Area of Townscape Character and Civic Centre Character Area.

Planning Assessment of Policy and Other Material Considerations

3.0 Site History
There is an extant approval on part of the site at 43-47 Chichester Street, for “Proposed 
apartment complex comprising 75 No. apartments with a 13 storey frontage to Gloucester Street 
and 11 storey frontage to Chichester Street. The proposal includes pedestrian access onto 
Chichester Street and pedestrian and vehicular access onto Gloucester Street, basement car 
park, ground floor car park. reception area and bicycle stands, first floor swimming pool, gym 
(private for residents only) and second floor courtyard area and all associated works” under 
LA04/2015/0619/F, which was granted permission on 08/07/16.

There is also history under the following references:



LA04/2017/0202/LDE – Car Park – Appeal in progress
LA04/2017/1441/F - Retrospective application for car park (temporary) – Permission refused 
02/10/17

4.0 Policy Framework
4.1 (Draft) Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan (BMAP) 2015 and Belfast Urban Area Plan 2001 
(BUAP)
4.2 Victoria Street / Oxford Street Area of Townscape Character (ATC) 
4.3 Archaeological Site ANT061:004
4.4 Belfast City Centre
4.5 Belfast City Centre Area of Parking Restraint         
4.6 Civic Precinct Character Area                                                                                                                                                           
4.7 Strategic Planning Policy Statement (SPPS) 
4.3 Planning Policy Statement (PPS) 3:  Access, Movement and Parking
4.4 Planning Policy Statement (PPS) 4: Planning and Economic Development
4.5 Planning Policy Statement (PPS) 6: Planning, Archaeology and the Built Heritage
4.6 Addendum to Planning Policy Statement (PPS) 6: Areas of Townscape Character
4.7 Planning Policy Statement (PPS) 15: Planning and Flood Risk

5.0 Statutory Consultees Responses
5.1 DFI Roads Service - No objection subject to conditions
5.2 DfC Historic Environment Division – No objection 
5.3 NI Water – No objection
5.4 DAERA Regulation Unit – No objection subject to conditions
5.5 DAERA Water Management – No objection
5.6 DAERA Natural Environment Division (NED)  – No objection
5.7 DFI Rivers Agency – No objection

6.0 Non Statutory Consultees Responses
6.1 Belfast City Council (BCC) Environmental Health - No objection subject to conditions
6.2 Belfast City Council (BCC) Conservation Officer – Issues raised
6.3 Belfast City Council (BCC) Urban Design Officer – Issues raised
6.4 Belfast City Airport – No objection subject to conditions

7.0 Representations
7.1 The application has been neighbour notified and advertised in the local press.  No comments 
have been received. 

8.0 Other Material Considerations 
8.1 Parking Standards
8.2 Development Control Advice Note (DCAN) 4 – Restaurants, Cafes and Fast Food Outlets

9.0 Assessment
9.1 Following the recent Court of Appeal decision relating to BMAP, the extant development plan 
is now the Belfast Urban Area Plan 2001. However, given the stage at which the Draft BMAP 
had reached pre-adoption through a period of independent examination, the policies within the 
Draft BMAP still carry weight and are a material consideration in the determination of planning 
applications. The weight to be afforded is a matter of judgement for the decision maker.  The site 
is located inside the development limits of Belfast as shown in the draft Belfast Metropolitan Area 
Plan 2015.

9.2 The site is located within Belfast City Centre as designated in dBMAP, which is the main 
office area, and within in Victoria Street / Oxford Street ATC. The site is also located adjacent to 
a Rapid Transit Route.  The proposed development will develop the existing site by erecting an 
eleven storey mixed use building (restaurant and office) with roof plant.  The development 



includes basement car parking.  The proposed building is 44m (approx.) high at the highest 
point. The plans show the ground floor as restaurant and café/restaurant and reception use and 
floors 1 – 10 as office space.  The top 3 floors are ‘set back’ which allows the provision of a 
landscaped roof garden on floor 8. 

9.2 The key issues are:
- principle of use on the site
- Access, movement, parking and transportation, including road safety
- design and impact on the Area of Townscape Character (ATC),
- demolition of a building within the ATC
- flood risk
- other environmental matters

9.3 Principle of use on the site 
The site is within the city centre in BUAP, Draft BMAP and the version of BMAP purported to be 
adopted. Office use on the site is acceptable in principle as the development plan and PPS4 
identifies Belfast City Centre as the first choice location for office development.  The site is 
currently in use as a surface car park and an existing office building.  The part of the site which is 
currently operating as a car park was previously occupied by 3 storey red brick properties.  It is 
considered that the redevelopment of this entire site will provide grade office floorspace and 
represent a more productive use of this city centre site, subject to the consideration and 
resolution of planning and environmental matters.  Since part of the site displays an existing 
office building the use has already been partially established.  The ground floor use as a 
restaurant/café within this city centre location surrounded by a mix of uses (hotels, retail, bars) 
will bring increased vitality and viability into the city centre.  Therefore the principle of use at this 
location is acceptable.

9.4 Access, Movement, Parking and Transportation 
The basement parking is entered via a proposed vehicular access from Gloucester Street.  DfI 
Roads has no objections subject to conditions should approval be granted. The proposal is 
considered acceptable when assessed against Policy AMP 2 of PPS3 and DCAN 15.

9.5 A Transport Assessment Form, Travel Plan Framework and Service Management Plan were 
submitted. BMAP Policy TRAN 1 notes that one space per 300 square metres for operational 
space should be provided in this Area of Parking Restraint. 41 parking spaces (of which 3 are 
reserved for persons with mobility impairment) have been proposed with this development.  This 
number falls slightly short of guidance however the site benefits from a high level of pedestrian 
accessibility to local public transport.  The scale of development and transport implications of the 
proposal were assessed by DFI Roads and are considered to be acceptable.

9.6 170 Covered cycle parking spaces are proposed adjacent to the in the basement.  The cycle 
network in the area is already well established and cycle routes and links to the existing cycle 
networks are part of the proposal. The Framework Travel Plan outlines a range of methods that 
will be implemented to encourage and facilitate the use of sustainable modes of transport.  DfI 
has suggested a condition to be attached ensuring that 170 spaces are provided and retained.

9.7 Design and Impact on the ATC
As the site is within Victoria Street / Oxford Street ATC and the Civic Precinct Character Area, 
Policies ATC 1, ATC 2 and UE 1 apply. The Plan includes urban design criteria for designation 
CC 008.  Generally development proposals shall take account of the height of adjoining building 
as well as more specific guidance.  The area is described as a mix of uses and within the site 
context building heights range from 3 to 10 storeys. Site coverage is high and buildings are 
generally built to the perimeter of the block.

9.8 The proposed building is 11 storeys high. It has 8 storeys on the Chichester Street elevation 



with an additional 3 floors set back from the front elevation and stepped in from the side 
elevations. The extant approval on part of the site (under reference LA04/2015/1605/F) has 11 
storeys on the Chichester Street elevation plus an additional floor set back from the front 
elevation. Although the extant approval has 11 storeys on the Chichester Street elevation 
compared to 8 for the current proposal, they are similar in height because the proposed office 
building has higher ceiling to floor heights. The BCC Urban Design Officer and Conservation 
officer expressed concerns about the proposed height of the building however taking into 
account the extant approval and the heights of buildings in the vicinity of the site (Victoria 
Square opposite the site is 10 storeys whereas Victoria House and City Exchange situated on 
Gloucester St are 11 storeys and 9 storeys in height respectively), it is considered that the scale 
and massing of the proposal is acceptable on this city centre site.

9.9 The building is of a modern design and at ground floor displays a double height base with 
colonnade front.  BCC Urban Design Officer expressed concern regarding this approach 
however it is considered that this will bring a break out area and active frontage during the day 
and evening.  There is a low level wall and planters to define the area between the pavement 
and tables.  The front elevation displays 2 elements separated by a glazed set back defining the 
entrance.  As stated previously the top 3 floors are set back to allow for a roof garden.  This set 
back will reduce the scale of the building when viewed from the street level.  

9.10 The proposed mix of materials are limestone columns and colonnade, steel wire ties, corten 
steel and glass with some reflective panels.  The mix of materials represent Belfast’s history of 
shipbuilding and construction with the use of corten and steel wire ties, as well as other 
prominent buildings in the city with the use of limestone.  The proposed materials are considered 
acceptable for the area which is characterised by a variety of building types and elevation 
treatment. 

9.11 Demolition within the ATC: Policy ATC 1 states there will be a presumption in favour of 
retaining any building which makes a positive contribution to the character of the ATC, whilst 
ATC 2 states that development will only be permitted in an ATC where the development 
maintains or enhances its overall character and respects the built form of the area.  Annex A of 
the Addendum to PPS6 however acknowledged that the development of new buildings should 
be a stimulus and seen as an opportunity to enhance the area.  Given the extant approval on 
part of the site as well as the limited architectural value of the existing building, the demolition of 
the existing office building is acceptable.

9.12 A certain amount of overshadowing in non-residential space is acceptable in an urban 
context where buildings are compactly sited together.  A Daylight and Sunlight Study was 
submitted on 30/10/17 showing that the nearest residential space is The Residence opposite at 
Victoria Square.  The results show that all relevant windows in the assessment show full 
compliance to the Building Research Establishment (BRE) Guidelines.

9.13 Flood Risk
DfI Rivers Agency was consulted and confirmed that part of the site is an ‘undefended area’ 
within the 1 in 200 year coastal floodplain of Belfast Lough (i.e. not protected by flood defences). 
However, the principle of development is accepted as the proposal represents an exception to 
Policy FLD1 as it is a proposal for a replacement building.

9.14 Rivers Agency considered a submitted Flood Risk Assessment and advised that they had 
no reason to disagree with its conclusions.  With respect to FLD 3 Rivers Agency noted that 
whilst the surface water discharge is proposed to discharge to the existing system which is a 
“combined sewer”, NI Water recently has required that surface water be separated within the city 
centre.  It is however noted there will be no increase in the surface water discharge proposed 
and the applicant should seek confirmation from NI Water that they will permit the total surface 
water to the combined sewer.



9.15 Other Environmental Matters
Environmental Protection Unit of BCC reviewed a number of documents submitted relating to air 
quality, noise and contaminated land.  An Environmental Site Assessment and Generic 
Quantitative Risk Assessment were submitted and comments were invited from both BCC 
Environmental Protection Unit and DEARA.  BCC and DEARA both responded suggesting 
conditions to be included should approval be granted.

9.16 The details of the odour abatement system cannot be provided at present (the location is 
however) as there is no tenant for the ground floor.  The outlets of any future extract ventilation 
shall be conditioned to terminate at a height not less than 1m above the main roof line as per the 
stamped approved drawings.

9.17 An air quality assessment was submitted which detailed a qualitative construction phase 
assessment determining the potential dust and vehicle emission impact, and as a result BCC 
EPU has no objection to the proposal from an air quality perspective.  A noise impact 
assessment was also submitted and although the findings did not raise concern for BCC EPU 
they suggested 2 conditions to be attached should be approval granted. This included the 
preparation of a construction noise and vibration management plan to be submitted and agreed 
in writing with the planning authority prior to the commencement of development to ensure any 
potential impact on neighbouring amenity is minimised.

9.18 The application site is located within the Belfast Area of Archaeological Potential.  HED 
Historic Monuments is content with the proposal conditional on the agreement and 
implementation of a developer funded programme of archaeological works, in order to identify 
and record any archaeological remains in advance of construction or to provide for their 
preservation in situ. This condition is detailed below.

9.20 Developer Contributions
It is considered appropriate that should planning permission be granted it should be subject to 
the developer entering a Section 76 legal agreement with Belfast City Council to provide 
contributions to local environmental improvements to mitigate the impact of the development.  
The sum of monies/works to be undertaken are to be agreed with the developer/landowner prior 
to approval. The developer has expressed a willingness and commitment to provide satisfactory 
contributions.

9.21 Economic Benefit
The Planning Design and Access Statement submitted in support of the proposal states the 
development will provide 1400 jobs approximately with of course a number of short term 
construction jobs and will bring an injection of vitality to this area of Chichester Street. 

10.0 Conclusion
10.1 Having regard to the policy context and other material considerations above, the proposal is 
considered acceptable and planning permission is recommended for approval subject to 
conditions. It is recommended that the delegated authority is given to finalize wording of 
conditions.

Neighbour Notification Checked: Yes

Conditions: 

 1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 5 
years from the date of this permission.

Reason: As required by Section 61 of the Planning Act (Northern Ireland) 2011.



 2. No site works of any nature or development shall take place until a programme of 
archaeological work has been implemented, in accordance with a written scheme and 
programme prepared by a qualified archaeologist, submitted by the applicant and approved by 
the Planning Authority. The programme should provide for the identification and evaluation of 
archaeological remains within the site, for mitigation of the impacts of development, through 
excavation recording or by preservation of remains, and for preparation of an archaeological 
report.

Reason: to ensure that archaeological remains within the application site are properly identified, 
and protected or appropriately recorded.

 3. Access shall be afforded to the site at all reasonable times to any archaeologist 
nominated by the Department for Communities to observe the operations and to monitor the 
implementation of archaeological requirements.

Reason: to monitor programmed works in order to ensure that identification, evaluation and 
appropriate recording of any archaeological remains, or any other specific work required by 
condition, or agreement is satisfactorily completed.

 4. The development hereby permitted shall not become operational until the 
vehicular access, including visibility splays with ‘x’ distance of 2.4 m and ‘y’ distance of 45.0 m 
are provided. The area within the visibility splays shall be cleared to provide a level surface no 
higher than 250 mm above the level of the adjoining carriageway and such splays shall be 
retained and kept clear thereafter. The access shall be across lowered kerbs constructed to the 
satisfaction of DfI Roads.

Reason: To ensure there is a satisfactory means of access in the interests of road safety and the 
convenience of road users.

 5. The development hereby permitted shall not become operational until hard 
surfaced area have been constructed in accordance with the approved  Drawing Nos. 02 and 04 
bearing the Belfast City Council Planning Office date stamp 02 October 2017 to provide 
adequate facilities for parking, servicing and circulating within the site. No part of these hard 
surfaced areas shall be used for any purpose at any time than for the parking and movement of 
vehicles.

Reason: To ensure that adequate provision has been made for parking and manoeuvring within 
the site.

 6. A minimum of 170 No. cycle parking spaces and stands shall be provided and 
permanently retained within the development for use by staff and visitors to the development.

Reason: to encourage the use of alternative modes of transport for development users.

 7. The development hereby permitted shall operate in accordance with the approved 
Service Management Plan bearing the Belfast City Council Planning Office date stamp 02 
October 2017.

Reason: in the interests of road safety and the convenience of road users.

 8. The development hereby permitted shall operate in accordance with a Travel Plan 
to be submitted but in accordance with the Travel Plan Framework bearing the Belfast City 
Council Planning Office date stamp 02 October 2017. The Site Operator will provide access to 
the Translink iLink Initiative and the Bike2Work Initiative or equivalent measures agreed by DfI 



Roads.

Reason: To encourage the use of alternative modes of transport to the private car in accordance 
with the Transportation Principles.

 9. Prior to the occupation of the proposal The rating level (dBLar) of noise from all 
combined external building plant services shall not exceed the background sound level   for 
daytime (07:00-23:00hrs) and  night time( 23:00to 07:00 hrs) as outlined in the submitted Lester 
Acoustic report titled ‘Inward and outward sound level impact assessment” dated 28th 
September 2017 report ref:  MRL/1164/L01  at the nearest  noise sensitive premises when 
measured in accordance with the assessment methodology outlined in BS4142:2014-Methods 
for rating sound and assessing industrial and commercial sound.

Reason: Protection of amenity

10. Prior to commencement of development, a construction noise and vibration 
management plan shall be developed and submitted for review and approval by Belfast City 
Council.  This plan should outline the methods to be employed to minimise any noise and 
vibration impact of demolition and construction operations demonstrating ‘best practicable 
means. The plan should pay due regard to BS5228:2009 Noise and Vibration Control on 
Construction and open sites and include a detailed programme for the demolition/construction 
phase, the proposed noise and vibration monitoring methods, noise mitigation methods and 
evidence of neighbour liaison.

Reason: Protection of amenity

11. As part of site clearance works, all remaining fuel storage tanks and associated 
infrastructure on the site shall be fully decommissioned in line with Guidance for Pollution 
Prevention No. 2 (GPP2) and Pollution Prevention Guidance No. 27 (PPG27). Soil and 
groundwater sampling shall be undertaken for a suitable analytical suite. 

Reason: Protection of environmental receptors to ensure the site is suitable for use.

12. No piling work should commence on this site until a piling risk assessment has 
been submitted in writing and agreed with the Planning Authority. Piling risk assessments should 
be undertaken in accordance with the methodology contained within the Environment Agency 
document on “Piling and Penetrative Ground Improvement Methods on Land Affected by 
Contamination: Guidance on Pollution Prevention”,
available at:
http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20140328084622/http:/cdn.environmentagency.gov.uk
/scho0202bisw-e-e.pdf
In the event of unacceptable risks being identified, a remediation strategy shall be agreed with 
the Planning Authority in writing, and subsequently implemented and verified to its satisfaction.

Reason: Protection of environmental receptors to ensure the site is suitable for use.

13. After completing any remediation works required under Conditions 11-12, and 
prior to occupation of the development, a verification report needs to be submitted in writing and 
agreed with Planning Authority. This report should be completed by competent persons in 
accordance with the Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination (CLR11). 
The verification report should present all the remediation and monitoring works undertaken and 
demonstrate the effectiveness of the works in managing all the risks and achieving the remedial 
objectives.



Reason: Protection of environmental receptors to ensure the site is suitable for use.

14. Prior to the commencement of operation of the proposed ground floor coffee shop 
and restaurant uses a proprietary odour abatement system shall be installed in each food 
premises to suppress and disperse odours created from cooking operations. The outlets from the 
proposed extract ventilation ducting shall terminate at a height not less than 1 metre above the 
main roof line, as per the stamped approved drawings (02A, 05A-09A) and should be directed 
away from nearby premises.

Reason: Protection of amenity

15. The kitchen extraction and ventilation systems must be cleaned and maintained in 
accordance with Manufacturer’s instructions to ensure compliance with Condition 14.

Reason: Protection of amenity.

Signature(s)

Date:



ANNEX

Date Valid 2nd October 2017

Date First Advertised 20th October 2017

Date Last Advertised

Details of Neighbour Notification (all addresses)
The Owner/Occupier, 
02,Unit 25 Ug,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
1st Floor,16-18 Northern Court,Gloucester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4LS,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
2nd Floor,16-18 Northern Court,Gloucester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4LS,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
31-35 ,Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QD,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
3g,Unit 14 Ug,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
3rd Floor,16-18 Northern Court,Gloucester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4LS,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
7 Camicie,Unit 12 Ug,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
9-11 ,Seymour Street,Belfast,Antrim,,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 1001,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 1002,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 1003,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 1004,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 1005,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 201,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 202,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 203,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 204,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 205,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 206,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 207,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   



The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 208,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 209,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 210,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 211,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 212,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 213,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 214,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 215,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 216,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 301,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 302,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 303,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 304,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 305,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 306,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 307,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 308,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 309,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 310,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 311,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 312,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 313,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 401,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 402,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 403,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   



The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 404,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 405,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 406,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 407,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 408,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 409,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 410,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 411,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 412,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 413,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 414,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 501,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 502,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 503,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 504,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 505,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 506,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 507,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 508,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 509,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 510,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 511,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 512,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 513,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 514,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   



The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 601,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 602,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 603,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 604,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 605,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 606,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 607,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 608,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 609,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 610,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 611,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 612,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 613,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 614,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 701,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 702,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 703,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 704,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 705,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 801,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 802,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 803,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 804,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 805,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 901,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   



The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 902,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 903,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 904,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 905,70 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JQ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apple,Unit 5 Ug,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Art & Hobby,Unit 34 Ug,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Belfast Bookshop,Unit 28,Victoria Centre,38 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4TL,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Belfast City Council,22-38 ,Gloucester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4LS,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Benefits Agency,31-41 Plaza Building,Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JF,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Build A Bear,Unit 16a Ug,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Cafe Victoria,Victoria Centre,38 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4TL,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Calvin Klein,Unit 19 Lg,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Carphone Warehouse,Unit 31 Ug,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Centre For Effective Services,Ground Floor,65-67 Scottish Legal Building,Chichester 
Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JD,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Cgi Victoria Square Partnership,Unit 1 3rd Floor,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 
4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
China Buffet King,Unit 1 Sf,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Chiquito'S,Unit 9 Sf,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Classique,Unit 25,Victoria Centre,38 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4LD,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Costa Coffee,Unit 1 Ffc,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Crombie,Unit 20 Lg,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Cruise/Hugo Boss,Unit 1 Lg,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Customer Services Centre,Unit 1 Lgk1 Lower Ground Floor,1 Victoria 
Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Davies Adair & Partners Ltd,1st Floor Suite A,11-13 ,Gloucester 
Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4LS,   



The Owner/Occupier, 
Deramore Property Group,4th Floor,65-67 Scottish Legal Building,Chichester 
Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JD,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Dune,Unit 16 Ug,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Express Image,Unit 27,Victoria Centre,38 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4TL,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Faithful & Gould,3rd Floor,11-13 ,Gloucester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4LS,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Fat Face,Unit 11 Ug,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Firetrap,Unit 15 Lg,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Fossil,Unit 22a Ug,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Free Spirit,Unit 40 Ug,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Gamestop,Unit 33 Ug,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Geox,Unit 15 Ug,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Gerry Weber,Unit 12 Lg,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Ginger Snips,Unit 18,Victoria Centre,38 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4TL,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Goldsmiths,Unit 21 Ug,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Gourmet Burger Kitchen,Unit 3 Sfc,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Ground Floor,16-18 Northern Court,Gloucester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4LS,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
H&M,Unit 17 Ug,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Harrison,54-58 Victoria House,Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4HN,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
House Of Fraser,Unit 41 Ug,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Jd Sports,Unit 7 Ug,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Jewel Time,Unit 29,Victoria Centre,38 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4TL,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
La Senza,Unit 18 Ug,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
La Tasca,Unit 4 Sfc,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Levis,Unit 24 Lg,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Lk Bennett,Unit 14 Lg,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 



Lunns,Unit 17 Lg,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Mama'S And Papa'S (Retail) Limited,Unit 9 Ug,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 
4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Mcdonald'S,Unit 5 Ffc,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Mcdonalds,Store 8,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Minute Heel Bar,Unit 17,Victoria Centre,38 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4TL,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Monsoon/Accessorize,Unit 6 Lg,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
More Group (N I) Ltd,54-58 Victoria House,Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4LE,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Mr Leans Meat Market,Unit 24,Victoria Centre,38 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT12 
6HN,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Multi Development Uk Ltd,7th Floor,11-13 ,Gloucester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4LS,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Nandos,Unit 1 Sfc,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Nitel Phone,Unit 30,Victoria Centre,38 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4TL,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
O'Briens,Unit 2 Ffc,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Odeon Uci,Unit 13 Sf,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Optical,Unit 16,Victoria Centre,38 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4TL,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Options,Unit 4-5,Victoria Centre,38 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4TL,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Pepe Jeans,Unit 9 Lg,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Phase Eight,Unit 8 Lg,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Pizza Hut,Unit 4 Ffc,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Poundstretchers Ltd,Victoria Centre,38 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4TL,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Protocol Skills,3rd Floor,65-67 Scottish Legal Building,Chichester 
Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JD,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Provincia Professional Recruitment,2nd Floor Suite A,11-13 ,Gloucester 
Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4LS,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Pull And Bear,Unit 4 Ug,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Pumpkin Patch,Unit 3 Ug,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 



Regis,Unit 39 Ug,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Reiss,Unit 3 Lg,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Remus Uomo,Unit 8 Ug (Shop Unit),1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Robins A.H.W.Ltd,1st Floor,65-67 Scottish Legal Building,Chichester 
Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JD,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Robins Response,65-67 Scottish Legal Building,Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 
4JD,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Scottish Legal Life Assurance Society,2nd Floor,65-67 Scottish Legal 
Building,Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4JT,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Shopmobility Belfast Ltd,Unit B2,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Shopmobility Belfast,Unit 26,Victoria Centre,38 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 
4TL,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Spar Stores,Unit 13-15,Victoria Centre,38 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4TL,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Spur Steak & Grill,Unit 3 Ffc,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Starbucks,Unit 38 Ug,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Stewarts Wine Barrel,Unit 1,Victoria Centre,38 Chichester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 
4TL,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Store 9,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
T.M.Lewin,Unit 10 Lg,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Ted Baker,Unit 5 Lg,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Tgi'S Fridays,Unit R3,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
The Perfume Shop,Unit 13 Ug,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
The Pier,Unit 22 Lg,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Timberland,Unit 2 Lg,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Tommy Hilfiger,Unit 18 Lg,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Topshop,Unit 2 Msu,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Ulster Orchestra Society Ltd,9 Gloucester Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4LS,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Unit 1 Ug,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   



The Owner/Occupier, 
Unit 1,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Unit 10 Sf,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Unit 10 Ug,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Unit 11 Lg,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Unit 11 Sf,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Unit 12 Sf,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Unit 21 Lg,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Unit 22 Ug,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Unit 23 Lg,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Unit 24 Ug,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Unit 25a Ug,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Unit 26 Lg,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Unit 26 Ug,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Unit 27 Lg,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Unit 27 Ug,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Unit 28 Ug,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Unit 29 Ug,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Unit 29a Ug,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Unit 29b Ug,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Unit 3 Sf,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Unit 30 Ug,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Unit 32-33 Ug,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Unit 35 Ug,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Unit 37 Ug,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Unit 3b,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   



The Owner/Occupier, 
Unit 42 Ug,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Unit 5 Sf,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Unit 6 Sf,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Unit 7 Ff,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Unit 7 Sf,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Unit 8 Ff,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Unit 8 Sf,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Unit 9 Ff,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Victoria Camera & Video Centre Ltd,Unit 6-7,Victoria Centre,38 Chichester 
Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4TL,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Victoria Camera & Video Ltd,Unit 7,Victoria Centre,38 Chichester 
Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4LD,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Victoria House, 15-17 Glouchester Street, Belfast   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Vodaphone,Unit 23 Ug,1 Victoria Square,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4QG,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Woolwich Independent Financial Advisory Services Ltd,54-58 Victoria House,Chichester 
Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 4LE,   

Date of Last Neighbour Notification
19th January 2018

Date of EIA Determination

ES Requested Yes /No

Planning History

Ref ID: Z/1980/0716
Proposal: ERECTION OF OFFICE ACCOMMODATION WITH SHOPS ON GROUND 
FLOOR
Address: PLAZA BALLROOM, 31-39 CHICHESTER STREET, BT1
Decision: 
Decision Date: 

Ref ID: Z/1984/1833
Proposal: ERECTION OF 2 ADVERTISING PANELS
Address: 39 CHICHESTER STREET
Decision: 



Decision Date: 

Ref ID: Z/2002/2627/F
Proposal: Amendment to previously approved scheme (Z/2002/0010) for 10 storey office 
development with parking to rear.
Address: 15-29 Gloucester Street,Belfast,BT1 4LS
Decision: 
Decision Date: 04.03.2003

Ref ID: Z/1984/0331
Proposal: DEMOLITION OF BUILDING AND PROVISION OF CAR PARKING
Address: 29/31 GLOUCESTER STREET
Decision: 
Decision Date: 

Ref ID: Z/2003/2387/F
Proposal: 9 storey office development (ground and 8 floors office) with basement level 
car park and 9th floor plant room.
Address: 15-29, Gloucester Street, Town Parks, Belfast, Northern Ireland, BT01 4LS
Decision: 
Decision Date: 18.03.2004

Ref ID: Z/2007/2129/F
Proposal: 13 storey residential development comprising 45 apartments and 1 level of car 
parking (amended proposal)
Address: 29-31 Gloucester Street, Town Parks, Belfast, BT01 4LS
Decision: 
Decision Date: 07.10.2008

Ref ID: Z/2005/2628/F
Proposal: Proposed office development comprising of 11 floors of offices (Amended 
description).
Address: 29 Gloucester Street, Town Parks, Belfast, BT01 4LS
Decision: 
Decision Date: 21.06.2006

Ref ID: Z/2002/0010/F
Proposal: 10 storey office development with parking to rear.
Address: 15-29 Gloucester Street,Belfast,BT1 4LS
Decision: 
Decision Date: 11.04.2002

Ref ID: Z/2006/0153/F
Proposal: Office development comprising ground floor car parking and 10 floors of 



offices
Address: 15-27 Gloucester Street, Town Parks, Belfast, Northern Ireland, BT01 4LS
Decision: 
Decision Date: 30.05.2006

Ref ID: Z/2012/1303/F
Proposal: Erection of a new BT street cabinet to facilitate provision of new Fibre Optic 
infrastructure across BT Network. Cabinet dimensions approx. 1128mm high, 780mm 
wide and 407mm deep.
Address: Set at front of footpath o/s 47/49 Chichester Street, Belfast, BT1 4JA,
Decision: PG
Decision Date: 05.03.2013

Ref ID: Z/2001/1631/F
Proposal: Retail-led, comprehensive, major, mixed use scheme, including, offices, 
leisure, catering, residential, and civic/cultural activities, supported by associated 
servicing facilities and underground car parking.
Address: Site bounded by Chichester Street, Victoria Street, Ann Street, Arthur Street, 
William Street South, Montgomery Street: Including all, addresses therein.
Decision: 
Decision Date: 25.04.2003

Ref ID: Z/2008/0154/Q
Proposal: Advertisements and shop fronts
Address: Victoria Square, Belfast
Decision: 
Decision Date: 

Ref ID: Z/1979/1903
Proposal: ADVERTISING HOARDING
Address: 55-57 HIGH STREET, BT1
Decision: 
Decision Date: 

Ref ID: Z/1993/2300
Proposal: Erection of signage
Address: OXFORD HOUSE AND GLOUCESTER HOUSE 49-63 CHICHESTER 
STREET BELFAST BT1
Decision: 
Decision Date: 

Ref ID: Z/1993/2301
Proposal: Extension and alterations to offices
Address: 49/63 CHICHESTER STREET BELFAST BT1
Decision: 



Decision Date: 07.09.1993

Ref ID: Z/2001/2603/F
Proposal: Ground floor office/showroom and carpark with eight floors of offices over.
Address: 11-13 Gloucester Street, Belfast
Decision: 
Decision Date: 16.01.2002

Ref ID: Z/2001/2602/F
Proposal: Ground floor office/showroom and car park with seven floors of offices over
Address: 11-13 Gloucester Street, Belfast
Decision: 
Decision Date: 16.01.2002

Ref ID: Z/2007/2909/F
Proposal: Provision of 2no additional floors to provide 7-storey office accommodation 
and ground floor lobby alterations to provide kiosk.
Address: 65-67 Chichester Street, Town Parks, Belfast BT1 4JD
Decision: 
Decision Date: 02.10.2008

Ref ID: Z/2003/2589/F
Proposal: Proposed internal refurbishment, re-cladding and new windows to the front 
elevation.
Address: 65-67 Chichester Street, Town Parks, Belfast, Northern Ireland, BT01 4JD
Decision: 
Decision Date: 04.12.2003

Ref ID: Z/2014/0079/A
Proposal: 1no. 96 sheet freestanding advertising panel
Address: 43-47 Chichester Street, Belfast, BT1 4JD,
Decision: CG
Decision Date: 15.04.2014

Ref ID: LA04/2017/2268/F
Proposal: Demolition of existing building Oxford & Gloucester House and erection of 11 
storey mixed use building, basement car parking, ground floor coffee/restaurant use, 
upper floors office accommodation & all associated site and access works.
Address: Lands at, Nos. 43-63 Chichester Street, 29-31 Gloucester Street and, Seymour 
Lane, Belfast,
Decision: 
Decision Date: 

Ref ID: LA04/2017/0202/LDE



Proposal: Car Park
Address: Site to rear of, 43-47 Chichester Street, Town Parks, Belfast, BT1 4LS,
Decision: PR
Decision Date: 

Ref ID: LA04/2017/1441/F
Proposal: Retrospective application for car park (temporary) (amended address)
Address: Lands at 43-47 Chichester Street and, 29-31 Gloucester Street, Town Parks, 
Belfast, BT1 4LS,
Decision: PR
Decision Date: 02.10.2017

Ref ID: LA04/2017/1124/PAD
Proposal: Proposed mixed use development to include ground floor café/retail use with 
upper floors of office accommodation and basement level parking and services. Building 
height to be 9 storey to Chichester Street and Gloucester Street with set back at the 10th 
storey to a 12 storey tower
Address: Lands at nos 43-63 Chichester Street, Gloucester Street and Seymour Lane, 
Belfast, BT1 4HL,
Decision: 
Decision Date: 

Ref ID: LA04/2016/2483/A
Proposal: Aluminium fascia sign with back lit built out lettering and complimentary double 
sided projecting sign
Address: 15-17 Glouchester Street, Belfast, BT1 4LS,
Decision: CG
Decision Date: 16.01.2017

Ref ID: LA04/2017/1236/PAN
Proposal: Proposed mixed use development to include ground floor café/retail use with 
upper floors of office accommodation and basement level parking and services. Building 
height to be 9 storey to Chichester Street and Gloucester Street with set back at the 10th 
storey to a 12 storey tower.
Address: Lands at nos 43-63 Chichester Street, Gloucester Street and Seymour Lane, 
Belfast,
Decision: 
Decision Date: 

Ref ID: LA04/2017/2280/TPO
Proposal: Crown reduce 1.5m + remove limb 2 sycamore
Address: 65-67 Chichester Street, Belfast, BT1 4JD,
Decision: 
Decision Date: 



Ref ID: LA04/2015/0619/F
Proposal: Proposed apartment complex comprising 75 No. apartments with a 13 storey 
frontage to Gloucester Street and 11 storey frontage to Chichester Street. The proposal 
includes pedestrian access onto Chichester Street and pedestrian and vehicular access 
onto Gloucester Street, basement car park, ground floor car park. reception area and 
bicycle stands, first floor swimming pool, gym (private for residents only) and second 
floor courtyard area and all associated works (amended plans _ additional supporting 
information)
Address: Lands at 43-47 Chichester Street, Belfast, BT1 4JD,
Decision: PG
Decision Date: 08.07.2016

Ref ID: LA04/2015/1408/PAD
Proposal: Request to discuss "Class A" office accommodation in Belfast City Centre - 
AMENDED PLANS SUBMITTED
Address: Chichester Street, Belfast,
Decision: 
Decision Date: 

Notification to Department (if relevant)

Date of Notification to Department:  N/A
Response of Department: N/A



Development Management Officer Report
Committee Application

Summary
Committee Meeting Date: 13 February 2018  :
Application ID: LA04/2017/1394/F  
Proposal:
Erection of supported accommodation for 
older people comprising 28 one bedroom and 
4 two bedroom apartments and associated 
communal space including dining and social 
areas; kitchen: staff facilities comprising office 
and changing rooms: laundry room: external 
landscaped garden: car parking: dedicated 
vehicular access off Harberton Park and 
associated landscaping (32 apartments in 
total)

Location:
Land East of Harberton Park to the South of no 
25 Harberton Park  Belfast   

Referral Route:
Proposal is for over 12 residential units with objections. 

Recommendation: Approval
Applicant Name and Address:
AbbeyField Belfast
Agape Centre 
238-266 Lisburn Road
 Belfast
 BT9 6GF

Agent Name and Address:
 Turley
Hamilton House 
3 Joy Street
 Belfast
 BT2 8LE

Executive Summary:

The site is located within the urban limits of Belfast. The site forms part of the Kings Hall and 
Balmoral Showgrounds complex.

There is no relevant planning history on this specific site. The application site is located within the 
settlement development limits of Belfast but not within any BUAP or Draft BMAP designation.

The key issues in this planning application are:

 Principle of development at this location.
 Density, Design, scale & layout.
 Impact on neighbouring residential amenity
 Impact on traffic. 

The site is ‘white land’ within the BUAP and Draft BMAP. The surrounding development pattern is 
characterised primarily by residential development. It is considered that the principle of 
redevelopment of the site for supported housing for older people is acceptable in this location.

The design proposed is more contemporary than found in the locality, this is considered 
acceptable as it pays due regard to its context. The proposed development will not create conflict 
with adjacent land uses and an adverse effect on existing or proposed properties in terms of 
overlooking, loss of light, overshadowing, noise or other disturbance is not anticipated.



Application ID: LA04/2017/1394/F

Page 2 of 16

The proposed density of the development is higher than that found within the existing residential 
area. Given the scale of the proposed development, it is expected that it will contribute to an 
overall increase in the density of the area.  However, the nature of the proposed use does differ 
from single family residential accommodation and the individual plots in the area and which will 
remain the prevailing character. This forms part of the redevelopment of the Kings Hall site and is 
distinguishable and this use adds to the variety and mix in the area and will meet an 
accommodation need. 

Consultees

Environmental Health (EPU); Rivers Agency and DFI Roads offer no objection subject to 
conditions and/ or informatives. Amendments have been made to the satisfaction of the Council 
Tree Officer. 

Representations

 3 no. objections have been received for this proposed development, citing issues such as 
access, design and impact on residential amenity. These matters are dealt with in detail in the 
report below.

Recommendation

Having regard to the policy context and the other material planning considerations, it is 
considered that, on balance, the proposed development is acceptable. 

Planning Approval subject to Conditions.

Signature(s):



Application ID: LA04/2017/1394/F

Page 3 of 16

Case Officer Report
Site Location Plan

Consultations:
Consultation Type Consultee Response
Statutory NI Water - 

Multi Units 
East - 
Planning 
Consultation
s

Advice

Statutory DFI Roads - 
Hydebank

Advice

Non Statutory Env Health 
Belfast City 
Council

Substantive 
Response 
Received

Non Statutory Env Health 
Belfast City 
Council

Non Statutory Rivers 
Agency

Non Statutory Rivers 
Agency

Substantive 
Response 
Received

Non Statutory Rivers 



Application ID: LA04/2017/1394/F

Page 4 of 16

Agency
Non Statutory Rivers 

Agency
Substantive 
Response 
Received

Statutory DFI Roads - 
Hydebank

Content

Non Statutory Env Health 
Belfast City 
Council

Substantive 
Response 
Received

Representations:
Letters of Support None Received
Letters of Objection 3
Number of Support Petitions and signatures No Petitions Received
Number of Petitions of Objection and signatures No Petitions Received

1.0

1.1

1.2

1.3

Summary of Issues  

3 no. objections have been received for this proposed development. The issues raised 
include:

• Proposed design is not in keeping with the existing properties. One objection 
describes the proposal as ‘institutional’ with no relationship or sympathy with the 
surroundings. 
• Proposed development focuses primarily on achieving the desired level of 
accommodation within a budget. 
• Proposal will add to existing traffic density and car parking problems within the local 
area. Objection enquires if any traffic or parking surveys have been undertaken. 
• Detrimental impact of the proposal on property values. 
• Access to the site from Balmoral Avenue would lessen the negative impact on 
residents of Harberton Park. 
• One objection questions why this proposal is presented as a ‘stand-alone’ 
development, when it is clearly an integral part of the ‘Kings Hall Health and Wellbeing 
Park’. 
• Bulk and mass of the development is out of keeping with neighbouring properties, in 
particular the side elevations facing to the North and South. Objection contrasts the 
three storey height of these elevations with the surrounding two storey properties. 
• North Elevation will overlook the objector’s patio area and permit views into 
bedrooms, living room and kitchen. 
• Proposed development will cause overshadowing at times of the year when the sun 
is low in the sky. 
• The side elevations will be clearly visible from the road in the adjacent conservation 
area. 

These issues are considered in this report.

2.0

2.1

Characteristics of the Site and Area

The site is located within the urban limits of Belfast. The site forms part of the Kings 
Hall and Balmoral Showgrounds complex. The site measures approximately 0.42 
Hectares in area and is relatively flat. The front boundary of the site is defined by a 



Application ID: LA04/2017/1394/F

Page 5 of 16

2.2

metal fence with trees and hedgerow behind, the southern boundary is defined by a 
wooden fence whilst the remaining boundaries are undefined. 

The surrounding area is primarily characterised by residential land use, with traditional 
detached and semi-detached properties with large garden areas. The site lies adjacent 
to but not within the Malone Conservation Area. 

3.0

3.1

3.2

Description of Proposal

The proposal is for the ‘Erection of supported accommodation for older people 
comprising 28 one bedroom and 4 two bedroom apartments and associated 
communal space including dining and social areas; kitchen; staff facilities comprising 
office and changing rooms; laundry room; external landscaped garden; car parking; 
dedicated vehicular access off Harberton Park and associated landscaping (32 
apartments in total)’. 

The proposed building is a large ‘T’ shaped building that fronts onto Harberton Park. 
When viewed from Harberton Park, the building appears as a two storey building with 
a ridge height of 9.6 metres from finished floor level (FFL). There is a 2.5 storey rear 
return proposed which measures 11.4 metres to ridge from FFL, providing 3 levels of 
accommodation.

4.0 

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

Planning Assessment of Policy and Other Material Considerations

Site History

The site is located within the Kings Hall and Balmoral Showgrounds complex. This 
application is part of the wider proposals for the Kings Hall site for health related uses. 
The site immediately to the south has recently been developed for residential use. 

There is no relevant planning history on this specific site. 

Policy Framework

• Belfast Urban Area Plan (BUAP)
• Draft Belfast Metropolitan Plan 2015 (Draft BMAP)  
• Strategic Planning Policy Statement (SPPS) 
• PPS 3 – Access, Movement and Parking
• PPS 7 – Quality Residential Environments
• PPS 7 Addendum – Safeguarding the Character of Established Residential Areas
• PPS 12 – Housing in Settlements
• PPS 15 – Planning and Flood Risk
• Creating Places – Achieving Quality in Residential Developments
• Living Places - An Urban Stewardship and Design Guide for Northern Ireland

Statutory Consultee Responses

• NI Water Multi Units East – No objection subject to informatives.
• Transport NI – No objection subject to conditions and informatives.

Non Statutory Consultee Responses

• Belfast City Council Environmental Health – No objection subject to conditions and 
informatives.



Application ID: LA04/2017/1394/F

Page 6 of 16

4.5

4.7

4.8

4.9

• Rivers Agency - No objection subject to informatives.
•  Belfast City Council Tree Officer – Concerns that available area for planting is 
limited due to the size of the building. Tree Officer advised some changes to the 
landscaping details, which were accepted by the applicant. 
 
Assessment:

Section 45 (1) of the Planning Act (Northern Ireland) 2011 requires regard to be had to 
the Development Plan, so far as material to the application and to any other material 
considerations. Section 6(4) states that where regard is to be had to the Development 
Plan, the determination must be made in accordance with the Plan unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise. The proposed site is located within the urban area 
of Belfast. The adopted Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2015 (BMAP) has been 
quashed as a result of a judgement in the Court of Appeal delivered on 18th May 
2017. As a consequence of this, the Belfast Urban Area Plan 2001 (BUAP) is now the 
statutory development plan for the area with draft BMAP remaining a material 
consideration. 

The application site is located within the settlement development limits of Belfast but 
not within any BUAP or Draft BMAP designation. The site lies adjacent to, but outside 
the Malone Conservation area, which incorporates land to the north and east along 
Harberton Park. 

The SPPS provides a regional framework of planning policy that will be taken account 
of in the preparation of Belfast City Council’s Local Development Plan (LDP). At 
present, the LDP has not been adopted therefore transitional arrangements require 
the council to take account of the SPPS and existing planning policy documents, with 
the exception of PPS 1, 5 and 9. The role of planning is to prevent proposals which 
would unacceptably affect amenity and the existing use of the land. Planning 
authorities are guided by the principle that sustainable development should be 
permitted, having regard to the local development plan and all other material 
considerations, unless the proposed development will cause demonstrable harm to 
interests of acknowledged importance. The SPPS also places emphasis on improving 
health and well-being, supporting good design and positive place making. The SPPS 
also advises that new housing developments should respect the local character and 
environmental quality as well as safeguarding amenity of existing residents. It also 
promotes the recycling of land and buildings for new housing development. 

Design, Scale and Mass

Policy QD1 of PPS7 relates to design quality in new residential development and is 
applicable to this development given that it is residential in nature. The front element 
of the building is two storey in height and separated into three blocks, which gives the 
general appearance of three separate dwellings. Juliette balconies are proposed on 
the front elevation; whilst not a characteristic of the area, there is balance 
consideration to be made as many of the residents will have restricted mobility, it is 
considered that the balconies will provide an additional amenity area for residents, 
allowing a greater outlook onto the activity of the street. The proposal also utilises 
details that are prevalent in the locality, such as the bay windows and red brick 
detailing. The proposed materials include red brick to the recessed walls connecting 
each block with the remaining render walls and roof tiles to match existing materials in 
the area. It is recommended that samples should be provided to the Council for 
consideration and approval prior to commencement of any development to ensure 
they are appropriate.



Application ID: LA04/2017/1394/F

Page 7 of 16

4.10

4.11

4.12

4.13

4.14

The rear block is slightly higher than the front, with three floors of accommodation 
across 2.5 storeys. The lower walls will be constructed with red brick whilst the upper 
wall, dormers and roof will be zinc cladding, which assists in breaking up the massing 
of the block. This block will generally be obscured from any public viewpoints along 
Harberton Park, with the exception of transient views from the north. Views of the rear 
block will be achievable from some of the surrounding dwellings. Whilst zinc is not a 
prevalent material within the locality, it is considered that, on balance, the proposal is 
sensitive to the scale, proportions and materials of existing development. 

Density and Amenity Provision

The proposed density of the development is higher than that found within the existing 
residential area. Given the scale of the proposed development, it is expected that it will 
contribute to an overall increase in the density of the area.  However, the nature of the 
proposed use does differ from single family residential accommodation and the 
individual plots in the area and which will remain the prevailing character.   This forms 
part of the redevelopment of the Kings Hall site and is distinguishable and this use 
adds to the variety and mix in the area and will meet an accommodation need. 

Recommended residential space standards are specified in Annex A of PPS 7 
Addendum, however the nature of this development is such that each apartment is 
supported by the on-site ancillary facilities; e.g. Dining rooms and breakout areas. 
Whilst modest living areas and kitchens are provided within the rooms, it is considered 
that the typical standards for residential living are not applicable to this development. 
Although the nature of the proposal slightly differs, there are space standards set out 
in the Belfast City Council document 'Purpose Built Managed Student Accommodation 
in Belfast’ which give broad indications of space requirements for comfortable living 
accommodation. In this case those space standards are comfortably exceeded.

The proposal includes private communal amenity space to the south west of the site, 
with additional amenity space to the front of the development. This amenity space 
measures approximately 1350 square metres therefore the provision is well above 
standards for this size of development, as recommended in Creating Places. The 
proposal also incorporates a quality movement pattern that encourages walking with 
pathways around the development and pedestrian access from the street. This will 
also assist the needs of people with reduced mobility, which is an important 
consideration of a development such as this. Bicycle stands are also provided for. The 
proposed layout and design helps to deter crime and promotes personal safety with 
the proposed boundary treatments and all accesses to the building located at the rear. 

Neighbouring Amenity

The proposed development will not create conflict with adjacent land uses and there 
should be no unacceptable adverse effect on existing or proposed properties in terms 
of overlooking, loss of light, overshadowing, noise or other disturbance. Some of these 
issues were raised as concerns in the objections. It is considered that there will be no 
negative impacts on the dwellings along the opposite side of Harberton Park. The site 
shares the southern boundary with existing residential development. This boundary is 
currently defined by a wooden fence approximately 2 metres in height. There were 
concerns that the proposed development would overlook some of these dwellings, in 
particular windows on the southern gable overlooking the dwelling at No. 25A 
Harberton Park. This impact has been mitigated by the proposed opaque windows 
along this gable end. The south facing windows on the rear return and the rear facing 
windows on the southernmost front block have potential to overlook some residential 
properties, however these concerns are alleviated by the separation distance and the 



Application ID: LA04/2017/1394/F

Page 8 of 16

4.15

4.16

4.17

4.18

proposed planting scheme. The south facing windows are located approximately 23 
metres from the boundary and 35 metres to the nearest dwelling. The rear facing 
windows of the front block are situated closer with a separation distance of 8 metres to 
the boundary and 32 metres to the nearest dwelling, however the orientation of the 
windows is away from these dwellings. To the north of the site is a detached dwelling 
at No. 25 Harberton Park. The southern boundary of No. 25 Harberton Park is defined 
by a hedgerow approximately 2 metres in height. The northern gable wall of the front 
block is located approximately 31.3 metres from this dwelling and the north facing wall 
of the rear return is located approximately 49 metres from this dwelling. The occupier 
of this house has expressed concerns regarding potential overlooking and 
overshadowing. The existing hedgerow boundary provides an effective screen to the 
rear garden / patio and any ground floor rooms. There are three upper floor windows 
on the southern facing wall of No. 25. It appears that two of the windows belong to a 
landing and a bathroom, however I cannot be certain. In any case, it is considered that 
the considerable separation distance should mitigate against any detrimental amenity 
impact.

Access and Parking

The objections raised issues surrounding access and car parking. The proposed 
development is assessed against PPS 3 in relation to these issues. The proposed 
development passes the tests in relation to creating an accessible environment, with 
provision of facilities to aid accessibility, convenient movement patterns and sound 
provision for pedestrians. The site is also well linked to existing public transport 
services with bus stops and a railway station within easy walking distance. A Transport 
Assessment has been which provides information relating to transport impacts of the 
development. The Assessment shows that there will be a slight increase to the 
number of vehicle journeys along Harberton Park, however this increase will not 
create a significant impact. Furthermore, it sets out that the proposed internal parking 
will mean that on street parking will be avoided. DFI Roads have assessed the 
submitted Transport Assessment and offer no objection to the proposal, subject to 
conditions. 

Trees and Landscaping

Belfast City Council’s Tree Officer has assessed the submitted landscaping plan and 
offers no objections, subject to conditions. There are no concerns with the proposed 
bin and waste storage. 

Other issues raised in the objection letters related to the views of the site from the 
conservation area. Policy BH 12 of PPS 6 relates to new development in a 
conservation area and views within, into and out of the area are part of this policy test. 
This development is not located within the conservation area and consequently, this 
test is not applied to this proposal, however, it is considered that this proposal will not 
negatively impact the Conservation Area. 

One objector raised that the proposed development will impact negatively on property 
values. This would not be a material planning consideration. 

5.0 Neighbour Notification Checked                                                                     Yes

6.0 Summary of Recommendation:



Application ID: LA04/2017/1394/F

Page 9 of 16

Having regard to the policy context and the other material planning considerations, it is 
considered that, on balance, the proposed development is acceptable. It is therefore 
recommended that planning permission is granted.

7.0 Conditions:

1.  The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 5 
years from the date of this permission.

       Reason: As required by Section 61 of the Planning Act (Northern Ireland) 
2011.

2. The vehicular access, hard standing area for parking including visibility splays 
and any forward sight distance, shall be constructed in accordance with Drawing 
No.11A bearing Planning Authority date stamp 18th October 2017, prior to the 
occupation of any other works or other development hereby permitted. 

REASON: To ensure there is a satisfactory means of access in the interests of 
road safety and the convenience of road users.

3. The access gradient shall not exceed 4% (1 in 25) over the first 10.0m outside 
the road boundary.  Where the vehicular access crosses a footway or verge, the 
access gradient shall be between 4% (1 in 25) maximum and 2.5% (1 in 40) 
minimum and shall be formed so that there is no abrupt change of slope along 
the footway.

REASON: To ensure there is a satisfactory means of access in the interests of 
road safety and the convenience of road users.

4. Any existing street furniture within the extent of the proposed vehicular access 
shall, after obtaining permission from the appropriate authority, be removed, 
relocated or adjusted at the applicant’s expense.

REASON: To ensure there is a satisfactory means of access in the interests of 
road safety and the convenience of road users.

5. The vehicular access hereby permitted shall be formed by lowered kerbs at the 
carriageway edge and associated re-grading of the footway to the satisfaction of 
DFI Roads.

REASON: To ensure there is a satisfactory means of access in the interests of 
road safety and the convenience of road users.

6. The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the redundant 
vehicular access from the site to the public road has been permanently closed 
and the footway reinstated to the satisfaction of DFI Roads.

REASON: In order to minimise the number of access points onto the public road 
in the interests of road safety and the convenience of road users.

7. The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until hard surfaced 
areas have been constructed and permanently marked in accordance with 
Drawing No.10A bearing the date stamp 18th October 2017, to provide for 
parking and traffic circulation within the site.  No part of these hard surfaced 



Application ID: LA04/2017/1394/F

Page 10 of 16

areas shall be used for any purpose at any time other than for the parking and 
movement of vehicles in connection with the approved development.

REASON: To ensure adequate provision has been made for parking and traffic 
circulation within the site.

8. The development hereby permitted shall not (be occupied/become operational) 
until cycle parking has been provided and permanently retained in accordance 
with approved drawing no. 03A bearing Planning Authority date stamp 18 
October 2017
REASON: To ensure that adequate provision has been made for cycle parking 
and to encourage and promote alternatives modes of transport

 
9.  In the event that contamination not previously considered is encountered 

during the approved development of this site the development shall cease and 
a written report detailing the nature of this contamination and its management 
must be submitted to Planning Service for approval.  This investigation, risk 
assessment and (if required) remediation strategy/verification must be 
undertaken in accordance with current best practice.

       Reason: The protection of human health 

10. All proposed planting indicated within Revised Drawing No. 16B date stamped 
5th February 2017 to be planted prior to completion of the proposed 
development. 

Reason: To ensure the provision and establishment a high standard of 
landscape within the site.

Signature(s)

Date:



Application ID: LA04/2017/1394/F

Page 11 of 16

ANNEX

Date Valid 23rd June 2017

Date First Advertised 7th July 2017

Date Last Advertised 17th November 2017

Details of Neighbour Notification (all addresses)
The Owner/Occupier, 
21 Harberton Park Gardens,Malone Upper,Belfast,Antrim,BT9 6WJ,   
  M
23 Harberton Park Gardens,Malone Upper,Belfast,Antrim,BT9 6WJ,   
 Thomas Lambe
24, Harberton Park, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT9 6TS   
 Thomas Lambe
24, Harberton Park, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT9 6TS   
The Owner/Occupier, 
25 Harberton Park Gardens,Malone Upper,Belfast,Antrim,BT9 6WJ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
25 Harberton Park,Malone Upper,Belfast,Antrim,BT9 6TW,   
 G Gilbride
25, Harberton Park, Belfast, Malone Upper, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT9 6TW   
The Owner/Occupier, 
25a ,Harberton Park,Malone Upper,Belfast,Antrim,BT9 6TW,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
26 Harberton Park,Malone Upper,Belfast,Antrim,BT9 6TS,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
28 Harberton Park,Malone Upper,Belfast,Antrim,BT9 6TS,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
30 Harberton Park,Malone Upper,Belfast,Antrim,BT9 6TS,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
32 Harberton Park,Malone Upper,Belfast,Antrim,BT9 6TS,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
34 Harberton Park,Malone Upper,Belfast,Antrim,BT9 6TS,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
36 Harberton Park,Malone Upper,Belfast,Antrim,BT9 6TS,   
 V Malone
44 Harberton Park Malone Upper Belfast 
The Owner/Occupier, 
Kings Hall Complex, Balmoral, Belfast, BT9 6GW   

Date of Last Neighbour Notification
29th January 2018

Date of EIA Determination

ES Requested Yes /No



Application ID: LA04/2017/1394/F

Page 12 of 16

Planning History

Ref ID: LA04/2017/0311/DC
Proposal: Discharge of Condition 10 of LA04/2016/0200/F.
Address: Plots 104 & 120, Harberton, Belfast, BT9 6TW.,
Decision: AL
Decision Date: 

Ref ID: LA04/2016/2607/DC
Proposal: Discharge of condition 10 of planning application LA04/2016/0200/F
Address: Lands south of No. 25 Harberton Park, Belfast, BT9 6TW,
Decision: RL
Decision Date: 

Ref ID: LA04/2017/1394/F
Proposal: Erection of supported accommodation for older people comprising 28 one 
bedroom and 4 two bedroom apartments and associated communal space including 
dining and social areas; kitchen: staff facilities comprising office and changing rooms: 
laundry room: external landscaped garden: car parking: dedicated vehicular access off 
Harberton Park and associated landscaping (32 apartments in total)
Address: Land East of Harberton Park to the South of no 25 Harberton Park, Belfast,
Decision: 
Decision Date: 

Ref ID: Z/2008/0629/F
Proposal: Demolition of existing ancillary buildings to the rear of the Kings hall and 
relocation of existing car parking.
Address: Kings Hall, Balmoral, Upper Lisburn Road, Belfast
Decision: 
Decision Date: 16.02.2009

Ref ID: Z/2011/0474/F
Proposal: Semi-permanent, transportable exhibition facility.
Address: King's Hall Complex, Belfast, BT9 6GW.,
Decision: 
Decision Date: 20.10.2011

Ref ID: Z/1996/6042
Proposal: Showgrounds, masterplan and new arena. Balmoral Showgrounds, Upper 
Lisburn Road, Belfast BT9
Address: Balmoral Showgrounds, Upper Lisburn Road, Belfast BT9
Decision: 
Decision Date: 

Ref ID: Z/1982/1071



Application ID: LA04/2017/1394/F

Page 13 of 16

Proposal: EXTENSION TO THEATRE
Address: ADJACENT 25 HARBERTON PARK (KINGS HALL COMPLEX)
Decision: 
Decision Date: 

Ref ID: LA04/2015/0501/DC
Proposal: Discharge of condition 7 of approval for demolition of existing building and 
erection of residential development comprising 140 units
Address: Lands south of 25 Harberton Park, Belfast,
Decision: AL
Decision Date: 

Ref ID: LA04/2015/0358/F
Proposal: Amendments to previous planning approval (Z/2012/0645/RM) to include 
changes to house types and modification to plot arrangements including garages, 
landscaping and related site and access works for the first phase of development 
comprising 19 dwellings.
Address: Lands south of No. 25 Harberton Park, Belfast, BT9 6TW,
Decision: PG
Decision Date: 18.02.2016

Ref ID: LA04/2015/1112/DC
Proposal: Discharge of Condition 3 of Planning Approval Z/2012/0645/RM
Address: Lands south of 25 Harberton Park, Belfast,
Decision: RL
Decision Date: 

Ref ID: LA04/2015/0102/DC
Proposal: Discharge of condition 10
Address: Lands South of, 25 Harberton Park, Belfast,
Decision: AL
Decision Date: 

Ref ID: LA04/2016/0154/DC
Proposal: Demolition of existing building and erection of residential development 
comprising 140 units (discharge of condition 3 regard landscape management plan)
Address: Lands south of 25 Harberton Park, Belfast,
Decision: AL
Decision Date: 

Ref ID: LA04/2016/0200/F
Proposal: Erection of 48 No. Dwellings including garages and landscaping (amendments 
to Z/2012/0645/RM)
Address: Lands South of No. 25 Harberton Park, Belfast, BT9 6TW,
Decision: PG



Application ID: LA04/2017/1394/F

Page 14 of 16

Decision Date: 01.11.2016

Ref ID: LA04/2016/0537/PAN
Proposal: Health-led mixed use regeneration proposal.
Address: The King's Hall and RUAS site, south of Upper Lisburn Road/Balmoral Avenue, 
west of Harberton Park and north/east of Balmoral Golf Club, Belfast, BT9 6GW,
Decision: PANACC
Decision Date: 

Ref ID: Z/1996/0146
Proposal: Extension to boiler house under overhang of first floor
of conference centre.
Address: KINGS HALL UPPER LISBURN ROAD BELFAST BT9
Decision: 
Decision Date: 

Ref ID: LA04/2016/0713/DETEI
Proposal: Development of a health-led mixed use regeneration proposal
Address: The Kings Hall and RUAS site, South of Upper Lisburn Road/Balmoral Avenue, 
West of Harberton Park and North East of Balmoral  Golf Club,
Decision: DRES
Decision Date: 

Ref ID: LA04/2016/0579/PAN
Proposal: The proposed development is a health-led mixed use regeneration proposal. 
The proposed development, the first phase of the development of the wider site, has the 
following characteristics:
Conversion of listed Kings Hall (6000 sq m) to accommodate primary healthcare use.
Demolition of other existing buildings on site, including conference facility, show 
grounds, stabling etc.
New build primary healthcare accommodation adjacent to Kings Hall (3,950 Sq m)
Health related retail & retail services
Associated internal access roads, car parking, new public realm & amenity open space 
including central plaza.
Relocation of existing children's day care facilities
Upgraded primary access from Upper Lisburn Road & secondary access onto Balmoral 
Avenue (including demolition of Malone Conservation Area building at 29 Balmoral 
Avenue) - no through access from Harberton Park
Address: The Kings Hall and RUAS site, south of Upper Lisburn Road/Balmoral Avenue, 
west of Harberton Park & north/east of Balmoral Golf Club, Belfast, BT9 6GW,
Decision: PANACC
Decision Date: 

Ref ID: LA04/2016/0226/PAD
Proposal: Mixed use development comprising,
Conversion of listed Kings hall to Accommodate healthcare use



Application ID: LA04/2017/1394/F

Page 15 of 16

Demolition of other existing buildings including conference facility, show grounds, 
stabling etc.
Private Hospital and GP/other health related accommodation
Health related retail and retail services
Residential care home and associated accommodation
Hotel
Multi storey car park with active local retail, leisure and restaurant uses at ground floor
Associated internal access road, new public realm and open space including central 
plaza
Address: The Kings Hall and RUAS site, south of Upper Lisburn Road/Balmoral Avenue, 
West of Harberton Park and North /East of Balmoral Golf Club, Belfast,
Decision: 
Decision Date: 

Ref ID: LA04/2015/0663/PAD
Proposal: Part demolition of existing buildings and erection of offices, retirement village 
and live work estate; refurbishment of retained buildings for mixed use
Address: Kings Hall, Lisburn Road, Balmoral, Belfast, BT9 6GW,
Decision: 
Decision Date: 

Ref ID: Z/2012/0645/RM
Proposal: Demolition of existing building and erection of residential development 
comprising 140 units.
Address: Lands south of 25 Harberton Park, Belfast,
Decision: PG
Decision Date: 22.12.2014

Ref ID: LA04/2017/0097/DC
Proposal: Discharge of condition 3 of planning application Z/2012/0645/RM
Address: Lands south of, 25 Harberton Park, Belfast,
Decision: 
Decision Date: 

Ref ID: LA04/2017/0313/DC
Proposal: Discharge of Condition 10 of LA04/2016/0200/F re Remediation Validation 
Report.
Address: Plat 105, Harberton, Belfast, BT9 6TW.,
Decision: AL
Decision Date: 



Application ID: LA04/2017/1394/F

Page 16 of 16

Drawing Numbers and Title

Dwg No. 01, 02, 03A, 04A, 05A, 06A, 07B, 08B, 09A, 10A, 11A, 12, 13B, 14, 15A, 16B

Notification to Department (if relevant)

Date of Notification to Department:  
Response of Department:



Development Management Officer Report
Committee Application

Summary
Committee Meeting Date: 13 Feb 2018  
Application ID: LA04/2017/1505/F  
Proposal:
Construction of 15no residential apartments 
(11no 3P2B and 4no 2P1B) together with 
associated communal garden space, bin 
storage and cycle packing provision.

Location:
1-3 Eia Street  Belfast  BT14 6BT  

Referral Route:
Application for over 12 dwellings with Objections

Recommendation:    Approval
Applicant Name and Address:
South Ulster Housing Association
18-22 Carleton Street
 Portadown
 BT62 3EN

Agent Name and Address:
 McGirk Architects Ltd
670 Ravenhill Road
 Belfast
 BT6 O32

Executive Summary:

The proposal is for the ‘Construction of 15no residential apartments together with associated 
communal garden space, bin storage and cycle parking provision.

46 objections have been received raising the same issues. The objections request a site visit 
from the Council’s Planning Committee prior to making any decision on the proposal.

There is an extant planning approval for ‘Demolition of existing 2 storey commercial warehouse 
building & construction of 4 storey apartment building consisting of 16 No. apartments’, previously 
granted on in April 2013 under ref. Z/2009/1771/F.

The key issues in this planning application are:
 Principle of demolition of the existing building and proposed redevelopment at this 

location.
 Layout and design.
 Impact on residential amenity.
 Impact on parking.  
 Impact on the Area of Townscape Character and the adjacent listed building. 

The principle of the redevelopment of the site has been established through the previous 
approval on the site. The proposed building is four storeys high with a ridge height of 13 metres. 
It is considered that the proposed design is broadly contextual in terms of height, scale, form and 
proportion and on balance is considered acceptable.  

Consultees offer no objections.
DFI Roads have considered the parking report and are content with the findings; they have no 
objection to the proposal, subject to conditions and informatives. 



Application ID: LA04/2017/1505/F

Page 2 of 16

The development complies with the Development Plan, planning policies and other regional 
planning policy. Furthermore, there is currently an extant approval for a residential scheme on the 
site of greater density than proposed.

It is therefore recommended that planning permission is granted. 



Application ID: LA04/2017/1505/F

Page 3 of 16

Case Officer Report
Site Location Plan

Consultations:
Consultation Type Consultee Response
Non Statutory Rivers 

Agency
Substantive 
Response 
Received

Statutory DFI Roads - 
Hydebank

Content

Non Statutory Env Health 
Belfast City 
Council

Substantive 
Response 
Received



Application ID: LA04/2017/1505/F

Page 4 of 16

Statutory NI Water - 
Multi Units 
East - 
Planning 
Consultations

Advice

Statutory DFI Roads - 
Hydebank

Advice

Statutory Historic 
Environment 
Division 
(HED)

Advice

Non Statutory Rivers 
Agency

Substantive 
Response 
Received

Non Statutory Rivers 
Agency

Statutory Historic 
Environment 
Division 
(HED)

Substantive 
Response 
Received

Representations:
Letters of Support None Received
Letters of Objection 46
Number of Support Petitions and signatures No Petitions Received
Number of Petitions of Objection and signatures No Petitions Received

1.0

1.1

1.2

Summary of Issues  

46 no. objections have been received for this proposed development. The 
contents of all 46 objection letters are the same. The objectors request a site visit 
from the Council’s Planning Committee prior to making any decision on the 
proposal. The issues raised include: 

- The site is located within an Area of Townscape Character that has deteriorated 
over the last 10 years. This proposal will do nothing to reverse this deterioration 
and will have a negative impact on the ATC. 
- The proposal is contrary to the SPPS, PPS 6, PPS 7, PPS 7 Addendum and 
PPS 3. 
- The proposal fails to achieve quality in residential development, owing to issues 
with design and landscaping. 
- Form, scale, massing and materials of the proposal are out of keeping with the 
character of the area. 
- Proposal will be harmful to the adjacent Local Landscape Policy Area (LLPA). 
- Proposal will have a detrimental impact on the adjacent listed building. 
- Objectors support concerns raised by HED in their initial consultation response. 
The side gable of the proposal should be set back from the listed building and 
higher quality materials should be used. Landscaping along the boundary of the 
site would reduce the impact on the listed building. 
- Height and scale of the 4 storey building will dominate the residential street and 
is out of character. 
- No exceptional circumstances have been provided for the intensification of site 
coverage or usage within the Area of Townscape character. 
- Inadequate provision has been made for public and private open space and 
landscaped areas. 



Application ID: LA04/2017/1505/F

Page 5 of 16

- Proposal does not provide adequate provision for car parking. No provision has 
been made for parking and there is limited capacity for on-street parking in the 
area.
- Proposed density is significantly higher than that found in the established 
residential area. 
- Proposal is not in keeping with the ethos or spirit of ‘Creating Places’ or ‘Living 
Places’ Design guides. 
- Objectors are keen to engage with the Council regarding the preparation of the 
Local Development Plan. 

2.0

2.1

2.2

Characteristics of the Site and Area

The site is located within the urban limits of Belfast, at No. 1-3 Eia Street. The site 
is irregularly shaped and appears to be lying vacant at present. There is currently 
a building located on the site. The site is bounded by a stone and cement finished 
wall that is approximately 2.5m in height with a vehicular access located toward 
the south of the site. 

The immediate locality is characterised primarily by residential development, with 
Eia Street dominated by 3 storey terraced dwellings, many of which have been 
converted to apartments. The site is located a short distance from the Antrim 
Road, one of the main arterial routes of the city. The site is located adjacent to a 
listed building at 224 Antrim Road.

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

Description of Proposal

The proposal is for the ‘Construction of 15no residential apartments (11 no. 3P2B 
and 4 no. 2P1B) together with associated communal garden space, bin storage 
and cycle packing provision.

The proposed building is four storeys high with a ridge height of 13 metres. The 
ground floor comprises three proposed apartments with access to the bicycle 
store, bin store and the external amenity area. The remaining floors comprise four 
apartments on each level. 

The proposed finishes include traditional red clay facing brick to external walls, 
blue black natural slate roof, standing seam sheet lead to dormer windows and 
part of the upper floor walls, hardwood painted windows and aluminium rainwater 
goods. 

4.0

4.1

4.2

Planning Assessment of Policy and Other Material Considerations

Site History:
Z/2009/1771/F - Demolition of existing 2 storey commercial warehouse building & 
construction of 4 storey apartment building consisting of 16 No. apartments 
(amended scheme) – Approved 15/04/2013. This planning permission will expire 
on 14/4/18. 

Policy Framework:
• Belfast Urban Area Plan (BUAP)
• Draft Belfast Metropolitan Plan 2015 (Draft BMAP)  
• Strategic Planning Policy Statement (SPPS) 
• PPS 3 – Access, Movement and Parking
• PPS 6 – Planning, Archaeology and the Built Heritage



Application ID: LA04/2017/1505/F

Page 6 of 16

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

• PPS 6 Addendum – Area of Townscape Character
• PPS 7 – Quality Residential Environments
• PPS 7 Addendum – Safeguarding the Character of Established Residential 
Areas
• PPS 12 – Housing in Settlements
• PPS 15 – Planning and Flood Risk
• Creating Places – Achieving Quality in Residential Developments
• Living Places - An Urban Stewardship and Design Guide for Northern 
Ireland

Statutory Consultee Responses:
• NI Water Multi Units East – No objection subject to informatives.
• Transport NI – No objection subject to conditions and informatives.
• Historic Environment Division – No objection subject to informatives.

Non Statutory Consultee Responses:
• Belfast City Council Environmental Health – No objection subject to 
conditions and informatives.
• Rivers Agency - No objection subject to informatives.
• Belfast City Council Conservation Officer – No objection

Assessment:

Section 45 (1) of the Planning Act (Northern Ireland) 2011 requires regard to be 
had to the Development Plan, so far as material to the application and to any 
other material considerations. Section 6(4) states that where regard is to be had to 
the Development Plan, the determination must be made in accordance with the 
Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The proposed site is 
located within the urban area of Belfast. The adopted Belfast Metropolitan Area 
Plan 2015 (BMAP) has been quashed as a result of a judgement in the Court of 
Appeal delivered on 18th May 2017. As a consequence of this, the Belfast Urban 
Area Plan 2001 (BUAP) is now the statutory development plan for the area with 
draft BMAP remaining a material consideration. 

The application site is located within the settlement development limits of Belfast 
but not within any BUAP designation. The site is located within a draft Area of 
Townscape Character (ATC), as designated in draft BMAP. 

An important consideration of this planning application is the site history and the 
extant planning approval for ‘Demolition of existing 2 storey commercial 
warehouse building & construction of 4 storey apartment building consisting of 16 
No. apartments’, previously granted on 15/4/13 under ref. Z/2009/1771/F. This 
development relates to a building similar in mass, scale, height, materials and 
appearance of the proposed building. All 16 apartments within this approved 
development were based on a 3 person, 2 bedroom layout, which is a more 
intensive scheme than the current proposed development. 

The SPPS provides a regional framework of planning policy that will be taken 
account of in the preparation of Belfast City Council’s Local Development Plan 
(LDP). At present, the LDP has not been adopted therefore transitional 
arrangements require the council to take account of the SPPS and existing 
planning policy documents, with the exception of PPS 1, 5 and 9. The SPPS 
places emphasis on supporting good design and positive place making. It also 
advises that new housing developments should respect the local character and 
environmental quality as well as safeguarding amenity of existing residents. The 



Application ID: LA04/2017/1505/F

Page 7 of 16

4.9

4.10

4.11

4.12

SPPS aims to promote more sustainable housing development within existing 
urban areas and places emphasis on increasing housing density within 
settlements. This site is located in close proximity to an arterial route, therefore it 
benefits from high accessibility to public transport. The SPPS advises that the use 
of greenfield land for housing should be reduced and more urban housing should 
be accommodated through the recycling of land and buildings. The SPPS also 
guides that increased density in residential areas of distinctive town character 
should only be allowed in exceptional circumstances. 

Policy QD1 of PPS7 relates to design quality in new residential development and 
is applicable to this development. Eia Street is unusual in that the buildings tend 
to get bigger as one travels down the street towards the site and the nearby 
Antrim road, perhaps reflecting a hierarchy of place principle with taller blocks in 
close proximity to the main thoroughfare. This is exemplified by the block of 
terrace dwellings opposite the site (No. 2-12). The proposed height is therefore 
broadly acceptable.  The proposal does violate the established building line of the 
street (No. 5 -51), however the existing wall that bounds the site is already set 
forward of this building line. Furthermore, the proposal fits with the building line 
The previous approval included bays that protruded the building line, but were 
broadly contextual with bays of existing dwellings. This proposal differs in that the 
bay windows are no longer part of the proposal and the majority of the front 
elevation sits slightly forward of the building line. Following consultation with 
BCC’s conservation officer, it is considered that the proposed design is broadly 
contextual in terms of scale, form and proportion (solid to void). The conservation 
officer advised that outlet ducts / pipes / vents would be detrimental to the 
appearance of the building. The agent confirmed that the proposed building would 
not require such details, therefore it is considered that this can be dealt with by a 
condition. 

The proposal includes approximately 80 m2 of private communal space, which is 
below the recommended standards, as set out in ‘Creating Places’. However, the 
site is located approximately 220 metres from a public park which alleviates 
concerns regarding lack of amenity. The proposed development supports walking 
and cycling, with access directly to the street and bicycle storage provided. The 
proposed building is highly accessible to public transport links and the provision of 
a lift will assist the needs of people whose mobility is impaired. The proposed 
development provides adequate arrangements for waste storage, in terms of area 
and access to the public street. The proposed layout and design helps to deter 
crime and promotes personal safety with the proposed boundary treatments and 
access via secured doors. 

As already discussed, Eia Street is characterised by 3 storey terraced dwellings, 
many of which have been converted to apartments. It is therefore considered that 
the proposed density is not significantly higher than that found in the established 
residential area. Furthermore, all proposed apartments are built to a size not less 
than those set out in Annex A of PPS 7 Addendum. 

The orientation of the site is such that it may cause overshadowing to the rear of 
existing properties on the Antrim Road. However, this is not considered to be 
uncharacteristic or unacceptable within this high density urban area. 
Consequently, there should be no unacceptable adverse effect on existing or 
proposed properties in terms of residential amenity. Furthermore, this proposed 
residential development should not create conflict with adjacent land uses. 

The objections raised issues surrounding car parking. A parking report has been 



Application ID: LA04/2017/1505/F

Page 8 of 16

4.13

4.14

4.15

4.16

4.17

submitted to support the proposal. DFI Roads have considered this report and are 
content with the findings; they have no objection to the proposal, subject to 
conditions and informatives.  

PPS 6 Policy BH11 and the SPPS (Para 6.12 – 6.17) provide the policy tests for 
development proposals affecting the setting of a listed building. Following 
amendments to the proposal including the revised gable end facing the listed 
building and the higher quality materials, HED are content. 

The site is also located within an ATC, therefore the proposal should pass the 
tests of PPS 6 Addendum Policies ATC 1 and ATC2. It is considered that the 
existing building and wall do not make a positive contribution to the character of 
the ATC. With regards to the redevelopment, the proposal maintains the character 
of the ATC and respects the built form of the area. No exceptional circumstances 
have been provided for the intensification of site coverage or usage within the 
Area of Townscape character, as advised in PPS 7. However, the justification and 
amplification (Para 4.10) states that the protection of the existing character and 
distinctive qualities of the area are paramount. It is considered that the proposed 
development will make a more positive contribution to the ATC than the existing 
building and wall. As well as this, one has to be mindful that an extant approval 
exists on the site for a more intense residential development.

In addition to the above consultees, Environmental Health, NI Water and Rivers 
Agency were consulted on the proposed development and had no objections, 
subject to conditions and informatives. 

The objectors raised the issue of a lack of proposed landscaping. It is considered 
that landscaping is not necessary at the front of the development given the 
existing character of Eia Street. Planting has been proposed to the rear within the 
private communal space; any potential approval should be conditioned that 
landscaping details should be submitted to and approved by the Council prior to 
occupation of development. The adjacent Local Landscape Policy Area (LLPA) is 
located approximately 20 metres away from the site. This part of the LLPA is 
defined by a metal fence with a red brick building situated behind. It is considered 
that the proposal will not have any detrimental impact on the adjacent LLPA.

Neighbour Notification Checked Yes

5.0

5.1

Summary of Recommendation:

It is considered that, on balance, the proposed development broadly complies with 
the policies tests of the Development plan and other regional planning policy. 
Furthermore, there is currently an extant approval for a more intense residential 
scheme on the site, which has been give significant weight in the determination of 
this planning application. It is therefore recommended that planning permission is 
granted. 

6.0

1.

Conditions

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 5 years 
from the date of this permission.

Reason: As required by Section 61 of the Planning Act (Northern Ireland) 2011.



Application ID: LA04/2017/1505/F

Page 9 of 16

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

In the event that unexpected contamination is encountered during the approved 
development of this site, the development shall cease and a written report 
detailing the nature of this contamination and its management must be submitted 
to Planning Service for approval.  This investigation and risk assessment must be 
undertaken in accordance with current best practice.

Reason: Protection of human health.

The applicant must arrange for a pre-demolition asbestos survey to be undertaken 
by a competent contractor prior to the demolition / redevelopment of the site. 
Should such materials be identified on site, the applicant should refer to condition 
2 above.

Reason: Protection of human health. 

The existing vehicular access from Eia Street shall be closed and the footway 
reinstated to the satisfaction of DfI Roads.

REASON: To ensure there is a satisfactory means of access in the interests of 
road safety and the convenience of road users.

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until cycle parking has 
been provided on the site in accordance with Drawing No.01B bearing the date 
stamp 24th January 2018.  These facilities shall be permanently retained on-site.

REASON: To ensure acceptable cycle parking on the site and to encourage 
alternative modes of transport.

Windows or doors shall not open out over the public road, verge or footway.

REASON: In the interest of pedestrian safety, road safety and convenience of 
road users

No outlet ducts / pipes / vents shall be located on the front or side elevations of 
the building, as shown on Drawing Nos 02A and 03A date stamped 9th January 
2018.

Reason: In the interest of visual amenity and protection of the character of the 
Area of Townscape Character.

Prior to the occupation of the development, full details of all proposed tree and 
shrub planting and a programme of works will be submitted to and approved by 
the Council, and all tree and shrub planting shall be carried out in accordance with 
those details and at those times.

Reason: To ensure the provision, establishment and maintenance of a high 
standard of landscape and in the interests of visual amenity.



Application ID: LA04/2017/1505/F

Page 10 of 16

ANNEX

Date Valid 8th August 2017

Date First Advertised 18th August 2017

Date Last Advertised

Details of Neighbour Notification (all addresses)
 Martin Kelly
1, Pavilions Office Park, Holywood, Down, Northern Ireland, BT18 9JQ   
The Owner/Occupier, 
1-3 ,Eia Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 6BT,   
 Erwin Maey
10, Eia Street, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT14 6BT   
 Susan O Neill
11, Bennett Drive, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT14 6DB   
 Chris Brett
13, Brookvale Avenue, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT14 6BW   
 Nichola Jordan
14, Eia Street, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT14 6BT   
 John McGuiness
15, Allworthy Avenue, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT14 6BU   
 Gerard P Tohill
15, Bennett Drive, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT14 6DB   
 Gerard P Tohill
15, Bennett Drive, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT14 6DB   
 Kevin and Mary O'Reilly
16, Bennett Drive, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT14 6DB   
 Maria Alues
16, Eia Street, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT14 6BT   
 Maria Alues
16, Eia Street, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT14 6BT   
 L Rocks
17, Allworthy Avenue, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT14 6BU   
 J O'Neill
18, Allworthy Avenue, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT14 6BU   
 Michael Murray
18, Bennett Drive, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT14 6DB   
 Margaret Butcher
18, Brookvale Drive, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT14 6DE   
 Paul Cowan
19, Allworthy Avenue, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT14 6BU   
 Kylie Campbell
1c, Cliftonville Avenue, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT14 6GX   
The Owner/Occupier, 
2 Allworthy Avenue,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 6BU,   
 Donald Gillis
2, Brookvale Avenue, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT14 6BW   



Application ID: LA04/2017/1505/F

Page 11 of 16

 Ethna O'Kane
2, Brookvale Avenue, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT14 6BW   
 M Murray
20, Bennett Drive, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT14 6DB   
 M Murray
20, Bennett Drive, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT14 6DB   
 Joannie McGuiness
21, Brookvale Avenue, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT14 6BW   
 Kerry Liddy
22, Eia Street, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT14 6BT   
The Owner/Occupier, 
226 Antrim Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 2AN,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
228a ,Antrim Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 2AN,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
230 Antrim Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 2AN,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
230a ,Antrim Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 2AN,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
230c ,Antrim Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 2AN,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
232 Antrim Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 2AN,   
 Adrian O Meallaig
26, Allworthy Avenue, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT14 6BU   
 Bride Mallon
26, Allworthy Avenue, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT14 6BU   
 Paul Dorris
29, Eia Street, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT14 6BT   
 Gerard Dickson
3, Cliftonville Court, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT14 6LT   
 Brian Armstrong
3, Norton Drive, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT9 6ST   
 Isabel Den Heger
31, Eia Street, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT14 6BT   
 Isabel Den Heger
31, Eia Street, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT14 6BT   
The Owner/Occupier, 
33, Eia Street, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT14 6BT   
 Terry McKeown
34, Brookvale Avenue, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT14 6BW   
 Grace Markey
34, Brookvale Avenue, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT14 6BW   
 Danny Hale
34, Eia Street, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT14 6BT   
  McCallen
35, Eia Street, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT14 6BT   
 G Hill
36, Brookvale Avenue, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT14 6BW   
 Noel Webb
36, Brookvale Street, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT14 6BZ   



Application ID: LA04/2017/1505/F

Page 12 of 16

 G McIlroy
39, Eia Street, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT14 6BT   
 S McGohan
41, Eia Street, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT14 6BT   
 Jacqueline McCoubrey
42, Eia Street, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT14 6BT   
 Mary Craig
43, Eia Street, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT14 6BT   
 Pauline Rooney
46, Eia Street, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT14 6BT   
 Morris Miskimmim
49, Brookvale Street, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT14 6BZ   
 Ciaran Miskimmen
49, Brookvale Street, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT14 6BZ   
 Des McLoughlin
50, Brookvale Avenue, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT14 6BW   
 Cailin McVeigh
50, Brookvale Avenue, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT14 6BW   
 Bronagh Craig
54, Brookvale Avenue, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT14 6BW   
 P Armstrong
56, Brookvale Avenue, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT14 6BW   
 Desmond O'Neill
6, Eia Street, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT14 6BT   
 Nichola Kelly
8, Flat 1, Eia Street, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT14 6BT   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 1,2 Allworthy Avenue,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 6BU,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 1,230 Antrim Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 2AN,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 1,Eia House,224 Antrim Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 2AN,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 2,2 Allworthy Avenue,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 6BU,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 2,230 Antrim Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 2AN,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 2,Eia House,224 Antrim Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 2AN,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 3,2 Allworthy Avenue,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 6BU,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 3,230 Antrim Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 2AN,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 3,Eia House,224 Antrim Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 2AN,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 4,230 Antrim Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 2AN,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 4,Eia House,224 Antrim Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 2AN,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 5,Eia House,224 Antrim Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 2AN,   



Application ID: LA04/2017/1505/F

Page 13 of 16

The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 6,Eia House,224 Antrim Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 2AN,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 7,Eia House,224 Antrim Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 2AN,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
D S A C,3rd Floor,228 Antrim Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 2AN,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Davids Hairdressing,228a ,Antrim Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 2AN,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Eia House,224 Antrim Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 2AN,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Express Aid International,226 Antrim Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 2AN,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Flat 1,232 Antrim Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 2AN,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Flat 1,234 Antrim Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 2AN,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Flat 2,232 Antrim Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 2AN,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Flat 2,234 Antrim Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 2AN,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Flat 3,232 Antrim Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 2AN,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Flat 3,234 Antrim Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 2AN,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Flat A,5-7 ,Eia Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 6BT,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Flat B,5-7 ,Eia Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 6BT,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Flat C,5-7 ,Eia Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 6BT,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Flat D,5-7 ,Eia Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 6BT,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Flat E,5-7 ,Eia Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 6BT,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Oven Door Bakery,234a ,Antrim Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 2AN,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
S.D.L.P.,1st & 2nd Floor,228 Antrim Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 2AN,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Society Of St. Vincent De Paul,Store,Eia House,224 Antrim Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 
2AJ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Unit 1,230 Antrim Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 2AN,   

Date of Last Neighbour Notification
12th January 2018

Date of EIA Determination N/A

ES Requested No



Application ID: LA04/2017/1505/F

Page 14 of 16

Planning History

Ref ID: Z/1988/2038
Proposal: Alterations to 6 no existing flats
Address: NOS 5 AND 7 EIA STREET BELFAST BT15
Decision: 
Decision Date: 

Ref ID: Z/1988/2204
Proposal: Extension to warehouse
Address: SAINT VINCENT DE PAUL WAREHOUSE, EIA HOUSE,EIA STREET BT14
Decision: 
Decision Date: 

Ref ID: Z/1991/2051
Proposal: Re-slating of roof, including repairs & improvements
(Listed Building Consent)
Address: EIA HOUSE 224 ANTRIM ROAD BELFAST 15
Decision: 
Decision Date: 

Ref ID: Z/1994/2715
Proposal: Change of use of ground floor vacant office to shop and
retention of offices over
Address: 226 ANTRIM ROAD BELFAST BT15
Decision: 
Decision Date: 

Ref ID: Z/2001/3193/F
Proposal: Change of use from warehouse to an artwork/design studio and print shop.
Address: 5a Eia Street , Antrim Road,  Belfast
Decision: 
Decision Date: 17.06.2002

Ref ID: Z/2006/1539/F
Proposal: Change of use from shop and offices to 6 no. apartments including extension 
to rear and alterations.
Address: 226 Antrim Road, Town Parks, Belfast, Northern Ireland, BT15 2AN
Decision: 
Decision Date: 01.11.2006

Ref ID: Z/2006/1685/F
Proposal: Change of use from existing shop and offices to seven apartments with 



Application ID: LA04/2017/1505/F

Page 15 of 16

associated external alterations.
Address: 224 Antrim Road, Town Parks, Belfast, BT15 2AN
Decision: 
Decision Date: 11.04.2008

Ref ID: Z/2006/1955/LB
Proposal: Change of use from business premises to 7 no. self-contained apartments and 
minor external alterations to the rear.
Address: 224 Antrim Road, Town Parks, Belfast, BT15 2AN
Decision: 
Decision Date: 11.04.2008

Ref ID: Z/2007/0962/F
Proposal: Change of use from shop and offices to 7 No. apartments including 3-storey 
extension and alterations to rear.
Address: 226 Antrim Road, Town Parks, Belfast, BT15 2AN
Decision: 
Decision Date: 06.12.2007

Ref ID: Z/2009/1771/F
Proposal: Demolition of existing 2 storey commercial warehouse building & construction 
of 4 storey apartment building consisting of 16No. apartments (amended scheme).
Address: 1-3 Eia Street, Town Parks, Belfast, Northern Ireland, BT14 6BT
Decision: PG
Decision Date: 15.04.2013

Ref ID: LA04/2016/0765/F
Proposal: Change of use and extension to existing building to office (ground floor)(use 
class A2) and 2 apartments
Address: 226 Antrim Road, Town Parks, Belfast, BT15 2AR,
Decision: PG
Decision Date: 23.05.2017

Ref ID: LA04/2016/1254/PAD
Proposal: Demolition of existing building and development of 12No. social housing 
apartments in a 31/2 storey block with associated bin store, cycle store and communal 
amenity space.
Address: 1-3 Eia Street, Belfast, BT14 6BT,
Decision: 
Decision Date: 

Ref ID: LA04/2017/1505/F
Proposal: Construction of 15no residential apartments (11no 3P2B and 4no 2P1B) 
together with associated communal garden space, bin storage and cycle packing 
provision.



Application ID: LA04/2017/1505/F

Page 16 of 16

Address: 1-3 Eia Street, Belfast, BT14 6BT,
Decision: 
Decision Date: 

Ref ID: Z/1978/0756
Proposal: NEW BOILER ROOM
Address: 76 UNIVERSITY STREET
Decision: 
Decision Date: 

Ref ID: Z/1981/1145
Proposal: DEMOLITION OF EXISTING OUT BUILDINGS AND ERECTION OF 
WAREHOUSE
Address: 3 EIA STREET
Decision: 
Decision Date: 

Drawing Numbers and Title

Drawing Nos. 01B, 02A, 03A, 04A

Notification to Department (if relevant)

Date of Notification to Department:  
Response of Department:



Development Management Officer Report
Committee Application

Summary
Committee Meeting Date: 13 February 2018  
Application ID: LA04/2015/1345/F  
Proposal:
Proposed housing development consisting of 
10 No. 2 storey semi-detached dwellings and 
7 No. 2 storey detached dwellings with 
garages and associated siteworks. 
Amendment to previous approved application 
Z/2007/0102/F

Location:
Land at Portmore Hill  adjacent to Thorburn 
Park and Thorburn Road and accessed via 
Antrim Road  through the Northview 
Development  Antrim Road  Belfast

Referral Route: 80 representations have been received that conflict with the planning officers 
recommendation.

Recommendation: Approval
Applicant Name and Address:
Mayfair Homes (NI) LTD
Scottish Provident Building 
Belfast
 BT1 6JH

Agent Name and Address:
 Site Express
Unit 8 Belmont Office Park 
240 Belmont Road
 Belfast
 BT4 2AW

Executive Summary:
Full Planning permission is sought for 17 dwellings (10 semi-detached and 7 detached) and 
associated site works.

The key issues in the assessment of this proposed development include:

Principle of development
Impact on the character of the area and topography
Impact on residential amenity
Loss of open space
Traffic and parking

The site is located within the development limits in dBMAP and BUAP and is identified as white 
land in draft BMAP 2015.   The land is currently in open space and is essentially a brownfield site 
that has grown over, the loss of the open space under PPS8 is justified and was considered 
during the previous application in October 2007 for 28 Dwelling Units. Taking into account the 
planning history for residential development on the site, the principle of residential development is 
considered acceptable.  

The design, layout and form of development is considered acceptable and the site can 
accommodate the number of dwellings proposed with a quality residential environment for 
prospective residents.  The topography of the site is addressed and there is sufficient separation 
distance to neighbouring dwellings and a landscape buffer will be provided that will ensure no 
significant impact to existing residential amenity.  



Application ID: LA04/2015/1345/F

Page 2 of 19

Consultees, DFI Roads, Rivers Agency, NI water and the Tree Officer offer no objections.

Planning Service has received 80 letters of objection and 1 letter of support. The main objection 
is the use of the existing access through a private development.

Having had regard to the development plan, relevant planning policies and other material 
considerations, it is recommended that planning permission is granted for this proposal subject to 
conditions.



Application ID: LA04/2015/1345/F

Page 3 of 19

Case Officer Report
Site Location Plan



Application ID: LA04/2015/1345/F

Page 4 of 19

Consultations:
Consultation Type Consultee Response
Statutory DFI Roads - Hydebank Content

Statutory NI Water - Multi Units East - 
Planning Consultations

Advice

Statutory DFI Roads - Hydebank Advice

Non Statutory Env Health Belfast City 
Council

No Objection

Statutory DFI Roads - Hydebank Advice

Statutory Rivers Agency Standing Advice

Non Statutory Building Control Belfast City 
Council

No Objection

Statutory Rivers Agency Standing Advice

Representations:
Letters of Support None Received
Letters of Objection 80
Number of Support Petitions and 
signatures

No Petitions Received

Number of Petitions of Objection and 
signatures

No Petitions Received

1.0 Description of Proposed Development
A housing development consisting of 10x no.2 storey semi-detached dwelling and 7x 
no. 2 storey detached dwellings is proposed.
The development will form part of ‘Northview’, a private gated development, which 
currently consists of 8 apartment blocks. Access will be from the Antrim Road through 
security gates in situ. The through-road currently in place will be extended to service the 



Application ID: LA04/2015/1345/F

Page 5 of 19

proposed housing development. 
As part of a private development, the houses will be fenced off from adjacent properties 
in Thorburn Road and Thorburn Park south and east of the site; and from Throne Wood 
and the ‘snakey path’, to the north of the site. 

2.0 Description of Site
The site is rectangular in shape and sits in front of (to the east) and at a lower level than 
the 8 apartment blocks that make up the Northview development. The site slopes 
downwards towards the sea from west to east and falls some 6m from the west 
boundary to the east boundary.
The site is currently an area of open space, grown over with shrubs and bushes and is 
fenced off. 
The ‘snake path’ and Throne Wood are adjacent of the north of the site. To the south 
and east the area is characterised by 2 storey semi-detached properties.

Planning Assessment of Policy and other Material Considerations

3.0 Site History
Z/2007/0102F Erection of 4 no. 2 storey town houses. 12 no. 2 storey/split level semi-
detached houses. 12 no. apartments with associated parking, road works and 
landscaping. Land at Portmore Hill adjacent to Thorburn Road, Thorburn Park and 
accessed via Antrim Road through Northview development, Belfast.
Approved 29th October 2007

History of Adjacent Site
Z/2014/0610/F Erection of 19 units consisting of 17no. semi-detached and 2 no. 
apartments, including extension to and abandonment of, part of Thorburn Road. Site 
located north of no's 82 & 83 Thorburn Road,BT36 7JA
Approved 29th December 2015 

4.0 Policy Framework
4.1 Draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2015 & Belfast Urban Area Plan 2002 

Strategic Planning Policy Statement 
Planning Policy Statements (PPS)
PPS3 Access, Movement and Parking
PPS7 Quality Residential Environments - Policy QD1 Quality in New Residential 
Development
Addendum to PPS7  Safeguarding the Character of Established Residential Areas, 
Annex A  Space standards
PPS8 Open Space, Sport and Outdoor Recreation;  Policy OS1 – Protection of Open 
Space

5.0 Statutory Consultees
Department of infrastructure (DFI) – No objection to the proposal subject to conditions
NI Water -  No objection subject to conditions
DFI Rivers -  No objection to this development

6.0 Non-Statutory Consultees
BCC Environmental Health- no objection 
BCC Building Control were not able to comment on landslip in the area.
BCC Landscape Team – No objection

7.0

7.1

Representations 
The application has been neighbour notified and advertised in the local press. 80 
objections have been received. Issues raised in these representations are:

Traffic Issues
• Increase in traffic along private narrow road with a dangerous hairpin bend is 
dangerous



Application ID: LA04/2015/1345/F

Page 6 of 19

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

• Intensification of use of access and suitability of access is unsafe
• Loss of parking spaces (particularly with regard to block 6 where car park becomes a 
through road)

- DFI Roads are satisfied with the proposed arrangements

Amenity Issues
• Over-looking & loss of privacy for Northview residents
• Negative impact on the character of the area 
• Loss of amenity space utilised by children and young adults
•Loss of security in a private gated development
•Contrary to development plan and planning appeal decisions
•Potential land slip

Over looking
The new properties sit at a much lower level than the apartment blocks. The line of sight 
for those in the existing ground floor apartments is higher than the proposed dwellings, 
so over-looking and privacy issues are not problematic.

Character of the Area
- With regard to the character of the area, the density of properties is in keeping 

with neighbouring properties to the south and east of the site. The pattern of 
development is very similar with 2 storey semi-detached dwellings being the 
main form of development. 

Amenity
- Amenity space provision is sufficient in the proposed development. Creating 

places recommends private amenity space greater than 40sqm for dwelling units 
next to public open space. Throne Wood is adjacent to this development. Private 
amenity space for the proposed dwelling units range from 70sqm – 190sqm.

- The site also has intrinsic amenity value visually as open space. Justification of 
this ‘loss of open space’ has been submitted and found acceptable in line with 
planning policy. (more on justification)

Loss of security within the gated development
- A close boarded boundary fence has been incorporated to enclose the 

development. In this respect the development has been designed to deter crime 
in keeping with planning policy.

Contrary to the development plan and planning appeal decisions
- The proposal is in keeping with the development plan (BUAP & dBMAP). There 

does not appear to have been any prior appeals at this site.

Potential Landslip
The Geological Survey of Northern Ireland (GSNI) shows that the site lies within an 
area designated as a landslip area. GSNI state that the continued stability of the site 
depends on positive drainage measures. 

- A drainage assessment has been submitted by the agent. DFI Rivers are 
satisfied with the drainage assessment submitted and raise no objection to the 
proposal. It is a matter for the developer and their engineer to ensure structural 
stability of the site.

Other Matters
•Loss of security within the gated development during construction phase and beyond. 
Potential gate to Throne Wood would reduce security. 



Application ID: LA04/2015/1345/F

Page 7 of 19

- Security of the site during construction is the responsibility of the developer.

Residents of Northview pay management company ‘Charterhouse’ to maintain the 
private road & security gate. Residents are concerned they will incur additional 
maintenance costs

- It is the responsibility of the developer and the management company to liaise 
with existing Northview residents and make arrangements for road maintenance 
and security gates. 

 
Increase in noise from plant and loss of visual amenity and during construction phase.

- In terms of noise from plant, the hours of works will be conditioned to ensure 
inconvenience is kept to a minimum. 

Loss of value of apartments & loss of view 
- These are not material planning matters 

8.0 Representations from Elected Representatives 
Nigel Dodds MP has submitted a letter of support for this application.

9.0 Other Material Considerations
 Creating Places

10.0

10.1

10.2

10.3

Assessment
The key issues in this case are: 
Principle of development
Impact on the character of the area and topography
Impact on residential amenity
Loss of open space
Traffic and parking

Principle of Development
The site is located within the development limits in dBMAP and BUAP and is identified as 
white land in draft BMAP 2015.  Therefore a range of compatible uses may be acceptable 
providing they meet the relevant policy tests.

Taking into account the planning history for residential development on the site, the 
principle of residential development is considered acceptable.  

Loss of Open Space 
Areas of open space can perform multiple functions, including as a visual amenity. Annex 
A of PPS8 states that even without public access, people enjoy having open space near 
to them to provide an outlook. Policy OS1 states there is a presumption against the loss 
of existing open space irrespective of its physical condition and appearance. An exception 
will be permitted where it can be demonstrated that the loss of open space will have no 
significantly detrimental impact on the amenity, character or biodiversity of the area.
A ‘loss of open space justification report’ was submitted to the Council. Consideration 
was given to the loss of open space is the planning history of the site. Z/2007/0102/F was 
approved in October 2007 for 4 town houses, 12 semi-detached and 12 apartments on 
the basis that evidence was submitted to prove the land was previously developed as 
housing with the address ‘Portmore Hill’ between the years 1957 and 1986. Therefore, 
whilst the land is currently in open space it is essentially a brownfield site that has grown 
over and therefore the loss of the open space under PPS8 is justified.

Impact on the Character of the Area & Topography
Despite being part of the Northview development, the design and density of the proposal 
is more akin with the pattern of development in the Thorburn Road and Thorburn Park 



Application ID: LA04/2015/1345/F

Page 8 of 19

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

areas, where 2 storey semi-detached properties are more characteristic.  
With land sloping downwards to the sea, there is a relatively steep drop in levels from the 
Northview apartments (67m above sea level) to this development site (56.5m above sea 
level) a drop of nearly 11m. 

The site itself will require some cut and fill to provide a level terrace to build on. Within 
the proposed site there is a variation of 3m between the highest and lowest points. This 
is not untypical on this type of sloping site.  It is important to provide flat amenity areas 
for the prospective residents and accessible gradients for motor vehicles whilst ensuring 
that any changes in levels do not result in significant impact on existing residential 
neighbours. 

The site level is to be raised by 2m at sites 01 and 02 this is to accommodate roads 
engineering to ensure accessibility to the site.  The adjacent properties to the south at 9 
and 10 Thorburn Park will sit 3m lower than site 01. However, the dwellings in Thorburn 
Park form a cul-de-sac and sit offset at an angle from the nearest proposed dwelling.  
This will assist in mitigating the difference in levels.  There is sufficient separation distance 
at 10m at the nearest corner and 20m to the side/ rear and a 2m -9m buffer for planting 
a mature landscaped buffer between the dwellings.  The landscape scheme and 
boundary treatments will be conditioned.
 
Properties on Thorburn Road to the east sit, essentially on a lower terrace (6m lower) 
than proposed development. This is typical of the tiered form development has taken in 
this area.  With sufficient separation distances of at least 30m from the rear of the 
proposed properties.  There will be at least 40m separation back to back.  

 Residential Amenity
Overlooking 
The apartment development (8 apartment blocks totalling 104 apartments) that make up 
the Northview development, sit approx. 11m higher above sea level than this proposed 
development. The line of sight from the existing ground floor apartments is above the roof 
lines of the proposed buildings. As such, overlooking from the proposed dwellings will not 
result in a loss of amenity.
Within the new development of 17 properties the windows of the houses have been well 
placed so that no overlooking occurs, and given the separation distances is unlikely to be 
significant. The proposed is considered to be accordance with policy QD1 of PPS7 – 
Quality Residential Environments.

Over-shadowing
These properties would sit at the foot of the Cavehill. With the sun rising in the east, the 
properties will benefit from sunshine in the morning to the rear and afternoon sun in the 
front. As these properties sit lower than and to the east of the apartments, there will be 
no over shadowing or loss of light at the apartments. The design and orientation of the 
proposed houses within the site is such that they will not over shadow each other.

Design 
The development is to be made up of 17 no. 2 storey properties. The walls will be finished 
in brick and render with traditional hipped roofs will be finished with a flat concrete tiles. 
Doors will be painted timber and windows PVC. The 4 x 3 bed detached homes have a 
floor space of approximately 123sqm; 2 x 4 bed detached 136sqm; 1 x 4 bed 
detached154sqm and the 10 x 4 bedroom semi-detached are approximately 150sqm. 
These properties all meet space standards set out in Annex A of the addendum to PPS7, 
Safeguarding the Character of an Established Residential Area.  Garden sizes are in 
keeping with standards set out in ‘creating places, with the minimum requirement of 
40sqm. Rear garden sizes range from 90sqm to approximately 130sqm.



Application ID: LA04/2015/1345/F

Page 9 of 19

10.11

All properties have at least 2 in curtilage parking spaces. 14 spaces have marked on 
the plans for on street visitor parking. DFI Roads are satisfied that the development 
meets the required parking standards, in keeping with PPS3.   

Landscaping and Trees 
A detailed landscape scheme has been submitted showing a landscape buffer around 
the boundary of the site and setting out a planting specification.  This will help integrate 
the site into its setting and mitigate against any loss of amenity. The boundary to no. 9 
& 10 Thorburn Park boundary will also be sufficiently planted as set out above.  The 
Tree Officer is content with the plans as submitted subject to condition. 

11.0 Summary of Recommendation
The proposal is considered to be in compliance with the development plan; and having 
regard to the policy context and other material considerations above, the proposal is 
considered acceptable and planning permission is recommended subject to conditions 

12.0 Conditions
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 5 years 
from the date of this permission.
Reason: As required by Section 61 of the Planning Act (Northern Ireland) 2011.

2. Site preparation and construction work shall not take place outside the hours 0800-
1800hrs Monday to Friday, 0800-1700hrs on Saturday and at no time on Sundays and 
bank holidays
Reason: In the interest of residential amenity. 

3. The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the carriageway and 
footways have been constructed in accordance with Drawing No.02B bearing the date 
stamp 22nd February 2017.
Reason: To ensure there is a safe and convenient road system within the site.

4. No dwelling shall be occupied until that part of the service road which provides 
access to it has been constructed to base course.  The final wearing course shall be 
applied on the completion of each phase of the development.
Reason: To ensure the orderly development of the site and the road works necessary to 
provide satisfactory access to each dwelling.

5. The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until hard surfaced areas 
have been constructed in accordance with Drawing No.02B bearing the date stamp 
22nd February 2017 to provide for parking within the site.  No part of these hard 
surfaced areas shall be used for any purpose at any time other than for the parking and 
movement of vehicles.
Reason: To ensure adequate provision has been made for parking within the site.

6. The development hereby permitted shall not commence until samples and a written 
specification of the materials to be used in the external elevations and hard standing 
surfaces, have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The development shall be carried out and thereafter retained in accordance 
with the approved details. 
Reason: To protect the visual amenities of the area.  

7. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 
Landscape Proposals Plan Drawing Number ‘Landscape Plan 2’ stamped received by 
Belfast City Council 30th October 2017. All landscaping shall be carried out in 



Application ID: LA04/2015/1345/F

Page 10 of 19

accordance with the approved scheme in the first planting season (November-March) 
following the occupation of the buildings or the completion of the development 
whichever is the sooner and maintained thereafter. Any retained or newly planted trees, 
shrubs or hedges which die, become seriously damaged or diseased or are removed or 
destroyed within a period of 5 years from the date of planting shall be replaced during 
the next planting season with specimens of the same size and species unless otherwise 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of amenity and biodiversity and to preserve and enhance the 
character and appearance of the locality.

8. The development hereby permitted shall not commenced until a specification of the 
details of  boundary treatments and retaining walls have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried 
out and thereafter retained in accordance with the approved details. 
Reason: To protect the residential amenities of the area

13.0 Informatives
Drainage (NI) Order 1973
Under the terms of Schedule 6 of the Drainage (NI) Order 1973, any proposals either 
temporary or permanent, in connection with the development which involves 
interference with any watercourses such as culverting, bridging, diversion, building 
adjacent to or discharging storm water etc. requires the written consent of DfI Rivers. 
This should be obtained from the Eastern Regional Office at Ravarnet House, Altona 
Road, Largymore, Lisburn BT27 5QB.

THE Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment (Northern Ireland) Act 2011
Contaminated Land
Should any unforeseen ground contamination be encountered during the development, 
and in order to protect human health, all works on the site should cease.  Belfast City 
Council should be informed and a full written risk assessment in line with current 
government guidance (Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination - 
CLR11) that details the nature of the risks and any necessary mitigation measures 
should be prepared and submitted for appraisal.



Application ID: LA04/2015/1345/F

Page 11 of 19

ANNEX

Date Valid 5th November 2015

Date First Advertised 20th November 2015

Date Last Advertised

Details of Neighbour Notification (all addresses)
The Owner/Occupier, 
1 Northview Manor,Ballygolan,Belfast,Antrim,BT36 7RT,   
 Brian Polson
1, Apartment 6, Northview, Newtownabbey, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT36 7JL   
 Stephen Harte
1, Apartment 8, Northview, Newtownabbey, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT36 7JL   
The Owner/Occupier, 
10 Portmore Hill,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JD,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
10 Thorburn Park,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7AZ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
11 Thorburn Park,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7AZ,   
 leo callow
17 Ballynacoy Road Ballynacoy Lisburn 
 C Donaghy
17 Northview,Newtownabbey,Co Antrim,BT36 7JL   
 Leo Callow
17, Ballynacoy Road, Lisburn, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT28 3XW   
The Owner/Occupier, 
2 Northview Manor,Ballygolan,Belfast,Antrim,BT36 7RT,   
 Dolores Finnerty
2, Apartment 13, Northview, Newtownabbey, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT36 7JL   
 Bogdan Jonak
2, Apartment 16, Northview, Newtownabbey, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT36 7JL   
The Owner/Occupier, 
3 Northview Manor,Ballygolan,Belfast,Antrim,BT36 7RT,   
 Lorna Murphy
3, Apartment 29, Northview, Newtownabbey, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT36 7JL   
The Owner/Occupier, 
31 Antrim Road,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7PR,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
4 Northview Manor,Ballygolan,Belfast,Antrim,BT36 7RT,   
 Lisa Hughes
4, Apartment 42, Northview, Newtownabbey, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT36 7JL   
 Micheal Meegan
4, Apartment 43, Northview, Newtownabbey, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT36 7JL   
 Noel McCullough
4, Apartment 47, Northview, Newtownabbey, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT36 7JL   
The Owner/Occupier, 
5 Northview Manor,Ballygolan,Belfast,Antrim,BT36 7RT,   



Application ID: LA04/2015/1345/F

Page 12 of 19

 Mark McComiskey
5, Apartment 49, Northview, Newtownabbey, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT36 7JL   
 Kelly Jennings
5, Apartment 51, Northview, Newtownabbey, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT36 7JL   
 Stuart MacManus
5, Apartment 52, Northview, Newtownabbey, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT36 7JL   
The Owner/Occupier, 
56 Thorburn Road,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JA,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
58 Thorburn Road,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JA,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
6 Portmore Hill,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JD,   
 Catherine Treanor
6, Apartment 63, Northview, Newtownabbey, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT36 7GA   
 Lajos Garai
6, Apartment 66, Northview, Newtownabbey, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT36 7GA   
The Owner/Occupier, 
6, Apartment 67, Northview, Newtownabbey, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT36 7GA   
 Sean Burns
6, Apartment 71, Northview, Newtownabbey, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT36 7GA   
 Daniel O'Neill
6, Apartment 72, Northview, Newtownabbey, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT36 7GA   
 Rory Corrigan
6, Apartment 74, Northview, Newtownabbey, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT36 7GA   
 Frank McCartan
6, Apartment 75, Northview, Newtownabbey, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT36 7GA   
 Michael Penney
6, Apartment 76, Northview, Newtownabbey, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT36 7GA   
 Wallace Cowan
6, Apartment 77, Northview, Newtownabbey, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT36 7GA   
The Owner/Occupier, 
60 Thorburn Road,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JA,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
62 Thorburn Road,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JA,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
64 Thorburn Road,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JA,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
66 Thorburn Road,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JA,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
68 Thorburn Road,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JA,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
7 Apt 79 Northview, Belfast BT36 7GA   
The Owner/Occupier, 
7 Apt 80 Northview, Belfast BT36 7GA   
The Owner/Occupier, 
7 Apt 81 Northview, Belfast BT36 7GA   
The Owner/Occupier, 
7 Apt 82 Northview Belfast BT36 7GA   
The Owner/Occupier, 
7 Apt 83 Northview, Belfst BT36 7GA   



Application ID: LA04/2015/1345/F

Page 13 of 19

The Owner/Occupier, 
7 Apt 84 Northview Belfast BT36 7GA   
The Owner/Occupier, 
7 Apt 85 Northview, Belfast BT36 7GA   
The Owner/Occupier, 
7 Apt 86 Northview, Belfast BT36 7GA   
The Owner/Occupier, 
7 Apt 87 Notrthview, Belfast BT36 7GA   
The Owner/Occupier, 
7 Apt 88 Northview Belfast BT36 7GA   
The Owner/Occupier, 
7 Apt 89 Northview Belfast BT36 7GA   
The Owner/Occupier, 
7 Apt 90 Northview Belfast BT36 7GA   
The Owner/Occupier, 
7 Apt 91 Northview Belfast BT36 7GA   
The Owner/Occupier, 
7 Portmore Hill,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JD,   
 Michael Corran
7, Apartment 80, Northview, Newtownabbey, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT36 7GA   
 Janet Chambers
7, Apartment 83, Northview, Newtownabbey, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT36 7GA   
 Janet Rice
7, Apartment 86, Northview, Newtownabbey, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT36 7GA   
The Owner/Occupier, 
7, Apt 78 Northview   
The Owner/Occupier, 
70 Thorburn Road,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JA,   
 Seanin Fergson
72 Lansdowne Road Low-Wood Belfast 
The Owner/Occupier, 
72 Thorburn Road,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JA,   
 Seanin Fergson
72, Lansdowne Road, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT15 4AA   
The Owner/Occupier, 
74 Thorburn Road,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JA,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
76 Thorburn Road,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JA,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
78 Thorburn Road,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JA,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
8 Apt 103 Northview, Belfast BT36 7GA   
The Owner/Occupier, 
8 Apt 104 Northview Belfast BT36 7GA   
The Owner/Occupier, 
8 Apt 105 Northview Belfast BT36 7GA   
The Owner/Occupier, 
8 Apt 92 Northview, Belfast BT36 7GA   
The Owner/Occupier, 
8 Apt 93 Northview, Belfast BT36 7GA   



Application ID: LA04/2015/1345/F

Page 14 of 19

The Owner/Occupier, 
8 Apt 94 Northview, Belfast BT36 7GA   
The Owner/Occupier, 
8 Apt 95 Northview Belfast BT36 7GA   
The Owner/Occupier, 
8 Apt 99 Northview Belfast BT36 7GA   
The Owner/Occupier, 
8 Portmore Hill,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JD,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
8 Thorburn Park,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7AZ,   
 Brendan Ferguson
8, Apartment 102, Northview, Newtownabbey, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT36 7GA   
 Derek Gerrard
8, Apartment 104, Northview, Newtownabbey, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT36 7GA   
 Bernadette Garry
8, Apartment 94, Northview, Newtownabbey, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT36 7GA   
 Maureen Morgan
8, Apartment 95, Northview, Newtownabbey, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT36 7GA   
 claire Caulfield
8, Apartment 96, Northview, Newtownabbey, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT36 7GA   
 Patrick McGrory
8, Apartment 97, Northview, Newtownabbey, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT36 7GA   
The Owner/Occupier, 
8, Apt 100 Northview Belfast BT36 7GA   
The Owner/Occupier, 
8, Apt 101 Northview Belfast BT36 7GA   
The Owner/Occupier, 
8, Apt 102 Northview, Belfast BT36 7GA   
The Owner/Occupier, 
8, Apt 80 Northview, Belfast BT36 7GA   
The Owner/Occupier, 
8, Apt 98 Northview, Belfast BT36 7GA   
The Owner/Occupier, 
80 Thorburn Road,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JA,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
82 Thorburn Road,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JA,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
84 Thorburn Road,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JA,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
86 Thorburn Road,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JA,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
88 Thorburn Road,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JA,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
9 Portmore Hill,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JD,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
9 Thorburn Park,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7AZ,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 1,1 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 10,1 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   



Application ID: LA04/2015/1345/F

Page 15 of 19

 Brendan Ferguson
Apartment 102 8 Northview Ballygolan Newtownabbey 
 Derek Gerrard
Apartment 104 8 Northview Ballygolan Newtownabbey 
 Darren McGurnaghan
Apartment 11 1 Northview Ballygolan Newtownabbey 
 Melissa Halvey
Apartment 11,1 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   
 maureen neesonn
Apartment 12,1 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   
 Dolores Finnerty
Apartment 13,2 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 14,2 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 15,2 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 16,2 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 17,2 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 18,2 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 19,2 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 2,1 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 20,2 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 21,2 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 22,2 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 23,2 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 24,2 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 25,3 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 26,3 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 27,3 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 28,3 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   
 Lorna Murphy
Apartment 29,3 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 3,1 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 30,3 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   



Application ID: LA04/2015/1345/F

Page 16 of 19

The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 31,3 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 32,3 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 33,3 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 34,3 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 35,3 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 36,3 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 37,4 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 38,4 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 39,4 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 4,1 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 40,4 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   
 RICHARD ORR
Apartment 41,4 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   
 Lisa Hughes
Apartment 42,4 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   
 Micheal Meegan
Apartment 43,4 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 44,4 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 45,4 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 46,4 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   
 Noel McCullough
Apartment 47,4 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 48,4 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   
 Mark McComiskey
Apartment 49,5 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 5,1 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 50,5 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   
 Kelly Jennings
Apartment 51,5 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   
 Stuart Mac Manus
Apartment 52,5 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 53,5 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   



Application ID: LA04/2015/1345/F

Page 17 of 19

The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 54,5 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 55,5 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 56,5 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 57,5 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 58,5 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 59,5 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   
 Brian Polson
Apartment 6,1 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   
 Marie Rigby
Apartment 60,5 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   
 Michael McCluskey
Apartment 61,6 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7GA,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 62,6 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7GA,   
 Catherine Treanor
Apartment 63,6 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7GA,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 64,6 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7GA,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 65,6 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7GA,   
 Lajos Garai
Apartment 66,6 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7GA,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 67,6 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7GA,   
 Glenn McCartney
Apartment 68 6 Northview Ballygolan Newtownabbey 
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 68,6 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7GA,   
 Mary Mc Intosh
Apartment 69,6 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7GA,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 7,1 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 70,6 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7GA,   
 Richard Weiniger
Apartment 71, Block 6, Northview, Newtownabbey, BT36 7JL   
 Richard Weiniger
Apartment 71,6 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7GA,   
 Daniel ONEILL
Apartment 72,6 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7GA,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 73,6 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7GA,   
 Louise Corrigan
Apartment 74 6 Northview Ballygolan Newtownabbey 



Application ID: LA04/2015/1345/F

Page 18 of 19

 Rory Corrigan
Apartment 74,6 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7GA,   
 Frank McCartan
Apartment 75,6 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7GA,   
 Michael Penney
Apartment 76,6 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7GA,   
 wallace cowan
Apartment 77,6 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7GA,   
 Stephen Harte
Apartment 8,1 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   
 MICHAEL CORRAN
Apartment 80 7 Northview Ballygolan Newtownabbey 
 Janet Chambers
Apartment 83 7 Northview Ballygolan Newtownabbey 
 Jane Rice
Apartment 86 7 Northview Ballygolan Newtownabbey 
 Rianna Drain
Apartment 88 7 Northview Ballygolan Newtownabbey 
 Charles Mooney
Apartment 88 7 Northview Ballygolan Newtownabbey 
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apartment 9,1 Northview,Ballygolan,Newtownabbey,Antrim,BT36 7JL,   
 MAUREEN MORGAN
Apartment 95 8 Northview Ballygolan Newtownabbey 
 Claire Caulfield
Apartment 96 8 Northview Ballygolan Newtownabbey 
 Patrick McGrory
Apartment 97 8 Northview Ballygolan Newtownabbey 
The Owner/Occupier, 
Apt 78, 7 Northview, Belfast BT36 7GA   
 Robin Guthrie
R.guthrie@btinternet.com   
 Ian Hunter
   
 Sean McGovern
   
 Lorna Murphy
   
 Lisa Leopoldo
   
 Neil Adams
   
 Cathleen Dowds
   

Date of Last Neighbour Notification

Date of EIA Determination



Application ID: LA04/2015/1345/F

Page 19 of 19

ES Requested No

Notification to Department (if relevant)

Date of Notification to Department:  
Response of Department:





Development Management Officer Report
Committee Application

Summary
Committee Meeting Date: 13 February 2017 
Application ID: LA04/2016/1360/F  
Proposal:
Proposed filling station, shop, 2no.retail units, 
forecourt canopy and associated petroleum 
installation.

Location:
Lands opposite junction of Stewartstown Road 
and Suffolk Road  Belfast  BT11 9NB  

Referral Route: Retailing over 500 square metres with representations
Recommendation: Approve subject to conditions
Applicant Name and Address:
Cedeareast Investments Ltd
43 Lockview Road
Belfast
BT9 5JF

Agent Name and Address:
Clarman and Co
Unit 1 
33 Dungannon Road
Coalisland
BT71 4HP

Executive Summary: 

The application seeks full planning permission for a petrol station with shop, 2 no. retail units, 
forecourt canopy and associated petroleum installation.

The main issues to be considered in this case are
a) Road Safety
b) Retail impact
c) Design and layout
d) Impact on residential amenity

The site is located within the City’s development limits as designated in the Belfast Urban Area 
Plan and draft Belfast Metropolitan Plan. The application has been assessed against relevant 
planning policy, draft BMAP, SPPS, PPS3 & PPS15

A detailed retail statement of need has been submitted and assessed.

All relevant neighbours were notified and the proposal was advertised in the local press. 11 
representations were made, one of which is a petition signed by 8 local traders.

All consultees offer no objection in principle to the proposal.

The architectural approach of the design is modern and typical of this form of development.  It is 
considered that on balance, the design and layout are appropriate and will assist in the overall 
regeneration of the area.

The planning history of the site for retail use is a material consideration.  With the Co-op in situ for 
more than 30 years, and 4 retail units granted permission in 2010, it is accepted that retail has 
been the predominant established use at this location.  

The proposal will introduce a modern attractive PFS and retail location to a site in need of 
regeneration, providing an economic boost, new retail jobs and supporting the needs of the 
immediate local community.  



Application ID: LA04/2016/1360/F

Page 2 of 10

On, balance it is considered that the proposal is in keeping with retail policy set out in the SPPS.

It is recommended that the application is approved subject to conditions set out in the report.



Application ID: LA04/2016/1360/F

Page 3 of 10

Case Officer Report
Site Location Plan

Characteristics of Site and Area

1.0 Description of Proposed Development
Full planning permission is sought for a petrol filling station with associated shop, 2 No retail 
units, forecourt canopy and associated petroleum installation. 

2.0 Description of Site and Surroundings
The site is located at 142 Stewartstown Road approximately 4 miles south west of the city centre 
and in close proximity to the M1 motorway. The site is located beside the junction of the 
Stewartstown Road and Suffolk Road and opposite Woodbourne PSNI Station.

The site sits below the level of the road and is enclosed on 3 sides by 3m high palisade fencing. 



Application ID: LA04/2016/1360/F

Page 4 of 10

There are residential properties on three sides to the east, west and south of the site.

The site is generally flat and rectangular shaped. Vehicular access is via one access from the 
north of the site. Steps on both the eastern and western boundaries of the site give access to 
residents of Cranmore Park and Donegore Gardens.

There are a mix of land uses in the surrounding area. A police station and church are located 
directly opposite the site.  Beyond this on the Suffolk Road at a distance of approximately 130m 
from the site is a Costcutter, post office, coffee shop, pharmacy and day nursery.

3.0 Site History
Records show that as far back as 1975 a Co-op supermarket was located at this site. This use 
continued until 2008.  In 2009 a planning application was received to use the site as a car wash 
facility:

1. Z/2009/0240/F Manual car wash facility with associated container (variation of condition 
(time limit))

2. Z/2010/0306/F Erection of 4 no. retail units (including demolition of  the existing shop 
units) Permission granted 01.06.2010

3. Z/2011/0572/O Construction of healthcare village comprising of a doctors surgery, 
pharmacy, opticians, physiotherapy and crèche with associated car parking. Permission 
granted 03.01.2012

4. Z/2011/1089/F Manual Carwash Facility with associated container. Permission granted 
23.11.2011

4.0 Policy Framework
Draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2015
Belfast Urban Area Plan 2001

Strategic Planning Policy Statement for Northern Ireland (SPPS)
1.Good Design para’s 4.23-4.30
2.Town Centres and Retailing paras 6.272 – 6.283

Planning Policy Statement (PPS) 3 Access, Movement and Parking
1. Policy AMP1: Creating an Accessible environment
2. Policy AMP2: Access to public Roads
3. Policy AMP7: Car parking and Service Arrangements

PPS 15 Planning and Flood Risk
1. Policy FLD3 – Development and Surface Water (Pluvial) Flood Risk Outside Flood Plains

5.0 Statutory Consultees Responses
DFI – Roads – No objection
NI Water – No Objection
DFI Rivers Agency – No Objection

6.0 Non Statutory Consultees Responses
BCC Environmental Health – No objection subject to conditions

7.0 Representations
The application has been neighbour notified and advertised in the local press. 10 letters have 
been received from concerned neighbours and 1 petition of objection from Woodburn Trading 



Application ID: LA04/2016/1360/F

Page 5 of 10

Association signed by 8 traders. Issues raised are as follows:  

1. Drawings indicate inaccurate road layout
Amended drawings have been received and DfI Roads ae satisfied that the layout is     
accurate.

2.  Not sufficient number of parking spaces provided
             DfI satisfied with the scheme

3.  Road Safety and congestion issues
             DfI satisfied with the scheme

4.  Retail Statement only partially fulfils requirements of SPPS (para 6.282) in that an 
‘assessment of need’ has not been submitted. The retail statement fails to mention 

            • 4 filling stations within 1 mile radius
            • surrounded by housing on 3 sides
            • undue proliferation of mixed use development/ no need for retail units

An assessment of need has been submitted which is considered to comply with relevant 
parts of the SPPS.

5. Harmful effect on residential amenity in terms of loss of privacy, noise, smell and light
The design and layout of the proposal is considered to be acceptable – adequate 
separation distances are proposed and boundary fencing will help to mitigate against any 
potential impact on surrounding residential amenity.  

6.  Site has potential to be a focal point anti-social behaviour
Controlling the potential for anti-social behaviour is not a material planning 
consideration.  The redevelopment of this site is considered to be a positive benefit for 
the wider area.  It would be the responsibility of the end use of the development to 
manage and control any potential for anti-social behaviour.  

7.  There is a potential for leakage of hazardous substances into the Glen River; proposal 
will exacerbate local flooding.
Rivers Agency raised no objection – a drainage assessment was submitted in support of 
the application.   

8.  PSNI views should be sought.
PSNI have been contacted by Planning no formal response has been received.  

9.  Concerns raised regarding lifting the site by 8 feet as it currently sits above properties in 
Donegore Gardens by 6 feet.
An increase in levels is proposed given the current varying levels of the site.  An increase 
of approximately 0.6- 0.8m on the boundary of some properties on Donegore Gardens 
(nos 5-19), to a maximum increase of 1.5m in the centre of the site. 
The existing paladin fences in place are to be retained. A jakoustic fence which is 1.8m is 
to put in place on the boundaries with residential properties with a landscape buffer to 
mitigate any potential detrimental impact. 

10.  Inconsistencies & Inaccuracies in plans
Road drawings have been updated to incorporate current road markings in line with the 
Belfast Rapid Transit Scheme (BRT)

9.0 Assessment



Application ID: LA04/2016/1360/F

Page 6 of 10

9.1 Principle of Development

The site is located on unzoned land in dBMAP within the City’s development limit.  Given the 
planning history on the site it is considered that the principle of a petrol filling station (PFS) is 
generally acceptable in principle subject to the satisfaction of other planning and environmental 
matters. 

9.2 Design and Layout

The site is rectangular in shape with the proposed PFS shop and retail units located to the west 
of the site.  12No car parking spaces are also proposed to the front of the petrol station shop and 
retail units.  The petrol forecourt occupies the centre of the site and a further 12No parking 
spaces are proposed along the eastern boundary of the site.  A single access from Stewartstown 
Road is proposed.  

The proposed building is two storey.  At ground floor level the building unit is 42metres in width 
with a depth of 14metres.  The first floor is set back from the front of the ground floor by 5metres. 
The first floor has a width of 24metres.  The total floor space is be created is 804sqm.

The ground floor accommodates 2 retail units, one to the north of the building and one to the 
south.  A shop is associated with the PFS.  The upper floor is for storage, staff room and toilets; 
and ancillary office space associated with the petrol station.

The external finishes of the proposed building include white render with timber cladding on the 
upper floors.

The architectural approach of the design is modern and it is considered that on balance, the 
design and layout are appropriate and will assist in the overall regeneration of the area.

9.3 Impact on Residential Amenity

The neighbouring residential properties on Cranamore Park and Donegore Gardens sit at a 
lower level that the application site.  

The proposed building sits 2.8metres from the southern boundary with the rear garden of Nos 19 
&17 Donegore Gardens; and 3metres from the western boundary adjacent to no.2 Donegore 
Gardens. 

Within this context, a Shadow Analysis was submitted in support of the application.  A 1.8 metre 
boundary fence is also proposed which will prevent any potential for overlooking in addition to 
proposed separation distances.

In terms of noise, Environmental Health are satisfied that the ‘jakoustic fence’ will ensure the 
amenity of neighbours is not compromised. Environmental Health are also satisfied 
smells/odours and light pollution will not be harmful to neighbouring residents.

9.4 Retail Impact

The planning history of the site for retail use is a material consideration.  With the Co-op in situ 
for more than 30 years, and 4 retail units granted permission in 2010, it is accepted that retail 
has been the predominant established use at this location.  

The proposal will introduce a modern attractive PFS and retail location to a site in need of 
regeneration, providing an economic boost, new retail jobs and supporting the needs of the 



Application ID: LA04/2016/1360/F

Page 7 of 10

immediate local community.  

On, balance it is considered that the proposal is in keeping with retail policy set out in the SPPS.

9.5 Access, Parking and Road Safety

It is proposed to access the site from Stewartstown Road.   24 car parking spaces are also 
proposed.  DFI Roads verbally offered no objection in principle.  The proposed is considered to 
comply with relevant policies within PPS3.  At the time of finagling this report a formal response 
has not been issued by Roads.  If Committee are minded to approval it is recommended that the 
final wording of the conditions from Transport NI are delegated to the Head of Planning. 
  
9.6 Flood Risk

A drainage assessment has been submitted and Rivers Agency and the applicant has received 
Schedule 6 consent to carry out drainage works, discharging storm water to the Glen River. The 
proposal is considered acceptable by Rivers Agency in terms of flood risk.  The proposals 
complies with relevant policies within PPS15.  

10.0 Conclusion

Having regard to the policy context and the planning history the proposal is considered to be 
acceptable and planning permission is recommended for approval subject to conditions

11.0 Conditions
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 5 years from the 
date of this permission.
Reason: As required by Section 61 of the Planning Act (Northern Ireland) 2011.

DFI Roads conditions to be included.

2. Prior to operation of the development all plant and equipment associated with development 
shall be designed and installed to meet the noise limits set in the KRM Report:  Amended Noise 
Assessment Proposed filling station, shop, 2 no. retail units, forecourt canopy and associated 
petroleum installation. Lands opposite junction of Stewartstown Road and Suffolk Road, Belfast, 
BT119NB.Reference: LA04/2016/1360/F Dated 9 January 2017.

3. Prior to operation of the development all the acoustic fence as detailed in Plan Drawing No.3B 
Site Plan by Clarman Architects Dated 02 March 2017 and Plan Drawing Jakoustic Fence 
Details Project No. 3175 Dated 02 March 2017 shall be installed. 

4. Deliveries to the premises between 23.00 and 0.7.00 hrs Sunday to Saturday shall only be 
made via the main door of the Petrol Filling Station.

12.0 Informatives

Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act (Northern Ireland) 2011
Lighting
The applicant is advised that provisions contained in Part 7 of the Clean Neighbourhoods and 
Environment Act (NI) 2011 (Statutory nuisances from artificial light) apply to this development. All 
flood lighting should be optically controlled and directed in such a manner as to minimise light 
pollution from glare and spill. Guidance notes for the reduction of light pollution can be obtained 
from the institution of Lighting Engineers, Lennox House, 9 Lawford Road, Rugby, Warwickshire, 
CV21 2DZ, available at https://www.theilp.org.uk./documents/obtrusive-light/



Application ID: LA04/2016/1360/F

Page 8 of 10

Land Contamination
Should any unforeseen ground contamination be encountered during the development, and in 
order to protect human health, all works on the site should immediately cease.  The Health and 
Environmental Services of Belfast City Council should be informed and a full written risk 
assessment in line with current government guidance (Model Procedures for the Management of 
Land Contamination - CLR11) that details the nature of the risks and any necessary mitigation 
measures should be prepared and submitted for appraisal.

Pollution Prevention and Control (Industrial Emissions) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 
2013.
The applicant is advised to ensure that, under the above legislation, an application for a permit 
should be made to Belfast City Council.

Drainage (NI) Order 1973
Under the terms of Schedule 6 of the Drainage (NI) Order 1973, any proposals either temporary 
or permanent, in connection with the development which involves interference with any 
watercourses such as culverting, bridging, diversion, building adjacent to or discharging storm 
water etc. requires the written consent of Rivers Agency. This should be obtained from the 
Eastern Regional Office at Ravarnet House, Altona Road, Largymore, Lisburn BT27 5QB.



Application ID: LA04/2016/1360/F

Page 9 of 10

ANNEX

Date Valid 17th June 2016

Date First Advertised 15th July 2016

Date Last Advertised

Details of Neighbour Notification (all addresses)
The Owner/Occupier, 
1 Blacks Road,Ballycullo Tom Of The Tae-End,Belfast,Antrim,BT11 9LS,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
11 Donegore Gardens,Ballycullo Tom Of The Tae-End,Belfast,Antrim,BT11 9NA,   
 Samuel Sproule
12, Carnanmore Park, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT11 9LX   
 John Hoey
124 Stewartstown Road Ballymoney Dunmurry Dunmurry 
The Owner/Occupier, 
13 Donegore Gardens,Ballycullo Tom Of The Tae-End,Belfast,Antrim,BT11 9NA,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
139 Stewartstown Road,Ballycullo Tom Of The Tae-
End,Dunmurry,Dunmurry,Antrim,BT11 9NB,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
15 Donegore Gardens,Ballycullo Tom Of The Tae-End,Belfast,Antrim,BT11 9NA,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
17 Donegore Gardens,Ballycullo Tom Of The Tae-End,Belfast,Antrim,BT11 9NA,   
 Jean Brown
17, Donegore Gardens, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT11 9NA   
The Owner/Occupier, 
19 Donegore Gardens,Ballycullo Tom Of The Tae-End,Belfast,Antrim,BT11 9NA,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
2 Carnanmore Park,Ballycullo Tom Of The Tae-End,Belfast,Antrim,BT11 9LX,   
 Andy Stephens
29, Old Belfast Road, Newtownards, Down, Northern Ireland, BT23 4SG   
 Angela Atkins
3, Donegore Gardens, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT11 9NA   
 A B Frazer
3, Steeple Road, Kells, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT41 1AF   
The Owner/Occupier, 
5 Donegore Gardens,Ballycullo Tom Of The Tae-End,Belfast,Antrim,BT11 9NA,   
 Gavyn Smyth
5, Oxford Street, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT1 3LA   
The Owner/Occupier, 
7 Donegore Gardens,Ballycullo Tom Of The Tae-End,Belfast,Antrim,BT11 9NA,   
 James Noel Steele
86, Tildarg Avenue, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT11 9LW   
The Owner/Occupier, 
9 Donegore Gardens,Ballycullo Tom Of The Tae-End,Belfast,Antrim,BT11 9NA,   
The Owner/Occupier, 



Application ID: LA04/2016/1360/F

Page 10 of 10

Church Of St John The Baptist (c Of I),Stewartstown Road,Ballycullo Tom Of The Tae-
End,Dunmurry,Dunmurry,Antrim,BT11 9NB,   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Stewartstown Road,Ballycullo Tom Of The Tae-End,Dunmurry,Dunmurry,Antrim,BT11 
9NB,   
  McMillan
Woodbourne Police Station, 139 Stewartstown Road, Belfast BT11 9NB   
 Declan McCreesh
   
Date of Last Neighbour Notification 15.07.16

Date of EIA Determination

ES Requested Yes /No

Drawing Numbers and Title

Notification to Department (if relevant)

Date of Notification to Department:  N/A
Response of Department:



Development Management Officer Report
Committee Application

Summary
Committee Meeting Date: 13 February 2018 
Application ID: LA04/2017/1778/F  
Proposal:
Minor works including drainage, lighting, a 
maintenance path and mounted golf targets.

Location:
Colin Park  115 Blacks Road  Belfast  BT10 
0NF 

Referral Route: Council Interest

Recommendation: Approval
Applicant Name and Address:
Colin Glen Trust
163 Stewartstown Road
 Belfast
 BT17 0HW

Agent Name and Address:
 AECOM Ltd
2 Clarence Street West
 Belfast
 BT2 7GP

Executive Summary:

Planning permission is sought for minor works including drainage, lighting, a maintenance path 
and mounted golf targets.

The site is within an area of existing open space and is located within the Colin Glen Urban 
Landscape Wedge (ML 21) and in close proximity to the Lady Dixon/Belfast Hills Community 
Greenway (ML 23/01). The site comprises an existing golf driving range adjacent to Colin Park 
Golf Course, proximate playing fields and industrial and residential estates.

No representations have been received in relation to the application.

The key issues to be considered are:
 The impact on the character and appearance of the area
 Impact on amenity
 Road Safety and traffic impact
 Floor Risk and drainage 

It is not considered that the proposal will cause demonstrable harm on the character and 
appearance of the surrounding area. These works will upgrade the facility and will largely 
integrate into the environment or be screened from public view. 

In terms of amenity, it is not considered that the proposal will have an adverse impact on the 
adjacent properties and neighbouring residential homes which are separated from the driving 
range by adjacent areas of open space and significant separation distance.

Consultees, DfI Roads, Council’s Environmental Health Service, Rivers Agency and NI Water 
offer no objections subject to Conditions and / or informative.

Having regard to the policy context and other material considerations, the proposal is considered 
acceptable



Application ID: LA04/2017/1778/F

Page 2 of 10

Recommendation
Planning permission is recommended subject to conditions.



Application ID: LA04/2017/1778/F

Page 3 of 10

Case Officer Report
Site Location Plan

Consultations:
Consultation Type Consultee Response
Non Statutory Env Health Belfast City 

Council
Substantive Response 
Received

Non Statutory Rivers Agency No Objection

Statutory DFI Roads - Hydebank Content

Non Statutory Rivers Agency Add Info Requested

Non Statutory NI Water - Strategic 
Applications

Substantive Response 
Received

Representations:
Letters of Support None Received
Letters of Objection None Received
Number of Support Petitions and 
signatures

No Petitions Received

Number of Petitions of Objection and 
signatures

No Petitions Received

Summary of Issues  

The key issues to be considered are:
 The impact on the character and appearance of the area
 Impact on amenity
 Road Safety and traffic impact
 Floor Risk and drainage



Application ID: LA04/2017/1778/F

Page 4 of 10

Characteristics of the Site and Area

1.0 The site, located at Colin Park, 115 Blacks Road, Belfast, is in an area of existing open 
space and comprises an existing golf driving range adjacent to Colin Park Golf Course, 
proximate playing fields and industrial and residential estates. The site is located within the 
Colin Glen Urban Landscape Wedge (ML 21) and in close proximity to the Lady 
Dixon/Belfast Hills Community Greenway (ML 23/01).

Description of Proposal

2.0 The proposal is for minor works including drainage, lighting, a maintenance path and 
mounted golf targets.

Planning Assessment of Policy and Other Material Considerations

3.0 Site History and Surrounding Site History
3.1 Site History

 S/1997/0329 - Golf club development, both building and driving range Colin 
Valley Golf Course Blacks Road Belfast (Permission Granted)

3.2 Surrounding Site History
 S/1974/0454 - Housing (Permission Refused)
 S/1975/0109 - Four additional golf holes (Permission Refused)
 S/1975/0781 - Four additional golf holes (Permission Granted)
 S/1981/0219 - Four additional golf holes (Permission Granted)
 S/1996/0093 - Golf Clubhouse, Indoor & Outdoor Bowling facilities (Permission 

Granted)
 S/2006/1230/F - Proposed new golf driving range building, associated site 

works, access road and range floodlighting. Change of use of existing range 
buildings to grass cutting machinery store. (Permission Granted)

 S/2011/0149/F - Proposed new golf driving range building. (Permission Granted)
 S/2014/0519/F - Conversion of part of the old driving range into a room to be 

used for a community fitness suite (Permission Granted)

4.0 Policy Framework
4.1 Belfast Urban Area Plan (BUAP) 2001
4.2 Draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2015 (dBMAP)

4.2.1 Policy UE 4 – Urban Landscape Wedges
4.3 Strategic Planning Policy Statement for Northern Ireland (SPPS)

4.3.1 Furthering Sustainable Development Para. 3.8
4.3.2 Decision-taking Principles and Practices Para. 5.72
4.3.3 Good Design Paras. 4.23 – 4.30

4.4 Planning Policy Statement 8 – Open Space, Sport and Outdoor Recreation
4.4.1 Policy OS 7 – The Floodlighting of Sports and Outdoor Recreational 
Facilities

4.5 Planning Policy Statement 15 – Planning and Flood Risk

5.0 Statutory Consultees Responses
5.1 Department for Infrastructure (DfI) Roads

6.0 Non Statutory Consultees Responses
6.1 Council’s Environmental Health Service
6.2 Rivers Agency
6.3 NI Water



Application ID: LA04/2017/1778/F

Page 5 of 10

7.0 Representations
7.1 The application has been advertised in the local press. No representations have 

been received.

8.0 Other Material Considerations
8.1 None

9.0 Assessment

9.1 Site
The site, located at Colin Park, 115 Blacks Road, Belfast, is in an area of existing 
open space and comprises an existing golf driving range adjacent to Colin Park Golf 
Course, proximate playing fields and industrial and residential estates. The site is 
located within the Colin Glen Urban Landscape Wedge (ML 21) and in close 
proximity to the Lady Dixon/Belfast Hills Community Greenway (ML 23/01).

9.2 Proposal
The proposal is for minor works including drainage, lighting, a maintenance path and 
mounted golf targets.

9.3 DfI Roads Consideration
DfI Roads has been consulted. It has offered no objection to the application.

9.4 Environmental Health Service Consideration
The Council’s Environmental Health Service has been consulted and has raised no 
objection subject to informatives.

9.5 Rivers Agency Consideration
The Rivers Agency has been consulted, and following its consideration of the 
submitted Drainage Assessment, has offered no objection to the proposal. It has put 
forward informatives for inclusion on the decision notice, should planning approval 
be granted The Rivers Agency has also clarified that the development does not lie 
within the 1 in 100 year fluvial flood plain.

9.6 NI Water
NI Water have been consulted and provided a generic response that offers 
information to house owners and developers. It raised no objection to the proposal, 
but has offered conditions.

9.7 Assessment
The key issues to be considered are:
 Impact on the character and appearance of the surrounding area
 Impact on amenity
 Road Safety and traffic impact
 Flood Risk and drainage

The proposal concerns the enhancement of the existing driving range with works in 
the form drainage, lighting, a maintenance path and mounted golf targets.

9.7.1 Policy UE 4 of the draft BMAP 2015 sets criteria that must be met in order for 
planning permission to be granted for outdoor recreational uses within designated 
Urban Landscape Wedges. Criterion 1 and 3 of Policy UE 4 apply to the proposal. It 
is considered that the proposal satisfies these criteria in that it will retain the open 
nature of the landscape and not impact upon long and short range views which are 



Application ID: LA04/2017/1778/F

Page 6 of 10

protected by existing landscape features

9.7.2  Paragraphs 3.8 and 5.72 of the SPPS state that sustainable development should be 
permitted, having regard to the development plan and all other material 
considerations, unless the proposed development will cause demonstrable harm to 
interests of acknowledged importance. Paragraph 3.8 further states that in practice 
this means that development that accords with an up-to-date development plan 
should be approved and proposed development that conflicts with an up-to-date 
development plan should be refused, unless other material considerations indicate 
otherwise.

9.7.3 It is not considered that the proposal will cause demonstrable harm on the character  
and appearance of the surrounding area. The proposed LED floodlights are to be 
fixed to the existing netting fence poles positioned along the inner edge of the site 
and screened by the existing landscape features which are to be retained. The 
proposed mounted golf targets, to be finished with a synthetic surface, and the 
proposed maintenance path, laid in gravel, will similarly be screened from public 
view 

9.7.4 In terms of the amenity, it is not considered that the proposal will have an adverse 
impact on the adjacent properties and neighbouring residential homes which are 
separated from the driving range by adjacent areas of open space. The Council’s 
Environmental Health Service was consulted and raised no objection to the proposal. 
It is considered therefore that neighbouring properties will not be impacted by issues 
of noise or light pollution through the introduction of the LED Floodlights. 

9.7.5 It is not considered that the proposal will present any road safety or traffic impacts. 
Transport NI has offered no objection to the proposal.

9.7.6 In terms of flood risk and drainage, the Rivers Agency and NI Water have been 
consulted and have offered no objection to the proposal

9.7.7 Having regard to the policy context and other considerations above, the proposal is 
considered acceptable. Planning permission is recommended subject to conditions.

Neighbour Notification Checked N/A

10. Summary of Recommendation:

Approval – With Conditions as set out below

11. Conditions 

 1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 5 years from 
the date of this permission.

Reason: As required by Section 61 of the Planning Act (Northern Ireland) 2011.

 2. All services within the development should be laid underground.

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity

 3. Development shall not be occupied until the onsite works have been completed in 
accordance with the drainage details submitted to and approved by the relevant authority.



Application ID: LA04/2017/1778/F

Page 7 of 10

Reason: In the interest of public health.

 4. Development shall not be become operational until surface water drainage works on-site 
and off-site have been submitted, approved and constructed by developer and the relevant 
authority.

Reason: To safeguard the site and adjacent land against flooding and standing water.

Informatives

 1. External Lighting
Artificial lighting should be optically controlled and directed in such a manner as to 
minimise light pollution from glare and spill. Guidance notes for the reduction of obtrusive 
light may be obtained from the Institution of Lighting Engineers, Lennox House, 9 Lawford 
Road, Rugby, Warwickshire CV21 2DZ, available at http://www.britastro.org/dark-
skies/pdfs/ile.pdf.

 2. Contaminated Land
Should any unforeseen ground contamination be encountered during the development, all 
works on the site should immediately cease.  Belfast City Council should be informed and 
a full written risk assessment in line with current government guidance (Model Procedures 
for the Management of Land Contamination - CLR11) that details the nature of the risks 
and any necessary mitigation measures should be prepared and submitted for appraisal.

 3. Developers should acquaint themselves of their statutory obligations in respect of 
watercourses as prescribed in the Drainage (Northern Ireland) Order 1973, and consult the 
Rivers Agency of the Department of Agriculture accordingly on any related matters.

 4. Any proposals in connection with the development, either temporary or permanent which 
involve interference with any watercourse at the site:- such as diversion, culverting, 
bridging; or placing any form of structure in any watercourse, require the written consent of 
the Rivers Agency. Failure to obtain such consent prior to carrying out such proposals is 
an offence under the Drainage Order which may lead to prosecution or statutory action as 
provided for.

 5. Any proposals in connection with the development, either temporary or permanent which 
involve additional discharge of storm water to any watercourse require the written consent 
of the Rivers Agency. Failure to obtain such consent prior to permitting such discharge is 
an offence under the Drainage Order which may lead to prosecution or statutory action as 
provided for.

 6. If, during the course of developing the site, the developer uncovers a watercourse not 
previously evident, he should advise the local Rivers Agency office immediately in order 
that arrangements may be made for investigation and direction in respect of any 
necessary measures required to deal with the watercourse.

 7. Where an undesignated watercourse flows through or adjacent to a development site, it is 
strongly advised that a working strip of appropriate width is retained to, in future, enable 
riparian landowners to fulfil their statutory obligations/responsibilities.

 8. The undesignated watercourse which (lies within / bounds) the development site, requires 
improvement works to (facilitate increased storm runoff / to enhance protection against 
flooding) and such works will be undertaken at the developer's expense.



Application ID: LA04/2017/1778/F

Page 8 of 10



Application ID: LA04/2017/1778/F

Page 9 of 10

ANNEX

Date Valid 18th August 2017

Date First Advertised 1st September 2017

Date Last Advertised

Details of Neighbour Notification (all addresses)
N/A

Date of Last Neighbour Notification N/A

Date of EIA Determination

ES Requested No

Planning History
Site History

 S/1997/0329 - Golf club development, both building and driving range Colin Valley Golf 
Course Blacks Road Belfast (Permission Granted)

Surrounding Site History

 S/1974/0454 - Housing (Permission Refused)
 S/1975/0109 - Four additional golf holes (Permission Refused)
 S/1975/0781 - Four additional golf holes (Permission Granted)
 S/1981/0219 - Four additional golf holes (Permission Granted)
 S/1996/0093 - Golf Clubhouse, Indoor & Outdoor Bowling facilities (Permission Granted)
 S/2006/1230/F - Proposed new golf driving range building, associated site works, access 

road and range floodlighting. Change of use of existing range buildings to grass cutting 
machinery store. (Permission Granted)

 S/2011/0149/F - Proposed new golf driving range building. (Permission Granted)
 S/2014/0519/F - Conversion of part of the old driving range into a room to be used for a 

community fitness suite (Permission Granted)

Summary of Consultee Responses 

 DfI Roads offered no objection to the application.
 The Council’s Environmental Health Service raised no objection subject to informatives.
 The Rivers Agency offered no objection to the proposal, but put forward informatives.
 NI Water raised no objection to the proposal, but put forward conditions.



Application ID: LA04/2017/1778/F

Page 10 of 10

Drawing Numbers and Title

01 – Colin Glen Forest Park Location Map
02 – Colin Glen Forest Park Red Line Boundary
03 – Colin Glen Driving Range General Arrangement
04 – Colin Glen Driving Range Illustrative Plan
05 – Colin Glen Forest Park Drainage Collector Pipe Long Section & Plan
06 – Colin Glen Driving Range Storm Headwall Details
07 – Colin Glen Driving Range Typical Details
08 – Colin Glen Driving Range Proposed External Lighting Layout

Notification to Department (if relevant)

Date of Notification to Department:  
Response of Department:



Development Management Officer Report
Committee Application

Summary
Committee Meeting Date: 13 February 2018  
Application ID: LA04/2017/2618/F   
Proposal:
Extension to mezzanine floor

Location:
Dunelm  Unit 8 Shane Retail Park  Boucher 
Road  Belfast  BT12 6HR

Referral Route:

BCC Planning Committee - proposal additional floor-space greater than 500sqm

Recommendation: Approval
Applicant Name and Address:
Dunelm (Soft Furnishings) Ltd
Watermead Business Park
 Syston
 Leicestershire
 LE7 1AD

Agent Name and Address:
 Inaltus Limited
15 Cleaver Park
 Malone Road
 Belfast
 BT9 5HX

Executive Summary:

The application seeks full planning permission for additional mezzanine floor-space at Unit 8 
Shane Retail Park.

The main issues to be considered are:
• The principle of increasing retail floor-space
• Access Movement and Parking

The site is located within the development limits for Belfast as designated within the Area Plans 
the land has no particular land zoning.  The application has been assessed against relevant 
planning policies and guidance including Strategic Planning Policy Statement (SPPS), Planning 
Policy Statement 3 (PPS 3) Access, Movement and Parking and supplementary guidance.

The proposal does not call for external changes to the unit, a Retail Statement was included 
within the application on the bases of the information provided it is considered that the proposal 
complies with the relevant planning polices and guidance.

All relevant neighbouring properties were notified and the proposal advertised within the local 
press no third party comments have been received.

Consultee offered no objection to the proposal.

Approval with conditions is recommended 

Case Officer Report



Application ID: LA04/2017/2618/F

Page 2 of 11

Site Location Plan

Consultations:
Consultation Type Consultee Response
Non Statutory DFI Roads - Hydebank Substantive Response 

Received

Representations:
Letters of Support None Received
Letters of Objection None Received
Number of Support Petitions and 
signatures

No Petitions Received

Number of Petitions of Objection and 
signatures

No Petitions Received

Summary of Issues  

Impact of the proposal on current retail planning policy

Characteristics of the Site and Area



Application ID: LA04/2017/2618/F

Page 3 of 11

The site is a large retail unit that is located within a retail complex.  The site is currently being 
used for the sale of soft furnishings and other household items.  The buildings forming the 
complex are of a standard design of large shopfronts at ground floor level and profile cladding 
above; fronting the units is a large area of car parking space.  

Description of Proposal

Planning permission is sought for the erection of additional mezzanine floor space

Planning Assessment of Policy and Other Material Considerations

3.0 Site History
Planning Appeal reference 2003/A308

4.0 Policy Framework
4.1 BUAP

Draft BMAP 2015
(Following the recent Court of Appeal decision on BMAP, the extant development plan is now the 
BUAP.  However, given the stage at which the Draft BMAP had reached pre-adoption through a 
period of independent examination, the policies within the Draft BMAP still carry weight and are a 
material consideration in the determination of planning applications.  The weight to be afforded is 
a matter of judgement for the decision maker.)
4.2 Strategic Planning Policy Statement (SPPS) 
4.3 Planning Policy Statement (PPS) 3:  Access, Movement and Parking

5.0 Statutory Consultees Responses
5.1 DRD Transport NI - No objection

6.0 Non Statutory Consultees Responses
N/A

7.0 Representations
7.1The application has been neighbour notified and advertised in the local press.  No third party 
comments have been received. 

8.0 Other Material Considerations 
8.1 Parking Standards

9.0 Assessment
9.1 The site is located within the development limits of Belfast as designated in Belfast Area 
Plans.  The Plans identifies the site as within white land.  The proposed development will create 
a mezzanine floor for retail sales within an existing retail unit.  The retail use on site is clearly 
established.

9.2 The key issues are:
- Principle of increase in retail floor space
- Access, Movement, Parking and Transportation

9.3 The proposed increase is 585 sqm to the unit which currently measures 3852 sqm gross 



Application ID: LA04/2017/2618/F

Page 4 of 11

floor-space.  The proposal is to accommodate Dunelm home furnishings which sells mainly bulky 
goods and therefore is in line with the bulky goods approval for the unit.

9.4 There are no external changes proposed and therefore there will be no detrimental visual 
impact caused by the development. The proposal is not contrary to the principles of good design 
in the SPPS, in that the development is obviously compatible with its surroundings.  

9.5 Paras 6.272 - 6.283 of the SPPS provides the context for Town Centres and Retailing.    A 
sequential test was submitted by the applicant however, a full retail impact assessment is not 
required as the proposal falls below the threshold of 1000 sqm external floors-pace as detailed 
within para 6.283 of the SPPS.  

9.6 The key requirements of the proposal are 
 - existing approved retail warehouse premises in an existing retail park, capable of 
accommodation 3852 sqm gross floor-space
 - on site, free car parking 
 - prominent location
 - on site servicing capable of accommodation articulated deliveries trucks

9.7 The applicant provided a sequential test looking at possible alternatives site around the city, 
none of which fulfil the space requirements.

9.8 On balance the increase in retail floor-space is considered acceptable for the Unit.  As stated 
previously the Unit already has permission for the sale of bulky goods.

9.9 A Transport Assessment Form was submitted on 16th Nov. 2017.  The scale of development 
and transport implications of the proposal were assessed by DfI Roads Service and was 
considered to be acceptable.  The proposal therefore complies with Policy AMP 6 of PPS 3 and 
Parking Standards.

9.10 Having regard to the policy context, the proposal is considered acceptable and planning 
permission is recommended.

10.0 Conclusion
10.1 Having regard to the policy context and other material considerations above, the proposal is 
considered acceptable and planning permission is recommended for approval subject to 
conditions.

Neighbour Notification Checked
Yes

Summary of Recommendation:

Approval - proposal complies with relevant planning policies

Conditions 

 1.The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 5 years from the 
date of this permission.



Application ID: LA04/2017/2618/F

Page 5 of 11

Reason: As required by Section 61 of the Planning Act (Northern Ireland) 2011.

 2. The additional mezzanine floor-space, here by approved, shall be used only for the retail and 
ancillary storage of bulky durable goods of the items listed hereunder and for no other purpose, 
including any other purpose in Part A, Class A1 of the Schedule of The Planning (Use Classes) 
Order (Northern Ireland) 2015:-

(a) DIY materials, products and equipment;
(b) Garden materials, plants, and equipment;
(c) Furniture and soft furnishings, Carpets and floor coverings and electrical goods;
(d) Cycles, cycle accessories, safety equipment and ancillary cycle repairs;
(e) Such other items as may be determined in writing by the Council as generally falling within 
the category of 'bulky goods'.

Reason: To enable the Council to control the nature, range and scale of retailing activity so as 
not to prejudice the continued vitality and viability of existing retail centres in line with retail 
planning policy.

Signature(s)

Date:



Application ID: LA04/2017/2618/F

Page 6 of 11

ANNEX

Date Valid 16th November 2017

Date First Advertised 8th December 2017

Date Last Advertised

Details of Neighbour Notification (all addresses)
The Owner/Occupier, 
Oak Furniture Land, Unit 9 Shane Retail Park,  Boucher Road, Belfast,  BT12 6HR   
The Owner/Occupier, 
Smyth Superstore,  Unit 6-7 Shane Retail Park,  Boucher Road,  Belfast,  BT12 6HR   

Date of Last Neighbour Notification
5th December 2017

Date of EIA Determination

ES Requested No

Planning History

Ref ID: LA04/2015/0514/F
Proposal: Full application for the construction of an internal mezzanine floor for retail 
sales purposes.
Address: Unit 9, Shane Retail Park, Boucher Road, Belfast, BT12 6UA,
Decision: PG
Decision Date: 20.11.2015

Ref ID: LA04/2017/2062/PAD
Proposal: Extension to existing mezzanine floor and an infill of some mezzanine space 
to near existing goods lift. Also proposing to move the wall of the warehouse back to 
create more sales space.
Address: Dunelm Store, Unit 8, Shane Retail park, Boucher Road, Belfast, BT12 6HR,
Decision: 
Decision Date: 

Ref ID: LA04/2017/2618/F
Proposal: Extension to mezzanine floor
Address: Dunelm, Unit 8 Shane Retail Park, Boucher Road, Belfast, BT12 6HR,
Decision: 
Decision Date: 

Ref ID: Z/1974/0474
Proposal: FACTORY USE DEVELOPMENT



Application ID: LA04/2017/2618/F

Page 7 of 11

Address: SHANE PARK, STOCKMAN'S LANE
Decision: 
Decision Date: 

Ref ID: Z/1992/0272
Proposal: Installation of floodlighting around rugby pitches
Address: SHANE PARK, STOCKMAN'S LANE BELFAST BT9
Decision: 
Decision Date: 

Ref ID: Z/2001/0581/O
Proposal: Construction of Business Park (Class 4 Use: Light Industrial as described in 
the Planning (Use Classes) Order (Northern Ireland) 1989) with associated car parking 
and site works
Address: Lands at Stockman's Lane, Boucher Road, Belfast, BT12
Decision: 
Decision Date: 15.05.2003

Ref ID: Z/2001/0584/O
Proposal: Construction of retail warehousing with associated car parking and site works
Address: Lands at Stockman's Lane, Boucher Road, Belfast, BT12
Decision: 
Decision Date: 12.05.2003

Ref ID: Z/2003/1165/RM
Proposal: Construction of retail warehousing with associated car parking and site works
Address: Lands at Stockman's Lane, Boucher Road, Belfast, BT12
Decision: 
Decision Date: 07.11.2003

Ref ID: Z/2003/1798/F
Proposal: Construction of retail warehouse park- Phase 2- with associated car parking, 
landscaping and general site works
Address: Lands to rear of No.105 Boucher Road, Belfast (90m approximately to east of 
M1 Motorway & bounded to north by Blackstaff River).
Decision: 
Decision Date: 

Ref ID: Z/2003/2679/A
Proposal: 2 No. building signs
Address: Shane Retail Park, Boucher Road, Belfast
Decision: 
Decision Date: 18.12.2003



Application ID: LA04/2017/2618/F

Page 8 of 11

Ref ID: Z/2003/2822/A
Proposal: 7 no free standing banner signs.
Address: Shane Retail Park, Boucher Road, Belfast
Decision: 
Decision Date: 17.02.2004

Ref ID: Z/2003/2899/A
Proposal: Shop logo sign
Address: Unit 4   Boucher Road   Shane Retail Park   Belfast
Decision: 
Decision Date: 10.02.2004

Ref ID: Z/2004/1001/LDP
Proposal: Construction of internal mezzanine floor for retail purposes
Address: Shane Park Retail Park, Boucher Road, Belfast BT12
Decision: 
Decision Date: 

Ref ID: Z/2005/0588/F
Proposal: Amendment of condition 14 of planning approval ref. Z/2003/1798/F to allow 
for the sale of toys from units 6 & 7 of 1000 and 1250 square metres respectively.
Address: Units 6 and 7 Shane Retail Park (Phase 2) Boucher Road, Belfast, Northern 
Ireland, BT12 6HR
Decision: 
Decision Date: 24.06.2005

Ref ID: Z/2005/0788
Proposal: Construction of internal mezzanine floor for retail purposes
Address: Shane Retail Park (Phase 2), Boucher Road, Belfast
Decision: 
Decision Date: 26.07.2005

Ref ID: Z/2005/0918/F
Proposal: Proposed mezzanine level with a gross floorspace of 1466 sq.m in unit 8 of 
Shane Retail Park for sales and storage purposes.
Address: Shane Retail Park (Phase 2), Boucher Road, Belfast.
Decision: 
Decision Date: 06.07.2005

Ref ID: Z/2005/1316/A
Proposal: Shop sign.
Address: Unit 3 Shane Retail Park, Boucher Road, Belfast, BT12 6HR
Decision: 
Decision Date: 23.08.2005



Application ID: LA04/2017/2618/F

Page 9 of 11

Ref ID: Z/2005/1669/A
Proposal: 3No internally illuminated shop signs (front, side and rear) and lettering to 
front.
Address: Unit 8, Shane Retail Park, Boucher Road, Belfast, BT12 6HR
Decision: 
Decision Date: 08.12.2005

Ref ID: Z/2006/1226/A
Proposal: 1 No. illuminated shop sign.
Address: Shane Retail Park, Unit 8 Boucher Road, Belfast
Decision: 
Decision Date: 15.07.2006

Ref ID: Z/2008/1563/F
Proposal: Erection of 2 no retail warehouse units comprising a gross floorspace of 2000 
square metres.
Address: Lands at Shane Retail Park, Boucher Road, Belfast, BT12
Decision: 
Decision Date: 16.10.2009

Ref ID: Z/2008/1581/F
Proposal: Erection of 1no restaurant/coffee shop unit.
Address: Lands at Shane Retail Park, Boucher Road, Belfast, BT12
Decision: 
Decision Date: 03.09.2009

Ref ID: Z/2008/2024/A
Proposal: Erection of 1 no Flexface Sign
Address: Dunelm Mill, Unit 8 Boucher Road, Belfast, BT12 6HR
Decision: 
Decision Date: 10.12.2008

Ref ID: Z/2009/1560/F
Proposal: Variation of condition 7 of approval Z/2008/1581/F.
Address: Lands at Shane Retail Park, Boucher Road, Belfast, BT12.
Decision: 
Decision Date: 24.02.2010

Ref ID: Z/2009/1561/F
Proposal: Variation of condition 12 of approval Z/2008/1563/F.
Address: Lands at Shane Retail Park, Boucher Road, Belfast, BT12.
Decision: 
Decision Date: 24.02.2010



Application ID: LA04/2017/2618/F

Page 10 of 11

Ref ID: Z/2010/0154/F
Proposal: Amendment to planning approval Z/2008/1563/F comprising the re-siting of 
units A & B at Shane Retail Park.
Address: Lands at Shane Retail Park, Boucher Road, Belfast, BT12
Decision: 
Decision Date: 04.03.2010

Ref ID: Z/2010/0334/F
Proposal: Erection of 2 No. retail warehouse units and associated works (amendment to 
approval ref Z/2008/1563/F).
Address: Lands at Shane Retail Park, Boucher Road, Belfast BT12
Decision: 
Decision Date: 18.06.2010

Ref ID: Z/2010/1641/F
Proposal: Variation of condition 17 of planning approval Z/2003/1165/RM to allow the 
subdivison of Unit 2 to create 2no. retail units with a gross floorspace of at least 
1000sqm each when measured internally and associated amendments to elevations.
Address: Unit 2 Shane Retail Park Boucher Road Belfast BT12,
Decision: 
Decision Date: 08.06.2011

Ref ID: Z/2011/0578/F
Proposal: Amendments to elevations to include the removal of one entrance and 
replacing with two entrances on the front elevation with amendments to shop windows 
and minor alterations to door positions on the rear elevation.
Address: Unit 2, Shane Retail Park, Boucher Road, Belfast, Bt12,
Decision: 
Decision Date: 08.09.2011

Ref ID: Z/2012/0676/F
Proposal: Proposed drive - thru restaurant with associated site works and car parking 
(amended information).
Address: Lands at Shane Retail Park, Boucher Road, Belfast, BT12,
Decision: PG
Decision Date: 01.05.2013

Ref ID: Z/2013/0327/A
Proposal: Erection of 2 shops signs (Retrospective).
Address: Starplan, Shane Retail Park, Boucher Road, Belfast, BT12 6HR,
Decision: CR
Decision Date: 10.09.2013



Application ID: LA04/2017/2618/F

Page 11 of 11

Summary of Consultee Responses 

No objection 

Drawing Numbers and Title

Drawing No. 01
Type: site location
Status: Submitted

Drawing No. 02
Type: Block Plan
Status: Submitted

Drawing No. 03
Type: Existing plans
Status: Submitted

Drawing No. 04
Type: Proposed Plans
Status: Submitted

Notification to Department (if relevant)

Date of Notification to Department:  N/A
Response of Department:




	Agenda
	1b Minutes
	2 Planning Appeals Notified
	3 Planning Decisions Issued
	6a LA04/2017/1489/F - Proposed ground excavations from a 'Borrow Pit' to provide 30,000m3 of clean natural clay soils capping material for use within remediation capping layers and associated Remedial Strategy for the approved Mixed Use Residential and Commercial Development (granted permission under Ref Z/2013/1434/F) on lands at former Visteon Factory, Blacks Road
	6b LA04/2016/2018/F - Seven storey residential development comprising 46 apartments with associated basement level car parking with 25 parking spaces, amenity space, associated site works and alterations to the junction of Hamill Street and College Square North. Lands adjacent to 14 College square North and South of 62-76 Hamill Street.
	6c LA04/2017/2361/F - Reconfiguration of interior to provide 16 bar / restaurant units, health club, arena hospitality suite, climbing wall, refurbishment of Pavilion interior, new foyer, access deck bridge, new front façade &  building access strategy  at the Odyssey Pavilion, 2 Queens Quay.
	6d LA04/2017/2268/F - Demolition of existing building Oxford and Gloucester House for 11 storey mixed use building, basement car parking, ground floor coffee/restaurant, upper floors office accommodation & all associated site and access works on lands at 43-63 Chichester Street 29-31 Gloucester Street and Seymour Lane
	6e LA04/2017/1394/F supported accommodation for older people comprising 32 apartments in total on land East of Harberton Park to the south of 25 Harberton Park
	6f LA04/2017/1505/F - 5 residential apartments at 1-3 Eia Street
	6g LA04/2015/1345/F - Housing development on land at Portmore Hill adjacent to Thorburn Park and Thorburn Road and accessed via Antrim Road
	6h LA04/2016/1360/F - Filling station, shop and 2 retail units on lands opposite junction of Stewartstown Road and Suffolk Road
	6i LA04/2017/1778/F - Minor works including drainage, lighting, a maintenance path and mounted golf targets at Colin Park, 115 Blacks Road
	6j LA04/2017/2618/F -  Extension to mezzanine floor Dunelm  Unit 8 Shane Retail Park  Boucher Road

